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HEARING ON TITLE IX OF THE EDUCATION
AMENDMENTS OF 1972

TUESDAY, MAY 9, 1995

HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES, SUBCOMMITTEE ON POsT-
SECONDARY EDUCATION, TRAINING AND LIFE-LONG
LEARNING OF THE COMMITTEE ON ECONOMIC AND EDU-
CATIONAL OPPORTUNITIES, Washington, DC.

The subcommittee met, pursuant to call, at 9:07 a.m., Room
2175, Rayburn House Office Building, Hon. Howard P. “Buck”
McKeon, Chairman, presiding.

Members present: Representatives McKeon, Gunderson, Good-
ling, Petri, Funderburk, Souder, Williams, Reed, Roemer, Becerra,
Woolsey, and Clay.

Also present: Representatives Ganske, Barrett (R-NE), Ewing,
Graham, and Mink.

Staff present: Kathleen M. Gillespie, Workplace Policy Counsel;
Kent Talbert, Professional Staff Member; Karen A. Wayson, Staff
Assistant; Marshall Grigsby, Minority Senior Legislative Associate;
Rick Jerue, Minority Legislative Associate; Broderick Johnson, Mi-
nority General Counsel; Gail Weiss, Minority Staff Director; and
Laura Geer, Minority Executive Assistant.

Chairman MCKEON. Good morning. The Subcommittee on Post-
secondary Education, Training and Life-Long Learning is meeting
today to consider the issue of Title IX and intercollegiate athletics.
As many of you knu °, Title IX was enacted as part of the Edu-
cation Amendments of 1972 to prohibit discrimination on the basis
of sex in federally funded education programs or activities. In the
area of the intercollegiate athletics, Title IX generally requires that
colleges and universities provide equal opportunities to both male
and female student-athletes.

Like many Members of Congress, I have received a number of in-
quiries from my constituents, including athletes, coaches, parents,
and administrators regarding the means by which universities
demonstrate that they are in compliance with Title IX. Some are
concerned about what they perceive to be an overemphasis on a
“numbers” game, merely counting the number of teams and ath-
letes on the male and female side of the ledger. Others have de-
scribed the benefits they have derived throughout their lives from
the athletic opportunities they see as directly descending from the
passage of Title IX. These varying perspectives on the role of Title
IX in ensuring equal opportunity in athfetics resent a basis for an
interesting discussion and are the reason for the hearing today.

We have several panels of very distinguished witnesses, led off
by our colleagues, Representatives Hastert and Collins. We will

(B8]
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also hear from the Office of Civil Rights at the Department of Edu-
cation and from representatives of universities who are variously
troubled by the direction of Title IX enforcement or who feel that
there is an appropriate amount of flexibility in achieving compli-
ance with Title IX. Finally we will Lear from several organizations
in the athletic community who will offer differing opinions as to the
impact of Title IX on their sports and athletes.

I believe the hearing will offer a balanced discussion of the many
issues involved in Title IX and intercollegiate athletics, and I look
forward to hearing from all of the witnesses. With that, I turn to
the Ranking Member, the gentleman from Montana, Mr. Williams,
for his opening comments.

Mr. WiLLIAMS. Thank you. We Americans do not hold that we are
all born with equal talents. But by constitutional requirement and
our long tradition, we do hold that all people are born with the
equal opportunity to fully develop whatever talents they have. And
it has been the tradition of this committee, this Congress, and this
Nation to pass and enforce whatever laws are required to assure
that equal opportunity to all of our people, regardless of their reli-
gion, their ethnic background, their color, and more recently, start-
ing in 1972, regardless of whether they are male or female. And
so Title IX was enacted those 23 years ago to fulfill that assurance.

It says, in effect, that any educational institution receiving Fed-
eral funds must provide an equal opportunity to men as well as
women, boys as well as girls, to fully pursue a total education expe-
rience. And because athletics has long been seen in America to be
an integral part of total school experience, Title IX required that
both sexes have an equal opportunity to participate in sports and
receive the signiﬁcantqbeneﬁts that sports provide.

Now, the question is: Has Title IX geen successful? Does it work?
Well, just prior to 1972, 2 percent of our Nation’s college athletes
were women. Today 35 percent of our Nation’s college athletes are
women. Before Title IX, fewer than 300,000 high schoo! girls com-
peted inlggorts. Today that number is more than 2 mill‘on,

Title works. Title IX provides to my daughters and yours
what the Constitution assures them. And by the way, today many
more men and boys participate in athletics, organized school athlet-
ics, than participated in 1971, and for each of the last four years,
men’s participation in college athletics has increased beyond the
previous year. Last year, more men participated in intercollegiate
athletics than in any year in the previous decade.

Is Title IX perfect? Well, almost nothing else is, so probably not.
Can it be improved? Perhaps. But as we attempt to improve it, let’s
not be guided by myth or unsubstantiated .:necdote. Y.et’s look at
the facts, remembering what the Constitution and our tradition de-
mand and require.

Let’s keep in mind what Title IX is all about. It is about the
daughters of this country. So this hearing is important. The action
this committee takes will be verg important. And I would add this:
It will be important primarily because of the policy implications,
but I also advise my colleagues on both sides, it will also be impor-
tant because of the politics. Many of your voters have daughters.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. CLAaY. Mr. Chairman.




Chairman MCKEON. Yes.

Mr. Cray. I would like to commend you for holding this hearing
and, hopefully, But of this will come an even greater enforcement
of Title IX as our Ranking Member just mentioned. It has been a
very effective program, and I certainly hope we will enforce it even
more strenuously than prior to today.

Chairman McKson. Thank you, Mr. Clay. And if any other
Members have snening statements, to put in the record, we will do
so without any objection.

[The prepared statemeni of Mrs. Mink follows:]
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OPENING STATEMENT
U.S. CONGRESSWOMAN PATSY T. MINK
OF HAWAIL
TITLE IX: GENDER EQUITY IN ATHLETICS
SUBCOMMITTEE ON POSTSECONDARY EDUCATION, TRAINING,
AND LIFE-LONG LEARNING
MAY 9, 1995

Mr Charr. | appreciate the opportuntty to join the Postsecondary Education, Training.
and Life-Long Leaming Subcommittee for today's heanng on Title IX of the Education
Act Arnendments and tts application to college athletics While | am not a Member of
this Subcommittee. the subject of this heanng 1s one of great importance to me. and
has been a central part of my work as a Member of Congress over the years

| was a member of this Committee when we wrote Title IX into the law to protect equal
educational opportuntties for girls and women Because of Title IX women have gained
entrance into law, medica” and engineenng schools. gifls are no longer segregated into
home economic classes and can now take advantage of more technical skill training
tradtionally offered only to boys; and girls and women have legal protections from
sexual harassment and other forms of discnmination in schools

One of Titie IX's greatest successes has been in the areas of collegrate athletics the
subject of today's heanng It is only because of Trie X that women athletes now have
similar opporiunities as men have had to develop their athletic skills through
intercollegiate sports and utilize their skills to help them pursue higher education

When Congress passed Title IX in 1972. women represented a mere 2% of the nation’s
college varsity athlotes and received only 1/2 of one percent of schools' athletic
budgets Athletic scholarships for women did not exist

The number of college women participating in competitive athletics has gone from
18.000 before Title X to over 158.000 Women now represent 35% of college athletes
natonwide
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This success has had an effect on our elementary and high schools as well. Now that
grris see the potential for participation in college athletics. participation in sports at the
high school and elementary schoot level has increased Before Title IX fewer than
300.000 high school girls played cocmpetitive sports. today the number is around 2 12
million

One only has to look at the tremendous commercial success of the NCAA Women's
Basketball Tournament last month to recognize the success of Title IX  If we didn't
have Title IX. we would have never seen that tournament on nationat television

In recent months opponents of Title IX have been working to exempt certar sports from
the application of Title IX As an author of the law. | hope that this Sut.. ;mmittee will
reject all attempts to weaken the application of Title IX

This 1s not a new i1ssue Football and other sports who claim to be revenue-producing
have sought exemptions fiom the ver deginning of implementation of Title IX And
Congress has repeatedly rejected wese attempts to imit Title IX’s application  In 1975
1 1ed the fight in the House against a floor amendment to exempt revenue-producing
sports The Congress rejected this amendment. as it rejected other atteinpts to weaken
Title IX In subsequent years

The evidence bares out tnat it 1s only through the overall application of Titie IX with no
exceptions. that we have been able to achieve the progress toward party for women
And | beileve the testimony from our witnesses today will demonstrate this point

Let me be clear we have made much progress in gerder equity in sports. but we are
far from reaching paiity for women college athletes Any steps to exempt certan sports
witl undo the progress we have made

‘The goal of Titie IX 1s to achieve gender equity. not to hurt men’s sports as some may
argue here today The Department of Education Office of Civii Rights guidelines are by
far lenient enough in order for schools to comply with Title IX without hurting men's
sports

The stanaards schocls must ach.eve under Title IX are very minima! A schooi simply
has to show that & 1s improving it's women's athletic program or that it 1s meeting the
needs and abiliies of ts women students in order to be in compliance with the law 1
would argue that these standards are far too lenient and that much moie vigorous
enforvement of Title IX 1s needed for women's athietics to reach panty

Colleges and universities have had 26 years to come into compliance with Title 1X and
there 1s no excuse for lack of compliance. or the notion that certain men’s sperts should
be exenpt when determining compliance with the law




Some argue that revenue-producing sposts 1ke football undenvrite women's teams
This 1s simply not true  In fact the magority of footbat! teams i1 the country do not even
pay for their own operations

According to the NCAA 1994 Revenues and Expenses in Intercollegiate Sports report
80° of all NCAA football programs dig not generate enough money to pay for its own
ocerations and 67% of Division | teams lose money

1 would like to enter into the record recent editorials from Sports lllustrated and the New
York Times which support strong enforcement of Title IX and oppose any exemptions

The bottom line 1s that athletic opportunities at the college level are beneficial to
women and the young women of our nation have been deprived of equal opportunities
n this field for decades Participation in athletics helps women maimntan therr health
opens doors to higher education. and provides the potential for professional careers in
athletics  Qur entire soci~ty benefits from their achievements and their contnbutions
Let us not turn back the ciock for women by weakening Title I1X and allowing colleges
and universities to continue to deny women opportunities for success in athletics
academics and In therr future careers

We have n -y fine witnesses here today | would like to say a special welcome to ou?
colieague. Cungresswoman Cardiss Collins who has done extensive work in examining
the issue of gender equity in college athletics Her expertise on this issue will contribute
much to these proceedings today and | look forward to her testimony

Again Mr Chair thank you for this opportunity to Join the Committee today | look
forward to an informative and productive session
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The Bias Against Women's Sports

The come-from-behind v-ciorv of the Univers::
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But a recent Federal court decision tnvolving
Brown Universitv 1s a rerminoer :hat manv institu-
tions of higher learning are suill {ailing to provide
what the spinit and letter of the law demand —
equity In supporting varsuy sporis teams f(or men
and women.

Brown stopped ({inancing t'vo women's sports
teams four years ago in an effort to cut costs. The
Federal district court in Rhode {sland now savs the
action violated Federal law by discriminating
against female athletes.

Brown offers more than 30 untversity-funded
intercollegiate sports [t expanded women's teams
'n the 1970°s. after goin.; coed and after passage of
Title IX. the Federal statute that forbids sex dis.
crimination at colieges and universities. But 1n 1991,
a universitywide austertty program prompted (he
sports department to stop financing the women's
gymnastics and volleyball teams, making their con-
tinuation as varsity teams uniikely. Two men's
teams, water polo and golf. were slso demoted. With -
the enure school forced to ughten its belt. Brown
feR that the simuitaneous demotion of the men's
and women's teams shouid sausty the law.

Judge Raymond Pettine disagreed. While Title
IX generally accommodates different athletic inter-
ests among men and women, the critical question is
whiethe, & school offert men and women equal

S =, .
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pportenities to particiodte in sports. Jucge Pettine
~uled that Brown nad failec to meet this test by all
‘hree standards out forth bv the U S Department of
Zducauon Brown 0id not enroll men and women in
arsity sports :n Suostantidl proportion to their
-espective ungerzracudie enroliments. wnich 1s the |
TOst demanoine :est. Nor 0id 1t expand sporis
programs for women to meet demand Or show that
it had alreadv met the demand of ail women who
vanted to parucipate. regardless of proportionatity
While 49 percent of undergraduates were men
and S! percent women. Judge Pettine found that the
school offered 62 percent of its varsity athletic slots
to men and only 38 percent to women. Since women
already had fewer athietic opportunities than men.
and since Brown's el{orts to expand women's sports
had peaked. leaving some unmet demand. Judge
Pettine ruied that demoting women's teams was
even more harmful than demoting men’s teams.
The judge gave Brown more time to determine
how to allocate resources to support more women's
teams. But the university protests that the ruiing
comes oo close 10 ordering sports by quota. and will
appesnl.
More than two decades alter passage of Title
IX, the Natonal Collegiate Athletic Asgociation
reports that female participauon n sports is siowiy
but ateadily increasing, after sharp cutbacks in the
mad-1980's. {n 1993-94, women sccounted for sbout
38 percent of college athietes and 53 percent of
college students in N.CA.A. member schools.
Gteater emphasis on women's sports would
benefit not just the athietes but the fans as well. Just
ask the thousands who gathered at Bradley (nterna-
tional Alrport to weicome home Conaecticut’s Lady

Huskies after their victory over Tennessee.
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Chairman MCKEON. I am in a great position to Chair this. I have
three sons and three daughters, so I am totally, totally neutral.

We will hear from two of our colleagues on the first panel this
morning: Representatives Denny Hastert from Illinois and Cardiss
Collins from Illinois.

We will hear first from Representative Hastert.

STATEMENT OF HON. J. DENNIS HASTERT, A REPRESENTA-
TIVE IN CONGRESS FROM THE STATE OF ILLINOIS

Mr. HASTERT. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I certainly very much
appreciate the opportunity to speak this morning and to thank you
for your interest and help in holding this hearing.

I was interested in hearing the opening statements this morning.
I understand that there are political threats out there and some-
times, when people make political threats, it is probably not wise
to tread on that ground. But you know I have watched Title IX.

I started coaching in high school in 1965 when women didn't
have an opportunity to go out for organized athletics. All there was
at that time was a GAA, a Girls Athletic Association, and they
didn’t really have traveling teams and the ability to do that. So I
appreciate what Title IX has done for women and girls in this
country. I think it has been a wonderful opportunity for women to
be able to participate and become involved in athletics and to have
the same experience that men have had previous to 1972.

But sometimes when we put laws forward and bring laws for-
ward, especially from the basic intent of what that law was to how
it develops, there are “unintended consequences.” I think that is
one of the things that should be examined. For instance, in my
good friend Mr. Williams’ district, which is all of Montana, great
wrestling programs are being threatened, and we need to take a
look at that. I dor’t think that was ever the intent of Title IX.

You know, my interest in this issue surrounding Title IX of the
Educat.on Amendments of 1972 has been fostered in many ways.
First, I am a former coach. I coached both wrestling and football
for 16 years ai a small high school. I married a women’s athletic
coach who is still teaching elementary P.E. after 29 years. I love
seeing young men and young women involve.l in athletics because
I know what they get out of it. I think a lot of the kids I coached
during those 16 years and the opportunities that they have had. I
was the President of the only wrestling coaches association in 1975
and 1976, and I traveled to Washington several times when the
Amateur Sports Act was moving through the Congress to make
sure that grassroots had a say in organized athletics in this coun-
try.

Secondly, in the last year I have received hundreds of letters
from youngsters around this Nation who are no longer able to par-
ticipate in sports because their sport is being eliminated at the var-
jous universities that they attend. I have heard from kids from San
Francisco University in California—kids from California all the
way to Pennsylvania. They don’t understand how schools can prom-
ise them an opportunity to compete and later drop those programs
in the middle of their eligibility. They don’t understand the policy
fixes of what is going on.
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Coaches representing a wide variety of sporte —including wres-
tling, gymnastics, track and field, rowing, baseball, swimming, soc-
cer, water sports, volleyball, and fencing—have created a coalition
to halt this alarming trend. I would like to take a moment to intro-
duce a very distinguished coach and Olympian who is sitting in the
audience today. Dan Gable is somewhat of a legend in wrestling.
He won the world championship in 1971 at the age of 22, the
youngest American ever to do so at that time. The next year, he
won the gold medal at the 1972 Olympics in Munich without ever
surrendering a single pnint. He is now a coach at the University
of Iowa. Certainly if there is a national legend in any one sport,
Dan Gable is this. He is here today because he is concerned about
the trend we see out there. I would like to have Dan stand if that
is permissible.

[Applause.]

Mr. HASTERT. The oldest sport known to man is disappearing
faster than any other. Some people say it is due to a “lack of inter-
est,” but that is not true because wrestling is growing in the ele-
mentary and secondary levels faster than any other comparative
sport.

It was not hard to notice that this trend was getting out of hand
in my own State. Western Illinois University dropped its wrestling
programs a couple of years ago, ostensibly to make room for wom-
en’s athletics. The University of Illinois dropped its men’s swim
team program, resulting in a lawsuit alleging reverse discrimina-
tion. Northern Illinois University, in my own Congressional dis-
trict, proposed to eliminate wrestling and swimming last fall at the
urging of the CCR. Eastern Illinois University fallowed closely be-
hind with an announcement to drop wrestling and swimming.

President David Jorns from Eastern is here today to tell you
about their experiences. Most recently, Illinois State University has
announced its intention to eliminate wrestling and soccer. This is
just in the State of Illinois in the last year or so, but it is happen-
ing all across the United States.

en sports are eliminated, the universities cite their need to
comply with Title IX and the proportionality rules as part or all of
their reason. While 1 want aﬁ schools to comply with Title IX, I
strongly believe that the elimination of opportunities for anyone
was not the intent of Title IX. These lost opportunities are what
I call the “unintended consequences” of Title Ip)?

So why should a university cut sports to comply with Title IX?
Title IX was supposed to be a statute to increase opportunities.

Let me explain briefly. One way a university tries to comply with
Title IX is by meeting the “opportunities test,” that is, effectively
accommodating the interests and abilities of both genders. There
are numerous tests, 13 approximately, that a school must meet in
order to comply with Title IX and ensure that discrimination does
not exist in their athletic programs. These range from money spent
on scholarships to coaches’ salaries to athletic facilities. However,
it is the “opportunities test” that forces schools to drop certain
sports. The “opportunities test” has three prongs: first, the propor-
tionality rule, which says participation numbers for male and fe-
male students must be substantially proportionate to the respective
enrollment numbers; second, the history and continuing practice of
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program expansion for the underrepresented sex; and third, fuily
and effectively accommodating interests and abilities of the
underrepresented sex. According to the Office of Civil Rights at the
Department of Education, the OCR, meeting any one of these three
prongs signals compliance.

However, that is not what I have been hearing from the field,
and the courts have de facto made proportionality the only applica-
ble standard.

It is interesting to note that the original statute states only the
following: “No person in the United States shall, on the basis of
sex, be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or
be subjected to discrimination under any education program or ac-
tivity receiving financial assistance.” This language does not man-
date a proportionality rule. Proportionality comes out of the 1979
policy interpretation developed by the Department of Education.
However, the courts have given proportionality preference.

The second and third prongs of the “opportunities test” have
largely lost all meaning in terms of compliance. For instance, a
school which made improvements by adding numerous new teams
for female athletes soon after Title IX first became law may no
longer be considered to be in compliance with the second prong un-
less they continue to add new sports. When can they stop adding
new sports for anyone interested? Well, when they have met the
proportionality test. The third prong is even more nebulous than
the first. How is the concept of “interests and abilities” measured?
Well, many people have gone through and looked at interest and
abilities. How many males and females participate in sports pro-
grams at the high school level? Most studies have found that any-
where from 33 to 35 percent of the females participate in the high
school venue, where all kinds of sports are available to them, and
that 63 to 65 percent of the males participate. That is what the
tendency happens to be.

But it is entirely unclear whether the university can take sur-
veys and use them as representations of interest and abilities of
the student population due to recent court decisions. Some will
claim that surveys cannot show latent interest that would be there
if a sport were offered. How in the world is a university going to
comply with a standard like that? I just think it is impossible.
Thus, schools fall back on, you guessed it, the proportionality rule.

So if a university’s numbers do not add up, they either add
sports for women, which is in line with providing more opportuni-
ties as Congress intended, and that is good, or eliminate sports for
men in order to meet their numerical objectives, which is what I
consider to be the opposite of Congressional intent.

The proportionality rule is easier because universities know what
they have to do to comply. No one is sure how to comply with the
interests or abilities, nor does OCR give universities much direction
on these issues. In fact, in some cases, it appears OCR actually
makes it seem that there is no way to comply with Title IX unless
a university reaches proportionality. Again and again, universities
submit plans for compliance to OCR, only to have them rejected be-
cause they do not attain substantial proportionality.

This de facto reliance on proportionality alone leads me to these
questions. Are we as a Nation saying that numbers 3lone indicate

io
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discrimination? Has this, in fact, become a quota s;/stem that we
have imposed on athletic systems in this country? More impor-
tantly, have we created a quota system that does not help the
underrepresented sex as much as it should because universities can
simply cut the overrepresented sex as a means of meeting the test?
It does not help create opportunities for women when a school sim-
ply cuts a sport such as soccer, swimming, wrestling, or baseball
to comply. And we should not support such tactics. This only hurts
young women and men across the Nation who are denied the op-
portunities that should be afforded to them.

The benefits of sports in general—the values of fair play and
teamwork, of stretching yourself to the fullest and ushing your
mind and body to its utmost performance—will be lost on these
women and men who will not get the opportunity they should have.
They are caught in the “unintended consequences” of Title IX. They
are caught in a quota system which makes them a number, not an
athlete. It is not what Congress intended, and it should not be al-
lowed to continue.

Many claim the problem is money. But even this argument rings
hollow when you consider the investigators manual does not ex.
empt teams supported by private funds [using no Federal money]
from the proportionality equation. For instance, at Princeton Uni-
versity, the wrestling alumni put forward a $2.3 million endow-
ment for the $100,000 per year program, but this is not taken into
consideration under the proportionality rule.

So, what are the answers to this dilemma? I do not claim to have
all the answers today, and I am as anxious as you are to hear the
testimony of so many who are struggling with this issue. They are
really the experts. However, I would like to offer some thoughts on
where Congress should be headed. The overriding goals should be
to follow policies that encourage schools to add rather than sub-
tract athletic opportunity.

As T alluded to earlier, OCR should give universities more spe-
cific guidance about how they can comply with the second and third
prongs of the “opportunities test.” Congress should take back con-
trol of this process because the courts are making determinations
that bring everything back to roportionality. OCR then, in turn,
acquiesces to the court ruling, The second and third prongs become
meaningless if they are not further defined. Congress has abro-
gated our responsibility if we allow this to continue.

OCR also needs to clearly define who is a participant for pur-
poses of these calculations. Should a school count every kid who
tries out for the team, everyone who suits up for competition, or
should opportunity slots be counted instead? For instance, should
a school count a cross country runner who also runs track as one
participant or as two athletic opportunity slots. Additionally,
should universities be held responsible if the sluts they have open
for women are then not filled because of a lack of interest? These
issues are also part of an ongoing rulemaking and response to the
equity in the Athletic Disclosure Act passed by Congress last year.
These issues are important to any university that seeks to comply
with the proportionality test.

There are other schools, as I have heard, such as Michigan State
University, which do not want to open their women’s program to

i7




13

walk-ons. They are going to close it to the number of scholarships.
That way they close down all opportunities for men and women for
expanding opportunities and then put caps, in response, on men’s
athletic teams to prohibit walk-ons from participating.

However, maybe we need to think in broader terms, to find a
way to encourage Title IX compliance without the use of quotas.
We do not assume that everyone who enrolls in a university wants
the opportunity to be in the band. Let’s face it, not everyone wants
to play the tuba or the piano. But we operate under similar as-
sumptions when we consider athletics. Proportionality, at the very
least, should be based on those in the interested population rather
than everyone enrolled. I urge the committee to consider creative
solutions to ending the continuing discrimination out there without
using proportionality.

Finally, I challenge all of us to think about whether Congress in-
tended for Title IX to result in the elimination of athletic opportu-
rities for anyone. Can any of us say that we want Title IX to be
implemented in such a way?

It really disturbs me to hear people claim that it is fine to cut
opportunities for men to eradicate discrimination. Well, Mr. Chair-
man, that is not fine. That view represents everything that is
wrong about Title IX. When a law ceases to work for positive im-
provements and simply becomes a way to get back at the system
that perpetrated discrimination, we have lost our focus on what it
means to work toward gender equity. It doesn’t help anyone just
to keep tearing the future of these kids out from under them.

I hope this hearing will lay the groundwork for some positive
changes to our present system of Title IX. And thank you very
much for your attention.

Chairman McKEON. Thank you.

[The prepared statement of Mr. Hastert follows:]
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M:. Chairman. | very much appreciate the opportunity to speak this morning
and i thank you for your nterest and help in holding this hearing.

My interest in the 1ssues surrounding Title 1X of the Educational
Amendments of 1972 has been fostered in many ways. First, | am a former
wrestler and | coached wrestling for 16 years at Yorkville High School. my home
town. | love this sport and the kids | coached. | was President of the lllinois
Wresting Coach’s Association n 1975 and 1976 and came out to Washington
several umes to lobby on the Amateur Sports Act.

Secondly, | recently began receiving huadreds of letters from youngsters
around the nation who are no longer able to partcipate in sports because their
sport is being eliminated at therr various university. | have heard from kids from
Califorma all the way to Pennsylvania. They don’t understand how a school can
promise them the opportunity to compete and drop the program half way through
therr eligibihty.

Also, coaches representing a wide vanety of sports, including wrestling,
gymnastics. track and field, rowing, baseball, swimming, soccer, water sports,
voileyball and fencing have created a coalition to halt this alarming trend. | would
like to take a moment to introduce a very distinguished coach and Olympian who
IS situng in the audience today. Dan Gable i1s somewhat of a legend in wrestling.
He won the world championship in 1971 at the age of 22, the youngest
American ever 10 do so at that time. The next year he won the gold medai at the
1972 Olympics in Munich without surrendering even a single point! Dan is here
today because he is very concerned about the trend we see out there. The oldest
sport known to man is disappearing faster than any supposed "lack of interest”
could possibly explain.

It was not hard to nouce this trend getting out of hand in my own state.
Western llinois University dropped its wrestling program a couple years ago. The
University of lllinois dropped its men’s swim team resultng in a lawsuit alleging
reverse discrimination. Northern lllinois University, in my own Congressional
District, proposed to eliminate wrestling and swimming last fall. Eastern lilinois
University followed closely behind with an announcement to drop wrestling and
swimming. President David Jorns from Eastern is here today to tell you about
their experience. Most recently, lllinois State University has announced its
ntention to eliminate wrestling and soccer. This 1s just in the state of llinois in
the last few years! But it's happening all across the United States.
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When these sports are eliminated. the universitics Cite their need to comply
with Title 1X and the propcrtionality rules as part or all of their reason. While |
want all schools to comply with Title 1X, | strongly behgve that the aliminatgn of
opportunities for anyone was not the intent ot Title IX. These lost opportumities
are what | call the “unintended consequences” of Title IX.

So why would a university cut sports t0 comply with Title 1X? Titie IX was
supposed to be a statute to inCrease opportunities.

Let me explain brisfly. One way a university tries 1o comply with Title IX 1s
by meeting th:- "opportumities test.” That s, effectively accommodating the
interasts and abilities of both genders. There are numerous tests (13) that a
school must meet n order to comply witti Title 1X and ensure there Is N0
discnmination in their athletic programs. These range from money spent on
scholarships to coach’s salaries to athletic faciities. Howaever, 1t s the
opportunities test that forces schools to drop certain sports. The opportunities
test is made up of three parts: 1) the proportionality rule, which says the
participation opportunities of male and female students must be in numbers
substanually proportionate to their respactive enroliment ratas, 2) the history and
continuing practice of program expansion for the underrepresented sex, and 3;
the accommodation of the athletic interests and abilities of the underrepresented
sax. According to the Office of Civil Rights of the Department of Education
{OCR}, mesting any one of these factors signals compiance.

- Howaever, that is not what | have been hearing from the field. and the
courts have de facto made proportionality the only applicable standard. Itis
interasting to note that the Original statute states only the following:

No person in the United States shall, on the basis of
sex, be excluded from participaton in. be denied the
benafits of, or be subjected to discrimination under any
aducation program or activity receiving financial
assistance.

This language does not mandate a proportionality ruls. Proportionality
comes out of the 1979 Policy Interpretation developed by the Department of
Education Howevaer, the courts have given proportionality preference.

The second and third prongs of the opportunities test have largely lost ali
meaning in terms of compliance. For instance, a school which made
improvements by adding numerous new teams for female athletes soon after Titie
IX first became law may no longer be considered to be in compliance unless they
are now planning to add new sports. When can they stop adding new sports for
anyonae interested? Wall, when they have met the proportionality test.

The third prong Is 8ven more nebulous than the first. How Is the concept
of "interests and abilites” measured? It 1s entirely unclear whether the un.versity
can take Surveys and use them as representations of the interests and abiities of
the student population due to recent court decisions. Some will clam that
surveys can not show the latent interest that would be there if a sport wera
offarad. How in the world 1S a university to comply with a standard like that”!
Thus. schools fall back on, you guessed it. the proportionality rule.

So, If a university's numbers do not add up  they either add opportunities
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tor women twhich 1s 1n line with providing more opoorturities as Congress
irtendead). or they ehiminate enough men’s sports teams to meet their numerical
objectives ! what | consider to be the opposite of Congressional intent).

The proportionality rule 1s easier because universities know what they
have to do 1o comply. No one i1s sure how to comply with interests and abilities
nor does OCR give universities much direction on thase i1ssu8s.

In tact 1n some cases. it appears OCR actuallv makes it saem that there s
no way to comply with Titte IX unless a university reaches proportionaiity. Again
and again universities submit plans to OCR for compliance. only to have them
rejected because they do not attain substantial proportionalty

This ve facto reliance on proportionality alone leads me to these questions.
Are we as a nation saying that numbers alone indicate discnmination? Has this,
in fact, become a guota system? And more importantly. have we creates a quota
system that does not help the underrepresented sex as much as it should because
univarsities simply cut the "overrepresented” sex as a means of meeting the test?
It does not haip create opportunities for women when a school simply cuts a
spcrt such as soccer, swimming or wrasthng to comply.

And we should not support such tactics. This only hurts young women
and men across the nation who are demied the opportunities that should be
attorded to them.

The banefits of sport in general the values of fair play and teamwork, of
stretching yourself to the fuliest and pushing your body to 1ts utmost performance
- will be lost on these women and men who will not get the opportunity they
should have. They are caught in the unintanded consequences of Title IX. They
arg caught in a quota system which makes them a number and not an athlete. It
1s not what Congrass intended and 1t should not be allowed to continue.

Many claim the problem is money. But even this argument nngs hoilow
when you consider the investigators manual does not exempt teams supported by
private funds (using no federal money) from the proportionality equation. For
instance, at Princeton University, the Wrestling Alumm put forward a $2.3 milhon
endowment for the $100.000 per year program. But this does not keep
Piinceton from having to comply with propcrtionaiity rules.

So. ~hat are the answers to thuis dilemma? | do not claim to have all of
the answers today, and i am as anxious as you are to hear the testimony of so
many who are strugghng with this 1ssue. They are really the experts. However, |
would tike to offer some thoughts on where Congress should be headed.

The overnding goals should be to follow policies that encourage schools to
add. rather than subtract athletic opportunity.

As ! alluded to earher, OCR should give more specific guidance to
universities about how they can comply with the second and third prongs of the
“opporturuties test.” Congrass should take back controi of this process because
the courts are making determinations that brning everything back to proportionality.
OCR then, n turn, acq'nesces to court rulings  The second and third prongs
become meaningless if they are not further defined. Congress has abrogated our
responsibility 1 we allow this to continue
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OCR also needs tc ciearly define who :s a participant for purposas of these
calculations. Should a school count every kia who tries out tor the team,
everyone who suits up for compatition. or should opportunity slots be countad
nsteao” Forinstance should a school count a cross country runner who also
runs track as one participant or two athleuc opportunity slots’> And. should
universities be hald responsibie if the slots they have upen for women are then
not filled? Thase i1ssues are also part of an ongoing rulemakng In response to
Equity 1n Athletics Disclosure Act passed by Congress iast year These issues dra
important 10 any university that seeks to comply with the proportionahty test.

However. maybe e need to think n broader terms - to find a way to
encourage Title IX compliance without the use of quotas. We do not assume that
everyone who enrolls at a university wants (or given the opportunity would} ba in
band. Let s face it, not everyone wants to plav the tuba. But we operate under
similar assumpuons when we consider athletics. Proporticnality at the very least.
should be based on those in tha interastad population rather than evervone
enrolled. ! urge the commttes to consider craative solutions to ending the
sontinuing discnmnation out thera without using proportionaiity.

“inallv. | chailange all of us to think about our intent n this legislauon. Did
Congress ntend for Title X to result in the ehmination of athletic oppoitunities for
anyone? Can any of tgrsay that we want Title IX to be implemented In such a
way® -

I really disturbs me when people claims that it i1s fine to cut opportunities
for men to eradicate discrmination. Wall, Mr, Chairman - that is not fine. That
view represents everything that is wrong about Title I1X. When it ceasas to be a
law to work for positive improvements in the future and simply becomes a way to
get back at the systems that perpetrated discrimination, we have lost our focus
of what it means to work toward gender equity. It doesn’t help anyone to just
keep tearing the future of thess kids out from under them.

So, | hope this hearing will lay the groundwork for some positive changas
to our present system of Title IX. Thank you for your attention.
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Chairman McKEON. Mrs. Collins.

STATEMENT OF HON. CARDISS COLLINS, A REPRESENTATIVE
IN CONGRESS FROM THE STATE OF ILLINOIS

Mrs. COLLINS. Mr. Chairman and Members of the subcommittee,
I certainly appreciate this opportunity to testify on Title IX and its
imgact upon sports. For the past four years, when I chaired the
Subcommittee on Commerce, Consumer Protection, and Competi-
tiveness, I took a particular interest in this subject. The sub-
committee held meny hearings on gender equity, and four others
on college sports in general, conducted workshops, attended NCAA
meetings, and had the opportunity to listen to dozens of interested
parties on the subject.

During that period, I learned that many concepts taken as fact
simply are not. Frankly, I have learned that there is only one over-
riding fact and it is simply this: The number of girls and young
women interested in participating in sports has been increasing by
leaps and bounds cver the past two decades. That is a very simple
truth, but it is at the heart of the debate over Title IX and cannot
be ignored. Too often those with very little contact with what is
going on in our schools, or perhaps those without daughters or
nieces or granddaughters, fail to understand that the sports scene
is radically different from the way it was a generation ago. Vast
numbers of girls and young women are now playing sports with the
same enthusiasm that generations of boys and young men have
shown. They play all kinds of sports, and they play them very well.

Whether Title IX has been responsible for generating this enthu-
siasm, or whether Title IX has been a force for making schools
react to this interest, is irrelevant. What is relevant is that Title
IX guarantees women the same opportunities as men.

I am sure that during the course of your hearings you will hear
the same old tired arguments that Title IX is taking opportunities
away from men and that Ticle IX establishes quotas. Most of these
arguments come from schocl administraters or football coaches who
fear that increasing opportunities for women will come out of their
hides or, better still, out of their school’s pocketbooks.

The reality is the exact opposite. Athletic directors and coaches
are the ones who establish the quotas, if you will, at the schools.
They decide, often arbitrarily, how many men and how many
women get to play sports. Schools, not tge Department of Edu-
cation, are responsible for quotas assuring that men receive over
two-thirds of all opportunities and 75 cents of every dollar spent on
sports. The purpose of Title IX is to eliminate these artificial
quotas and ensure that opportunities are based on student interest,
without gender bias.

Title IX simply says that no person shall, on the basis of sex, be
excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be sub-
jected to discriminaticn under any education program or activity
receiving Federal financial assistance.

The law does not require fixed quotas. The law has been inter-
preted to mean that if schools have participation rates equal to en-
rollment rates, the school is automaticall% considered in compli-

ance. However, even if the numbers are not the same, the regula-
tions recognize a school as being in compliance either by showing
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a history of expanding opportunities in women’s programs or by
showing that the interests of women have been accommodated.

This is not an odd interpretation of the law. The NCAA Gender
Equity Task Force repert of July 26, 1993, states, “The ultimate
goal for each institution should be that the numbers of male and
female athletes are substantially proportionate to their numbers in
the institution’s undergraduate student population.” The report
continues, “Thus, the (a) participation, (b) efforts, and (c¢) interests
test of the Title IX regulation are the appropriate tests for equi-
table participation.” The report further notes that “proportionality
does not require fixed quotas.”

Unfortunately, some school administrators have been opposed to
these simple guidelines, which were endorsed by the NCAA. In
some cases, they have dismal records of participation of women,
show no efforts to increase opportunities for women, and in the face
of protests of cutting of women teams sports, go to court with a
straight face and argue that there just isn’t interest by women in
sports. Their arguments often have as much foundation as Al
Campanis’s assertion that Blacks lack the skill to be major league
managers.

To understand what Title IX is all about, let me just provide two
analogies. Suppose a family has a son who enjoys playing ball in
the backyard, basketball at the gym, or soccer at the park. A sec-
ond child comes along, but the family income does not change. Do
we assume that the second child’s interest in the same sports can
only be accommodated at the expense of the first child? Of course
not. It may be necessary for the two children to learn to share the
baseball bat or the basketball. We don't give one child some artifi-
cial priority over supplies or even the use of the backyard. You
would be surprised that many of the Title IX cases boil down to lit-
tle more than the need for the men’s teams to share resources,
share playing fields, and share prime times with the women’s
team.

Let's look at an analogy in the schools. Suppose that women take
an increasing interest in chemistry and start enrolling in greater
numbers for chemistry courses. The school may do a number of
things to accommodate this increased interest. They may add more
teachers, establish additional iab times, build more labs, or create
bigger classes. It is also possible that some kids just may not be
able to take the class, as often happens at colleges when popular
courses are oversubscribed. The one policy that I think we all rec-
ognize as unthinkable, however, would be a policy that says we will
accornmodate the additional interest by women only after the tradi-
tioral number of male students is accommodated. The same should
be true for sports.

Observers of college sports can recount dozens of examples of
patterns of sexual discrimination over decades. Women often have
far inferior training facilities, practice fields, practice times, and
game times. On road trips, there may be three or four women in
a room while the men have single rooms.

In the case of Colgate, where the women’s team wanted to in-
crease their budget from $6,000 to $12,000, but were denied, the
school increased the men's team’s stick budget to the same $12,000.
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The men’s team had a budget of $300,000, while the women’s team
received a meager $4,000.

At the start of my testimony, I mentioned that the biggest prob-
lem in the debate over Title IX is the assumption of “facts” that
are fully myths. Therefore, let me leave you with just a few of these
myths, and the actual facts as I see them.

Myth #1: The increased participation of women in sports has
come at the expense of men. The facts: According to the NCAA it-
self, over the past 15 years, participation in women’s sports in-
creased by 16,320 while the participation in men’s sports increased
by 12,320. For every new dollar spent on women, two dollars was
spent on men.

Myth #2: Football actually pays the costs of women'’s sports, so
football should be excluded from Title IX considerations. The fact:
Again, according to the NCAA, an analysis of 1989 budgets found
that 45 percent of Division I-A schools reported a deficit in foot-
ball, while 94 percent of Division I-AA reported a deficit; and that
98 percent of Divisions II and III schools operated at a deficit. Of
the 45 percent of Division I-A schools reporting a deficit in 1989
in football, the average deficit was $638,000, which was up from
$251,000 in 1981.

Myth #3: The Department of Education is imposing quotas on
schools for Title IX compliance. The fact: The Department of Edu-
cation and the Office of Civil Rights have been spectacularly unsuc-
cessful in forcing schools to do anything. A study by the LBJ School
of Public Affairs at the University of Texas found that OCR has
failed to provide effective and adequate enforcement and guidance
consistent with the letter and spirit of Title IX. That is a quote. In
fact, victims of sex discrimination testified at our hearings that
OCR was the last place they would go to seek relief. They had to
turn to the courts.

Myth #4: Women’s sports have no popularity with the public and,
therefore, can generate no revenue. The fact: While it is true that
schools that fail to provide any promotion for women’s sports and
schedule teams at odd hours fmcf)the results self-fulfilling, interest
in women’s sports is on the rise. At Stanford, for example, average
attendance for women’s basketball was 5,284 compared to 5,386 for
the men. The 17,000 seats for the women’s Final Four games were
sold out last September. The women'’s final game on Sunday after-
noun had higher ratings than the NBA game opposite it and higher
ratings than a men’s semifinal the day before.

In summary, when you get to know the facts, you tind out that
the issue is simply how schools accommodate the growing interest
in women’s sports. If schools stick to quotas to ensure artificial ad-
vantage for men, the courts will strike them down. However, if
schools take steps to accommodate that interest, everyone's child
will benefit. It is time for the schools to share their resources fairly
and eliminate their self-imposed quotas.

Thank you.

[The prepared statement of Mrs. Collins follows:]
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TESTIMONY OF HON. CARDISS COLLINS
BEFORE SUBCOMMITTEE ON POST SECONDARY EDUCATION,
TRAINING, AND LIFE LONG LEARNING

MAY 9, 1995

Mr. Chairman. and Members of the subcommittee. 1 appreciate this opportunity to testify
on Title IX and its impact upon sponis. For the past four years. when 1 chaired the
Subcommittee on Commerce. Consumer Protection. and Competitiveness. [ took a particular
interest in this subject. The Subcommittee held four hrarings on gender equity, and four others
on vollege sports general. conducted workshops. attended NCAA meetings. and had the
upportunity to listen to dozens of interestec parties in the subject.

During that period. I leamed that many concepts taken as facts simply are not. Frankly,
[ have learned that there is only one overriding fact. and 1t is simply this:

The number of girls and young women interested in participating in sports has been
increasing in leaps and bounds over the past two decades.

That's a very simple truth, but it is at the heart of the debate over Title 1X. and one that
cannot be ignored. Too often those with very little contact with what is going on in our schools,
or perhaps those without daughters. fail to understand the sports scene is radically different from
it was a generation ago. Vast numbers of girls and young women are now playing sports with
the same enthusiasm that generations of boys and young men have shown. They play all kinds
of sports. and they play them well.

Whether Title IX has been responsible for generating this enthusiasm. or instead. has
teen a force to make schools react to this interest is irrclevant. What is relevant is that women
want the same opportunities as men. and Title IX guarantees them that right.

I ain sure that during the course of your hearings you will hear the same arguments that
you hear against affirmative action -- namely that Title IX is taking opportunities away from
men. or that Title IX establishes quotas for women. Most of these arguments come from school
administrators or football coaches who fear that increasing opportunities for women will come
out of their hides.

The reality is the exact opposite. Athletic directors and coaches are the ones who
establish quotas at the schools. They decide. often arbitrarily, how many men and how many
women get to play sports.  Schools. not the Department of Education. are responsible for quotas
assuring that men receive over two-thirds of all opportunitics. and 75 cents out of every dollar
spent on sports.  The purpose of Title IX is to eliminate these artificial quotas. and permt
opportunities to be based upon student interzst. without gender bias.

Title 1X simply says that no person shall. on the basis of sex. be excluded from
participation in. be denied the benefits of, or be subjected to discrimination under any education
program or activity receiving Federal financial assistance.
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The law does not require fixed quotas. The law has been interpreted to mean that if
schools have participation rates equal to enrollment rates, the school is automatically considered
in compliance. However, cven if the numbers are not the same, the regulations allow a school
tu show compliance either through a history of expanding opportunities in women's programs,
or by showing that the interests of women have been fully accommodated.

This is not an odd interpretation of the law. The NCAA Gender Equity Task Force
Report of July 26. 1993 states. “The ultimate goal for each institution should be that the
numbers of male and female athletes are substantially proportionate to their numbers in the
institution’s undergraduate student population.” The report continues, “Thus, the (a)
participation. (b) efforts and (c) interests tests of the Title IX regulation are the appropriate tests
for equitable participation.” The report also notes that ~proportionality does not require fixed
quotas.”

Unfortunately, some schoo! administrators have been opposed to these simple guidelines,
which were endorsed by the NCAA. In some cases. they have disinal records of participation
of women, show no efforts to increase opportunities for women, and in the face of protests over
the cutting of women's team sports. go into court with a straight face and argue that there just
isn’t interest by women in sports. Their arguments often have as much foundation as Al
Campanis's assertion that Blacks lack the skills tc “e major lcague managers.

To understand what Title IX is all about, let me just provide two analogies. Suppose a
fanuly has a son and he enjoys playing ball in the backyard. basketball at the gym. or soccer at
the park. A second child comes along, but the family income does not change. Do we assume
that the second child’s interests in the same sports can only be accommodated at the expense of
the first child? Of course not It iay become necessary for the two children to learn to share
the baseball bat or the basketball. We don't give one child some artificial priority over supplies,
or even the use of the back yard. You would be surprised that many of the Title IX cases boil
down to little more than the need for the men's teams to share resources. share playing fields.
and share prime times with the women's tcams.

Let's look at an analogy in the schools. Suppose that women take an increasing interest
in chemistry, and start enrolling in greater numbers for chemistry courses. The school may do
a number of things to accommodate this increased interest. They may add more teachers,
establish additional lab times, build more labs, or create bigger classes. It is also pessible that
some kids may just not be able to take the class, as often happens at colleges when popular
course; are oversubscribed. The one policy that { think we all recognize is unthinkable,
however, would be a policy that says we will accommodate the additional interest by women
only after the traditional number of male students is accommodated. The same should be true
for sports.

Observers of college sports can recount dozens of cxamples of patterns of sex
‘discrimination over decades. Women often have far inferior training facilities, practice fields,
practice times, and game times. On road trips. there may be three or four women to a room,
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while the men have single rooms. In the case of Colgate, where the women's team wanted to
increase their budget from $6.000 to $12.000. but were denied. the school increased the men's
team’'s stick budget to the same $12,000. The men's team had a budget of $300,000, while the
women received $4,000.

At the start of my testimony [ mentioned that the biggest problem in the debate over Title
IX is the assumption of "facts” that are actually myths. Therefore, let me leave you with just
a few of these myths. and the actual facts.

Myth #1: The increased participation of women in sports has come at the expense of
men. The facts: According to the NCAA, over the past 15 years, participation in women's
sports increased by 16,320 while participation in men's sports increased by 12,320. For every
new dollar spent on women, $2 have been spent on men.

Myth #2: Football actually pays the cost of women's sports, so football should be
excluded from Title IX consideradons. The facts: According to the NCAA, an analysis of 1989
budgets found that 45% of Division I-A schools reported a deficit in footbatl, while 94% of
Division I-AA reported a-deficit. Of Divisions II and I schools. 98 % operated at a deficit.
Of the 45% of Division I-A schools reporting a deficit in football. the average deficit was
$638,000, which was up from $251.000 in 1981.

Myth #3: The Department of Education is imposing quotas on schools for Title IX
compliance. The facts: The Department of Education and the Office of Civil Rights, have been
spectacularly unsuccessful in forcing schools to do anything. A study by the LBJ School of
Public Affairs at the University of Texas found that “OCR has failed to provide effective and
adequate enforcement and guidance consistent with the letter and spirit of Title IX.” In fact,
victims of sex discrimination testified at our hearings that OCR was the last place they would
2o to seck relief. They tumed to the courts.

Myth #4: Women's sports have no popularity with the public, and thercfore can gencrate
no revenue, The facts: While it 1s true that schools that fail to provide any promotion for
women's sports and schedule games at odd hours find the results self-fulfilling, interest in
women's sports is on the rise. At Stanford, average attendance for women's basketball was
5.284 compared to 5.386 for the men. The 17,000 seats for the women's Final Four games
wee sold out last September. The women’s final game on Sunday afternoon had higher ratings
than the NBA game opposite it, and higher ratings than a men’s semifinal the day before.

In summary. when you get to know the facts, you find out that the issue is simply how
do schools accomincedate the growing interest in woinen's sports  If schools stick to quotas to
~nsure an artificial advantage for men. the courts wil: strike them down. However, if schools
take steps 10 accommodate this interest, everyone's child will benefit. It is time for schools to
share their resources fairly, and eliminate their self-imposed quotas.
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Chairman MCKEON. Thank you. We have some Members here
today who are not on our subcommittee, and we appreciate their
interest. We have Representative Ganske from Iowa; Bill Barrett
from Nebraska who is on our full committee, but is not a Member
of this subcommittee; Mrs. Mink from Hawaii; and Ranking Mem-
ber of the full committee, Mr. Shaw from Missouri.

We will try to hold the questions to Members of the committee
unless you have—-

Mr. CrAY. Mr. Chairman, don't confuse me with Clay Shaw.

Mr. WILLIAMS. This is William Clay.

Chairman MCKEON. Actually, Clay Shaw is a great one to be
confused with, and I apologiz=.

Mr. CLAY. He is a good friend of mine, too.

Chairman MCKEON. But it is nice to be recognized for who we
really are. And, again, I am new at this and appreciate your for-
bearance.

Mr. Williams, are you ready for questions?

Mr. WiLL1aMS. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Congressman, much ofy your testimony with regard to the fix that
you would like to see enacted for Title IX had to do with rule-
making. Are you encouragin% a legislative change that would re-
quire a change in rulemaking?

Mr. HASTERT. Well, I think the law certainly set out a policy
that, over the years, has been developed by the Department of Edu-
cation, now OCR, and I think it is misdirected. I think the propor-
tionality rule is something of “unintended consequences.” It was
never intended to cut back participation of men in athletics. I
mean, this is the only civil rigﬁts law that I know of that punishes
innocent bystanders, and this is what is happening at many of our
universities today.

I can give you numbers of sports that have been diminished in
the last decade. But what I am saying is that we need to take a
look at the use of proportionality. There is a three-pronged rule.
Proportionality is one. Accommodating interests and abilities is an-
other. Showing a history and continuing practice of program expan-
sion in the past three years is the other prong. You know, the origi-
nal rulemaking said all three prongs should be treated in an equal
way—that is, complying with any one of the three meets the stand-
ard. That is not being done today. Proportionality is the only one
that is being considered.

Mr. WILLIAMS. But that is all an interest of rulemaking rather
than the law. That is not in the law. Those are in the regulat.ons.
Would you have us require a change in that rulemaking process.

Mr. HASTERT. As you see, I don’t have legislation, but this needs
to be brought forward. We need to look at it. That is one of the jobs
of Congress, to have oversight on what is happening. And I think
we need to elevate that an(?take a look at it because I don’t think
that was the intent of the law and that is exactly why we are doing
it.

Mr. WiLL1AMS. Thank you.

Congresswoman Collins, we appreciate the good work that you
and your committee have done in previous Congresses concerning
oversight of this matter. Did you find any “unintended con-
sequences” from Title IX during your oversight visits or hearings?

€y
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Mrs. COLLINS. No, I did not find any “unintended consequences”
at all of the law itself. What I did find was a reluctance on the part
of school administrators to fully implement Title IX. When Title IX
first became law, a great number of universities began to comply.
As time went on, that interest began to fade. By the time we looﬁed
at the law again, we found very little compliance at all. What had
hapgened is that somebody had just forgotten that Title IX was on
the books, and they weren’t doing anything about it.

What surprised me the most guring our hearings and investiga-
tions was the fact that, even though Title IX was on the books,
OCR was not as vigilant as it could have been. What has happened
as of now is that instead of OCR looking at this and saying, well,
Federal dollars are not being spent fairly, they sort of closed their
eyes to that and left an opening for young students themselves to
look into Title IX and take their cases to court themselves.

Now it seems to me that is an awful burden to put on a stu-
dent—to have to go through the judicial system on their own to
say, well, we want to play soccer. We, as girls, have a right to be
en%aged in sports, as do boys in whatever their activities happen
to be.

It has been reported here, and many people seem to think, that
there has been a decline in men’s sports, but there has been, on
the other hand, sort of a seesaw effect, if you will, where there has
been a decline in men’s sports, there has been an increase in wom-
en’s sports, so the things are beginning to balance out because of
the renewed interest in Title IX.

The one thing I do want to point out is this and everybody—both
Congressman Hastert and I haven't really focused on the big point.
The big point around Title IX happens to center around money.
Football, it seems to me, is thought to be sacrosanct in our colleges
and universities. That is because college football—to a large degree
because of the advent of television and televised foothall games—
is a big money maker. It isn't the onlﬁ money maker for a college
or university, but it is the one that the coaches and athletes and
the Presidents want to keep.

Because of that, everybody says, well, you know, we can get rid
of wrestling. We can get rid of men in other activities, but we are
going to keep the football team, and we are going to have squads
of a hundred on the football team—twice as many as we have for
the Chicago Bears, as a matter of fact—and we are going to give
them all this money. We are going to have them traveling the coun-
t?; in airplanes and roaring up the road in 1iir-conditioned buses,
whereas the women are not going to have these kinds of funds. The
men are going to have their own rooms when they play out of their
school environment. Women are going to have three or four in one
room. They are not going to have the same kind of practice time.
They are not going to have the soccer fields. They are not going to
have many of the things that are provided for the young men. This
is nefarious, something that has to be corrected.

Title IX hopes to correct some of these Tproblems. It seems to me
we have to talk about the whole thing. The one thing that seems
to be forgotten—and then I am going to conclude—is that the pri-
mary function of any educationaFinstitution is to educate our chil-
dren, to teach them goals and morals and high standards, et
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cetera. But when we have discrimination involved, one group of
people against another, women against men, we are not doing our
Jobs. There is more than teaching literature. There is more than
teaching theatrics. There are other things that are life enhancing,
and certainly the ability to participate in a fair manner in an edu-
cational institution is something we want our girls to know as well
as men.

Mr. WiLLIAMS. Thank you, Mrs. Collins. Mr. Chairman, ...

Chairman MCKEON. Mr. Funderburk.

Mr. FUNDERBURK. No questions, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman MCKEON. Mr. Gunderson.

Mr. GUNDERSON. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

I had three 9 a.m. meetings, so I apologize for being late. I want
to follow up, Congresswoman Collins, on your comments there. I
assume—and [ mean this in a positive sense—you are a supporter
of affirmative action.

Mrs. COLLINS. All the way.

Mr. GUNDERSON. I am not sure, I am struggling with that one
myself. But isn’'t the premise of affirmative action to take where we
are and to build upon that? My concern with the interpretation of
Title IX is that it doesn’t build up women’s sports.

Mrs. COLLINS. But it has.

Mr. GUNDERSON. Does it say that we are going to bring men
gown to have an equal level? I don’t know how we get there from

ere.

Mrs. COLLINS. It doesn’t bring men down. It hasn’t brought men
down. What has happened is that in order to make a point and to

keep from lowering the number of men on these huge football
squads, these athletic directors and coaches have decided to sac-
rifice the men who happen to be in gymnastics, those who happen
to be in soccer, those who hapgen to be on swimming teams, et

cetera, so the students will be t
we have been treated unfairly.

This has happened in our State, as Mr. Hastert has pointed out,
and it has happened across the country. The fair thing to say is,
well, you don’t need 100 young men on a football squad. You need
so many men to play football but you also need women because
women are interested in sports. They like teamwork. They need to
know how to be competitive. They want to feel good about them-
selve: in a sports arena as well as men. That is the thing about
fairness. That is about the whole boat rising up, if you will.

Mr. GUNDERSON. I am not against——

Mrs. CoLLINS. And [—

Mr. GUNDERSON. [continuing] against sports in any way, shape,
or form. My question is: Is the only way to achieve that by tearing
down men’s sports?

Mrs. CoLLINS. I don’t think they are being torn down.

Mr. GUNDERSON. How are you going to finance all of this?

Mrs. COLLINS. How is it bein !gmanced now?

Mr. GUNDERSON. Not out of tie Federal budget.

Mrs. COLLINS. Are you saying that the funds that the Federal
Government gives to these colleges and universities should all go
to the men and not go to the women? I dont think that is what
is intended.

e ones who are saying, you know,




27

Mr. GUNDERSON. Frankly, I don't think any taxpayer dollars
ought to go to sports.

Mrs. COLLINS. Why?

Mr. GUNDERSON. Because I think there are higher priorities in
American society than for taxpayer dollars to go to college sports.

Mrs. COLLINS. Well, if that is what you want—Ilet’s in fact make
sure that Title IX is spent exactly as you want it to be spent and
that is when a college or university does not comply with Title IX,
they ?ihould not get any more Federal funds. That is what Title IX
should——

Mr. GUNDERSON. That is what I understand.

Mr. Hastert wants to comment.

Mr. HASTERT. My good friend and colleague, and we have worked
on a lot of issues together in a more amicable way, the fact is that
in the State of Illinois, you know, it wasn’t the administration that
cut the sports on many of those issues, it was the OCR that said
you had to cut a minor sport. They didn’t say you had to cut foot-
ball. They said you cut swimming. You cut soccer. You cut baseball.
Cut wrestling. That is exactly what happened, and those schools
were given that choice and onf; that choice to. meet proportionality.

I can tell you, I disagree with my friend from Illinois. For exam-
ple, in men’s gymnastics, 20 years ago, when we had the 1976
Olympics, we had 138 teams competing in gymnastics—a very suc-
cessful year at the Montreal Olympics. Today, only 31 teams are
competing in gymnastics in this Nation. Thirty-one teams is not
enough teams to have a national tournament. That means future
generations of young men will be deprived of coaches to further
their ability to participate in this one sport.

Wrestling, men’s swimming, and water polo have all had divi-
sions in danger of losing their championships. Wrestling lost 120
programs in the last 10 years. One hundred twenty programs, Con-
gresswoman.

Mrs. CoLLINS. Did those programs go to the women?

Mr. HASTERT. Yes, they did in many cases.

Mrs. COLLINS. Well—

Mr. HASTERT. It is my time. At the same time, that sport had
a rising growth rate in both elementary and secondary levels.
Sixty-four men’s swimming teams have disappeared. Water polo is
down to 45 teams. It is not factual to say, in these cases, that
men’s sports have grown. They haven’t. They have been the victims
of Title IX.

Mr. GUNDERSON. Thank you.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman MCKEON. Ms. Woolsey.

Ms. WOOLSEY. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

1 would like to approach this from a different angle. I am a moth-
er of three sons and a daughter. One of my sons was a wrestler;
another was an All-State, both in high school and college, baseball
player; the other, in college, Honorable Mention, l-American
Tackle; and my daughter was a skater, a competitive skater. And
I am absolutely certain that sports contributed a lot to molding all
four of my children into very solid individuals as young adults.

I also inow that is why they stayed out of troub%e when they
were in high school—they were busy, they were involved, they were
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doing something that was important to them, and they were too
tired to get in trouble.

Also, before I came to Congress, I was a human resources profes-
sional, and it was very, very clear to me that the differences be-
tween young men and young women who graduated college and got
into the business world, had a lot to do with whether or not they
had learned teamwork, ‘whether they had gained self-confidence
and poise, and whether they had learried through something other
than just reading books, how to get along in an atmosphere where
you had to give and take, win and lose, and go forward.

The young people who had played sports had an advantage over
those who didn’t. Now, they could also be young people who played
an instrument or did something other than just plain study out of
a book.

My point here is, when we are talking about Title IX, not to take
away something from the young men, but to bring women up to the
same level. Women have to have the same advantages that men
have when they enter the real world after college. And sports gives
them scholarships, poise, and self-confidence. It is a learning expe-
rience, whether it involves team competition or individual competi-
tion, like my daughter, as a competitive skater.

I would just say that, if it is necessary to fix Title IX, we fix it
by coming up to a higher level, not by going down to a lower level.
We should do everything possible to give equal opportunities to
both the young women and the young men.

Last year, I worked with you, Congresswoman Collins, on the
athletic disclosure bill that was passed. I am wondering, now that
the bill is law, has it had an impact and what have you seen from
that?

Mrs. CoLLINS. I believe that it has had an impact. One of the
things that I iiave learned from speaking to people who are inter-
ested in the law, is they feel that it has enabled them to have sort
of another prong from which to work to encourage young people
who are really interested in getting into sports to know that they
can, they have the opportunity to do so. I think it has worked, and
I am very pleased with that.

Ms. WoOOLSEY. I have a young woman in my district who is in
high school who plays on the boys’ football team. She and her
mother came to me; they are very, very interested in what happens
with this Title IX debate because she would like the opportunity
to play football in college.

My son was an Honorable Mention, All-American Tackle. I would
not want any other son to be tackled by him, much less a daughter.

Could you respond on women in contact sports?

Mr. HASTERT. That is up to the individual. It's the individual’'s
choice. I know one of the people testifying today, T.J. Kerr, from
California State at Bakersfield, has initiated a coed wrestling team
and has had some success with it. I think that is an individual de-
cision.

But you are right on point. I believe exactly what you believe,
that we should expand the opportunities for women, not bring
down the opportunities for men. In your State, in California, your
sons today, with recent decisions in California, probably wouldn’t

34
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have the same opportunities in wres: .ag and baseball that they
would have had five or six years ago in college.

Ms. WOOLSEY. I know my time is up, but I would like to suggest
that we bring this debate up to that level, that our goal be to
equalize this, not to take something away from someone. As soon
as we start pitting winners and losers against each other, we have
lost the debate, because it won't work.

Mr. HASTERT. That is exactly my thesis, so I thank you.

Ms. WooLseY. Thank you, Mr. Hastert, and thank you, Mr.
Chairman.

Chairman MCKEON. I think that we may have been a little
confrontational here, but I think that is because of the goal that
we are working for. Just by bringing it up, I think we have rallied
the troops and people are taking sides and fighting over a small
piece of the pie, instead of saying what can be done to enhance the
whole program.

As | gather from what Mr. Hastert was saying, first of all, not
cutting one at the expense of another is how can we expand oppor-
tunities for all.

Mr. HASTERT. What has happened in reality is that the Depart-
ment of Education, through tge OCR, has given ultimatums to
many schools saying, if you don’t wish to expand a woman'’s sport,
you drop two or three men's sports to get close to proportionality.
We are saying that is not the intent of Title IX, it is wrong, and
we should take another look at it.

Chairman MCKEON. That is, I think, the whole purpose of this
hearing. This hasn’t been looked at for a number of years, and we
are trying to determine what we can do to get everyone in the boat
together. That is probably the biggest thing that I have been able
to do in coming to Congress is say let’s try to work together. This
probably would be a good place to be doing it.

Mr. Roemer.

Mr. ROEMER. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

I welcome my fellow colleague from the State of Illinois before
our subcommittee this morning. Certainly many of us, if not all of
us, on this subcommittee and in Congress, agree with the spirit of
law of Title IX. We want to make sure that girls and women have
the opportunities that boys and men have in our society.

As I go around the Tl)":ird District of Indiana, I find more and
more young girls are playing soccer, softball, baseball, yet manf' of
these young women and girls have not yet moved into the college
ranks to see this reciprocated and reflected at the collegiate level.
For example, at the University of Notre Dame, we have 175 young
inen try out for the baseball team, and only 35 or 30 can make it.
We have only 25 or 27 young women try out for the softball team,
and most of them make it. We have one of the best women's soft-
ball teams in the country, ranked in the top 20, and we are very
proud of that. How do we get this law to work so that we encourage
more women at the University of Notre Dame, 175, to try out for
the softball team and to make that softball team and maybe in-
crease the numbers to 35 or 40, ultimately on the roster? How do
other schools like the University of Iowa and the University of
Washington accomplish much of Title IX without eliminating men’s
programs?

92-374 95-2
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Mr. Hastert, you have said a couple of times that the OCR has
required that men’s programs be cut. How can you attribute this
directly—and maybe you have information that I haven’t seen
yet—to Title IX rather than simply to some of the cnst-cutting that
is currently going on at many universities?

Mr. HASTERT. Because in specific instances, when the adminis-
tration decides to cut a sport because of cost-cutting, just drop a
sport and say it is because of cost-cutting. Others have been taken
to court and entered in with OCR and had a consent decree or
some type of an agreement that OCR will back off their court case
if they drop two men’s sports.

Mr. ROEMER. And you have seen this in writing from OCR?

Mr. HASTERT. President Jorns from Eastern Illinois University
will testify today that that happened in his school, and through our
efforts they reengaged the OCR so that they did make a change.
I believe Northern Illinois University said that if they expanded
one women’s sport and dropped two men’s sports, then the OCR
would back off their case. It is there. It happens time after time.
after time, after time.

Mr. ROEMER. I would certainly like to see the proof of that in
writing—not that I question what you have said at all—but I will
ask the same question to the representatives of the Department of
Education’s OCR office, and I appreciate your answer.

Representative Collins, let me ask you a question. You certainly
have made a very compelling case that we have not complied, that
we have a long way to go. What suggestions would you have for
us to improve opportunities for women at the collegiate level, and,
as I gave the example earlier, how do we encourage young girls to
get involved so that we don’t see this problem later on?

Mrs. COLLINS. I would like to see OCR begin to take some of
these cases to court themselves, rather than having the young girls
do so. Then I would like to see the Federal Government deny some
of these universities Federal funds. I believe if that were to hap-
pen, they would all begin to look at the law and say, well, we are
going to be in compliance. Until that happens, I think you are still
goin% to have these arguments, I think you are still going to have
people ignoring Title IX, and I think you are still going to have the
same problems, where you have the school administrators, you
have the NCAA, which, of course, as you know, is composed of the
school administrators and the athletic directors and coaches, doing
the same things that they are doing now. There has to be some-
thing to give them a jolt to let them know that we are very serious
about giving young women an opportunity.

It was said here that perhaps we ought to raise funding or create
some kind of a mechanism by which the men can stay where the
are. But we know the Federal funds aren’t there. Who are we fool-
ing? We are kidding ourselves if we think the money is going to
drop out of the sky. The money isn’t going to drop out of the sky.
I think we need to give enforcement a%ig try. That is what I woufld
like to see happen.

Mr. HASTERT. But you will note that there are a lot of programs,
such as at Notre Dame and at others across the country, that offer
women slots, scholarship slots, but don’t have enough women inter-
ested in participating. The interest isn't there, so in order to meet
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proportionality, they siart to cap the number of walk-ous and cap
men’s participation, which doesn’t cost the school any money at
all

Mrs. COLLINS. But there are schools where there is a great deal
of interest. Why do you think we have had these courts cases? The
women have gone to court saying they want to play soccer, saying
they want to have a swimming team, saying they want to play
squash or have archery. They want to have these various kinds of
sports, and they have been denied the opportunity.

You can always point to one or two isolated incidents and say
they are indicative of what is happening across university cam-
puses all over the world. Not the case. I believe we have to have
enforcement. I believe the OCR is the place to do it, and until that
happens, you are going to have these kinds of problems.

Mr. ROEMER. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman McKroxN. Thank you.

Mr. Barrett would like to acknowledge a member of his State be-
fore he has to leave for another meeting.

Mr. BARRETT. I thank the Chairman for recognizing me.

As a Member of the full Committee on Economic and Educational
Opportunities, it is a pleasure to be able to sit in for a moment in
this hearing today which is important to so many people. I want
to take a minute to reflect on the subcommittee’s records, that Dr.
Tom Osborne, the Coach of the National Champion Nebraska Corn
Huskers is in the audience today. As many of you know, he is the
winningest active college football coach in the Nation and was just
voted the National Coach of the Year. I think it is significant that
he is here today because of the continuing interest in a program
that has been successful.

And perhaps following up on Mr. Hastert's comments—while we
need to encourage. and should encourage, access to viabhle athletic
programs, we also need to be careful because we are walking a very
fine line not to penalize successful programs.

Sc I want to thank the Chairman for allowing me to introduce
a triend of mine who the last time we met was at the White House,
when Dr. Osborne had his winning Nebraska Corn Huskers in
Washington to meet the President a couple of months ago. I won-
der if Dr. Osborne would please stand and be recognized.

[Applause.]

Mr. BARRETT. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman McKroN. Thank you.

Mr. Reed.

Mr. REED. | have no questions,

Chairman McK®ON. I think that concludes all the questions

Mrs. MiNK. Could I ask a question of our colleague Mr. Hastert?

Mr. WiLL1aMs, Mr. Chairman, I ask unanimous consent that the
gentlelady, not a Member of this subcommittee, be recognized for
one question.

Mrs. MINK. [ know that the Office of Civil Rights will be testify-
ing also and presenting their side. I am very much interested in
your statement that with respect to Eastern Illinois, that the uni-
versity was given only one avenue to satisfy Title IX, and that was
the question of proportionality.
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The summaries that i1 have here indicate that there were no in-
creases in women’s athletic opportunities at the university since
1978, and that, taking that note, which was one of the three in the
regulations that you need to comply with, OCR searched for areas
which might very well meet the other requirements in the regula-
tions. And in searching for aspects of qualifications with respect to
the other two, OCR found that women students had requested es-
tablishment of programs and were ignored by the university. So, in
contrast to the illustration that at Notre Dame, programs were set
up, but women were not interested in participating, at Eastern Illi-
nois, specific requests by women athletes were ignored, and no new
programs were established for women since 1978.

Could you comment. on that?

Mr. HASTERT. First of all, President Jorns will testify on behalf
of Eastern Illinois. He is certainly an expert on that situation. My
understanding was that one of the sports that was demanded to be
put in place was field hockey. That is not an indigenous sport to
Illinois; it is more of an East Coast sport.

In addition, the OCR said, you eliminate two men’s sports. It is
the elimination of men’s sports that I think is egregious here. And
I think it is fine to grow women's sports as much as possible. I
have always been an advocate of that. But to meet proportionality
by eliminating men’s sports is wrong, whether it happens in Illi-
nois, or in Ohio, or in Hawaii, or in California. It is wrong to do
that. :

Mrs. MINK. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman MCKEON. Mr. Ewing.

Mr. EWING. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I appreciate being able
to participate as an observer and to have a question in your sub-
committee. I thought maybe I ought to be sitting out there between
my two colleagues from Illinois, both my good friends.

Congresswoman Collins, you seem to indicate that you would ad-
vocate more court cases to try to bring this into equality, the equal-
ity that you think is lacking. Recently, a university in my district
dropped a male sport and added the same sport on the women's
side. Would it not be then that the male athletes who can no longer
play soccer should be going to court to try to show that they have
been denied rights because we now have women's soccer.

Mrs. COLLINS. The court system is open to everybody. That is the
way of our country.

Mr. EwWING. I realize that, but do you think that will get to the
goal of equality? In this case, whatever the reason, whether finan-
cial or to come into compliance, they had decided that they will add
women’s sports and cut men’s sports to try to meet the guidelines
of the law and their budget requirements. But who does it leave
out? It leaves out male athletes who were involved in that sport.

Mrs. COLLINS. Who was left out before? It was the women who
wanted to play soccer.

Mr. EwING. Is that equality, though, to change where the dis-
crimination lies?

Mrs. COLLINS. It is not equality, but it equalizes the men and
women who want to play. You have both playing. However, if a
young man wants to go to court, he is welcome to go to court. That
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is what our system is for. Perhaps they will rule in his favor. He
ought to take it to court if he wants to.

Mr. EWING. That leaves the university with coming back to cut
a women’s sport then?

Mrs. COLLINS. They should have done the right thing in the first
place. It gets them off the hook by saying we have taken this case
to court and the judge is going to decide, rather than the adminis-
trator of the university making a decision before that time.

Mr. EwING. One follow-up question, Congresswoman. Would you
think that there could be a better way tc determine the interest be-
tween the sexes for sports than just saying you have 50 percent
women or 52 percent women, you will have 52 percent slots for fe-
males and 48 for men? Do you think there is a better way that we
can truly avoid—the point you made very aptly—both sides going
to court? Our courts are clogged with a lot of other things.

Mrs. COLLINS. I am interested in hearing suggestions that may
be out there. I have given my suggestions for more than four years
on this case. I would like to hear what others have to say. I want
to hear them say that football is not sacrosanct and that there is
an opportunity for women to participate in sports on an equal basis
with men.

Mr. EwING. Thank you.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman MCKEON. Thank you.

Football is not sacrosanct.

Mrs. COLLINS. Is that asking toc much, Mr. Chairman?

Chairman MCKEON. I wish we weren’t cn national television. I
would like to talk about this a little bit. In some places it is.

You said you were interested in ideas. One of the comments that
was made earlier is that the reasons why we have athletics are
that benefits are derived from teamwork and that participation and
exercise builds up your muscles. A lot of benefits come from athlet-
ics.

You know, I went to Brigham Young University, and one of the
things that they did when I went to school was to offer a very good
intermural sports program that really enlarged the opportunities.
I had great interest, just was never a very good player. But
through the intermural sports that they had broadly throughout
the school, we were able to participate and get all the other bene-
fits, even though we were never, some of us, able to play on a par
that would enable us to play on one of the major teams. That is
one possible suggestion where you could get all of the benefits that
come from sports, except for the very top competitors—most of
them, it seems—at university levels go on to professional sports at
some level. We appreciate—

Mr. HasTERT. Could I say one thing and follow up on what Con-
gressman Ewing said, and the encouragement by Representative
Collins to go to court. A lot of colleges and universities have a lim-
ited amount of money to spend on education—and that pie gets
smaller all the time—and are intimidated by being pushed into
court. Just as we saw in other types of liability and tort reform
cases, the very threat of going to court and having to sgend $1 mil-
lion, or $1.5 or $2 million that they need to spend for the education
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of young people, to defend themselves in court, in a Federal court
against a Federal Agency, they don’t see that they can win.

The way the law has been construed and the precedents set by
the Federal court, this is an intimidator. So I understand why my
good friend from Illinois wants to push people who feel they
weren't given a fair shake into Federal courts—because precedents
have been set, and the schools would rather settle than spend very
precious dollars that could be spent on education trying to defend
themselves in Federal court.

Mrs. COLLINS. Mr. Chairman, I would hate to think that the Fed-
eral court is an intimidator. That is strong language. It seems to
me that Federal courts are out there to be fair to all people. That
is pretty heavy.

Chairman MCKEON. Pretty heavy, and I think probably has a
great deal of truth.

Mrs. COLLINS. Yes, but let me tell you something; I would hate
to think that.

Chairman MCKEON. I want to thank you for bringing this up.

Congressman Hastert, it was your attention that brought this de-
hate and brought this hearmg, and I appreciate your doing that.
We will excuse the present panel how and move to the next panel.

Thank you very much.

Our next panel will be comprised of the Honorable Norma Cantu,
Assistant Secretary for Civil Rights, U.S. Department of Education;
Dr. Vartan Gregorian, President of Brown University, we will hear
more about him from Mr. Reed, and Dr. David Jorns, President of
Eastern Illinois University.

Mr. Reed.

Mr. REeD. Thank you very much.

Mr. Chairman, I would first like to thank you for holding the
hearing today on this very important topic, and I would especially
like to welcome Dr. Vartan Gregorian, the President of Brown Uni-
versity, who is here to testify today. President Gregorian is both a
distinguished member of the Rhode Island community and a na-
tional leader in educational policy.

It is good to see you, President Gregorian.

I am a strong supporter of Title IX and would not support any
efforts to weaken the statute. Since its passage over 20 years ago,
Title IX has led to greater opportunities for girls and women to
participate in athletics. Indeed, Title IX has shaped in a significant
and productive way the face of American education. We do not
want to lose this ground.

Efforts to increase athletic o gportumties for women at the inter-
collegiate level have filtered down to the high school and grade
school levels, where opportunities for girls to participate in athlet-
ics have grown significantly. Today, we will have the opportunity
to review the effects of Title IX and compliance activities associated
with the Office of Civil Rights at the Department of Education.

I welcome the witnesses here today, and I look forward to hear-
ing their testimony.

Again, I am particularly pleased to see President Gregorian here.
He is a major figure in our community.

Chairman MCKEON. Thank you.

(‘:_
NS




35

We will, in the intersst of time, ask the witnesses to summarize
their written statements, which will be made a part of the official
hearing record. We will go now to using the lights that you see
there. When the green light comes on, you have four minutes.
When the yellow hits, you have one minute. When the red hits,
there is a big hole that opens up ...

(Laughter.]

Chairman MCKEON. Let’s hear first from Ms. Cantu.

STATEMENT OF HON. NORMA CANTU, ASSISTANT SECRETARY
FOR CIVIL RIGHTS, U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

Ms CANTU. Good morning, Mr. Chairman, and Members of the
subcommittee. Although Title IX of the Education Amendments of
1972 passed 23 years ago, there is still much work to be done. I
really appreciate the opportunity to visit—that is a Texas phrase;
it is a verb—with this subcommittee to discuss what still must be
donle to fulfill the promise and to make the promise of Title IX a
reality.

I have been Assistant Secretary for Civil Rights at the Depart-
ment of Education for two years now. I appreciate being invited to
discuss the role of the Office of Civil Rights in making that promise
a reality for all students.

I need to take dead-on, right away, the issue of looking for com-
mon ground because I completely agree with the Chairman; that in
fact has been the theme that has been driving our Office for Civil
Rights, that looking for common ground, looking to serve all stu-
dents has been very important.

And I recall a conversation in my first year, when the College
Football Association came to talk to me about what they saw as
tension between men and women, and competition between men
and women. And what I urged them that first year that I was in
this position, I urged them to look for the similarity and focus on
the similarities rather than the differences. Because, together, I
urged that they could build a bigger base of support for athletics
rather than be divided and have it appear that they could not work
together. So I agree that we need to look for the common ground.

at 1 want to cover today, to summarize, is Title IX, the De-
partment’s regulation and policy, what it requires and what it does
rot require, some misunderstandings and a general description of
our approach and enforcement. I want to mention in closing why
we enforce Title IX.

It has been mentioned in earlier testimony what the history of
Title IX is. Let me just make two points about that history:

First, Title IX has enjoyed gipartisan support. It was passed
in 1972, in the spirit of bipartisanship, to ensure that all peo-
ple, men and women, were not subject to discrimination.

Second, several times Congress has continued to affirm its
commitment to Title IX. It has affirmed that Title IX covers all
sports. It has affirmed that Title IX is intended to be enforced,
and Congress has specifically rejected any attempts to pull
back or to curtail the enforcement of the Title IX.

In the 23 vears that has passed, the Department of Education
regulated only once. and that was highly visible, involving ~om-
ments across the country; we recrived 9,700 comments And those
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regulations passed back in 1974 and were signed by President Ford
in 1975. Those regulations were submitted to the House Sub-
committee on Postsecondary Education, and the House subcommit-
tee held hearings, very visible, lots of participation.

Those regulations, the only ones that we have ever had, became
effective in 1975. In the 23 year history of Title IX, the Federal
Government has issued policy guidance once, again highly visible.
There were more than 700 comments from the public on the policy
guidance. And in the spirit of bipartisan support, that guidance
was issued and promulgated in 1979.

I recognize as Assistant Secretary that making the promise of
Title IX a reality is a complicated task. I tried to summarize what
Title IX requires on the two charts at my left, to your right.

[The information follows:]

TITLE IX STANDARDS

1. Athletic Financial Assistance

Must be -roportionate to participation rates, unless non-discriminatory reasons
justify non-proportionality.
2. Interest and Abilities

A. Nondiscriminatory participation opportunities provided, as measured by:

+ participation numbers that are substantially proportionate to enroliment by gen-
der; or

* history and continuing practice of program expansion for the underrepresented
sex; or

¢ fully and effectively accommodating intwrests and abilities of the
underrepresented sex.

B. Competitive team schedules must equally reflect abilities, as measured by:

¢ schedules that afford proportionally similar numbers of athletes of both sexes
equivalently advanced competitive opportunities; or

* history and continuing practice of upgrading competitive opportunities of the
underrepresented sex.
3. Equivalent Treatment, Benefits and Opportunities

Determined by examination of 11 factors.

o E%uipment and supplies;

¢ Scheduling of games/practice times;

* Travel/per diem allowances;

¢ Opportunity to receive coaching and academic tutoring;

* Assignment and compensation of coaches an1 tutors;

¢ Provision of locker rooms, practice ana ~om 3 :titive facilities;

* Provision of medical and training facilitie: * *»d services;

¢+ Provision of housing and dining facilities »- srvices;

¢ Publicity;

¢ Recruitment of student athletes;

¢ Provision of support services.

Ms. CANTU. As you. can see, the standards are detailed, just like
the rules of play in sports. In order to ensure fair treatment* of
players, we have very clear and detailed rules.

I want to focus, though, on the three-part test. You have already
heard an allegation that my office follows only the proportionality
test. That is absolutely untrue. We have a three-part test, and we
use a three-part test. That is the practice that we have followed in
the two years I have been here.

I cannot defend the prior administration, but I can speak for
mine. It is my absolute practice that each part of the three-part
test is independent, should be used, will be used. If thare is an in-
stance in a regional office where that is not happening, I want that
brought to my attention. .
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I thank Eastern Illinois and Congressman Hastert for their con-
cerns, but in fact in this administration we do not focus on a one-
part test alone.

I want to close by talking about the benefits, but I can reserve
that for later questions.

Chairman MCKEON. Thank you very much.

[The prepared statement of Ms. Cantu follows:]
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Loutse aifenings, n the school workplace, and on the athletic fields. OCR 1 the
soie tederal agency charged with the responsibility of enforcing Title IX in the
context of athleties, which is considered an integral part of an institution’s
education program and is, therefore. covered by the Title IX statute.

In <eeking to ensure a level playing field for all, OCR's enforcement is
tarthtul to the clear and unequivocal Congressional mandate of
nondiscrinnunation in Title 1X: that members of both sexes be provided equal
appertunities to participate in athletics. Indeed, OCR's guiding principle in this
area--and 1n uther areas of civil rights enforcement--is to ensure that all students
are atforded equal opportunities.  Title IX is a basic non-discrimination
reguirement. intended to expand, not limit. opportunities. That is the driving
iorce of GCR's enforcement. which is faithful to the expressed will of
Congress, tlexible inats dealings with colleges and universities. and fair in ns
Frotection ot voys and girls.

Ioadav, Uwell discuss three issues: (1) the need for Titie [X--in 1972 and
i-+den .20 OCR s roie in the entorcement of this law: and (3) the way in whick
OCR 1~ working w ensure equality of opportunicy for all students. In my
comments. | also will address several criticisms of Title IX and OCR's
satoreement acusities under this law.  These arguments--some of which date
pack more than a decade--have again surfaced, and 1 appreciate having the
opporiunity today to address them. They are, briefly:

1. One allegation is that "Title IX enforcement reduces athletic opportunities
tor men.” In fact, Title 1X is intended to expand opportunities. not reduce
them. Moreover, men's participation in intercollegiate sports has increased
since the passage of Title IX, and participation as measured by numbers of
men’s non-revenue producing sports has increased in the last decade, as well.

2 Another argument that's been made is that "OCR’s enforcement of Title IN
amounts to an inflexible quota.” This 1s simply not the case. OCR regulations
and poiey gmdance do not mandate statistical balancing as the only way to
achieve Titde IX compliance.

3 bmallv. it has been asserted that “Football 15 net treated as @ unique sport .
the entorcement of Title IX." To the contrary, OCR policy guidance mandates
that 1t vonsider the unique aspects of all sports when it assesses compliance with
Tule IX. At the same time, no sport 1s exempt from Title IX. OCR is taithful
1o these principles in its entorcement ot Title 1X,
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"We practice at six in the morning so we won't get in the
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works from 9 to 5. To compete in meets we have to borrow
boats from other schools. We fund-raise with bake sales.
ratfles and car washes. We even resorted to a rowing
marathon. We set up a swimming pool in front of the
student union and rowed 1 two-hour shifts, 24 hours a day
tor one whole week. Peaple came by and threw change into
the pool. It was lthe begzing. But the money had to be
raised somehow. The university wasn't going to give it L0 us
and we wanted to compete.”

Even today. we are finding 1n our cases that women are being denied
comparable opportunities and necessary vperating, recruiting, and scholarship
dollars. In addition, in recent years, OCR has investigated cases in which a
schoal provided each of its men's teams separate, well-furnished locker rooms,
while all women's teams were forced to use the same one locker room. At this
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e scvar el could use weight ramimg equipnient at no < harge; senven,
an the other hand. were required to pay for this opportunity.  And, in another
sdse. 4 women's crew team was provided shells designed for men that were teo
neavy to use 1D practice or competitions. At that same school. there was no
locker room at the boathouse available 10 women when men and women
competed on weekends.

The story is not entirely anecdotal, however. Let us look at the statistics
retlecting the parucipauon of women at NCAA member institutions 1n 1971, the
vear before Title [X's passage, and in 1994 [see Exhibit 2, Intercollegiate
Athletics Participation by Men & Women in NCAA Member Institutions].
Two observations are apparent: 1. Since the passage of Title IN, women have
Made agniticant strides in their participation in intercellegiate athletics. 2.
Despite those vains. there is still much work o be done if the promise ot Title
IN 1 o be taltifled.

Senator Hateh has perhaps best captured the essence of the meaning and
promise of Tule IXL In 1984, on the Scnate loor, he observed that there were
fow ot any . Senators who did not want “Tidle IX implemented so as to continue
o envourage women throughout America to develop into Olympic athletes, to
Jdevelop in educational activities or in any other way withm our schools ot
higher education.”

Indeed. in the discussions surrounding Title 1X, we should not lose wght
ot the importance of providing equal opportunity to participate in athletics.
There are many benetits to participation.  According to the lastitute for
Athletics and Education, girls who participate in sports are three times more
likely to graduate tfrom high school, 80 percent less likely to have an unwanted
pregnancy, and 92 percent less likely to use drugs. Also, the health benefits
are extensive. For example, studies report that women who participate 1n
sports lower their risk of breast cancer. There are psychological benetits, as
well. Women athletes have a higher level of self-esteem and confidence and a
lower rate of depression than non-athletes. (Colton and Gore, Risk Restliency
anu Resistance Current Research on Adelescent Girls, Ms Foundatien, 1991
The avallability of athletic scholarships dramatically increases the ability ot
athiletes o pursue a college education and to select from a greater range ot
insututtons.  Eventually, this has implications for future employability ot
persons who will go on to become productive members of our society.

And then there are the important values we learn from participation in
sports - teamwork, standards, leadership, discipline, work ethics, self sacrifice.
pnde 1n accomplishment, strength of character. These values are as important
to women as they are to men.
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A number of former wemen athletes point to communicauon learned 1n
sports competition as key to their upward career mobility. Ninety-three percent
of women in one study agreed that women who participated in sports would be
better able to compete successfully later in life. Another interesting statistic --
80 percent of women who were identtied as key leaders in their Fortune 500
companies had sports backgrounds.

Perhaps the value of non-discrimination in sports, as guaranteed by Title
IX. is hest exemplitied by a letter [ recently received from a woman in New
Jersev. She said:

My concerns are not selt directed, tor my opportunity has long
since passed. My cencerne are not for my daughter, who had a
sery limited oppurtunity. My concerns are for my granddaughters
and other young females whose tuture I have hope for.

As a child. T'loved athletics and physical activity. [ was talented.
tut my talent was not appreciated or approved of by most . . . 1
watched my older and younzer hrothers compete on school teams.
It didn't matter that in the neighborhood pick-up games, I was
selecied betore my brothers. Society dictated that T should watch,
and they should compete. So at home in the backyard, [ would
catch as my brother worked on his curve ball, I would shag thes us
e developed his batting prowess and as I recall, I frequently
served as his tackling dummy.

... The brother [ caught for. and shagged for, and served as a4
tackling dummy for, went on to Georgetown University on a tull
athletic grant. He later became Vice President of a large banking
firm . ...

So, while I rode in the backscat on the bus of opportunity during
my lifetime, I want my daughter's daughter and her peers to be
able to select a seat based on their abilities and their willingness to
work. Don't deny them the things [ dreamed of.

Regulations and Policy

To cnsure that alt people, regardless of sex, get the opportunity to "select
a seat based on their abilities and their willingness to work,” and in a spirit of
bipartisanship, Congress passed Titie [X in 1972. Following the passage of
Title IX, Congress has on several occasions reaffirmed the non-discrimination




PAFullToxt Provided by ERIC

44

o

guarantee tn the context ot athletics.  Consistentiy, Congress has expressed the
view that intercollegiate sports, including revenue producing sports, are within
the coverage of Title IX, just as Congress has rejected attempts to curtail the
enforcement of Title [X. [See Exhibit 3, History of Title IX Legislation,
Regulations and Policy Interpretation.] Notably. 21 years ago, Congress
considered and rejected an amendment to the Education Amendments of 1972
that would have exempted revenue-producing sports from coverage under Title
IX. Instead, Congress adopted a compromise amendment that directed the
Department of Education’s predecessor agency, the Department of Health,
Education, and Weifare (HEW), to publish proposed Title IX regulations that
contained -- and I am quoting the statutory tanguage -- “reasonable provisions
considering the nature of particular sports.”

On June 20. 1974, HEW published proposed regulations, which included
specitic provisions for college athletics. In response to the nouce of the
proposed regulations, HEW received over 9700 comments, which were
considered prior to publication of the tinal regulations.

President Ford signed the Title IX regulations on May 27, 1975, They
were submitted to Congress for review pursuant te the General Education
Provisions Act. and during the review, the House Subcommittee on
Postsecondary Education conducted hearings. The regulations, which became
cifective on July 21. 1975, established a three-year transition period to give
secondary and postsecondary institutions sufficient time to comply with the
equal athletic opportunity requirements--a period that expired in 1978,

To complement the regulations, OCR issued a Title IX policy
interpretation to provide colleges and universities with more detailed guidance
on how to comply with the law. This policy interpretation was issued on
December 11, 1979, after OCR reviewed more than 700 comments on a
proposed interpretation issued a year carlier, and after extensive consultation
with educators, athletic directors, coaches. athletic associations, civil rights
groups, and education organizations. OCR also visited several colleges to
oblan more intormaton on therr athletic programs and to assess how the pol .
would apply 1n actual practice to the athletic programs at individual caiupuases

The Titie IX policy interpretauion, atong with the Title [N statute and
implementing regulations, have governed OCR's enforcement in this arca tor
almost two decades, enjoying the bipartisan support of Congress and full
support of the courts.




Ti C uirements:
What They D Do Not M

The 1979 policy interpretation clarifies responsibilities under Title [X in
three basic areas:

athletic financial assistance;
athletic benefits and opportunities; and
accommodation of student interests and abilities.

The Tutle IX regulations require that the total amount of athletic financial
assistance awarded to men and women be proporticnate to their respective
participation rates in intercollegiate athictic programs. However, disparities 1n
awarding financial assistance may be justitied by legitimate, nondiscriminatory
;actors  For instance, in a college or vniversity beginning a new athletic
nrovram, insitutional officials may decide 1t 18 necessary to spread the increase
m scholarshgs over a peried of time by awarding fewer sche-arships during the
{itst few years thin would he necessary to create immediate proportionality
between male and female athletes.

b

compliance standard is that male and temale athletes should receive ¢quivaient
benetits, treatment, services, and opportunities.  Under this standard, identical
benetits and opportunities are not requited. Differences that result from
nondiscriminatory factors are permitted. Generally, these differences will be
the result of unique aspects of particular sports, such as the nature or
replacement of equipment and maintenance of facilities required for
competition.

With respect to the second area -- athletic benefits and opportunities -- the

Those who have argued OCR does not consider the unique aspects of
toothail programs in its enforcement of Title 1X are. simply, musinformed. For
example. OCR has tound that the size of the football team and the nature o
e spoit usiify an apparent imbalance that fasors the football team in the
prosvision ot medical and tramg faciliies and services. Sinularly, OCR has
qund 4 sehool to be m compliance with Tude X where ali teams had
comparable equipment replacenicnt schedules--with the exception ot sport-
Jpecitic equipment in football. In that case, despite the fact that football
appedred to have a higher equipment replacement rate, at least with respect to
helmets and other satety equipment, OCR found no violation in terms of the
provision ot equipment and supphes.

Al some legitimate disparities may be related to special cireumstances
ol o temporary nature.  For example, disparnties in recruitment activity for any
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particilar year may be the result of annual tiuctuations in team needs for tirst-
year athletes. A violation will exist only it disparities result in the denial of
equal cpportunity to male or female athletes. In short, OCR’s approach allows
institutions flexibility in conducting their athletic programs in recognition that
cach athletic program differs.

With respect to accommodating student interests and abilities -- the third
area -- a recipient institution will be found in compliance with Title IX if it
provides men and women both (1) nondiscriminatory participation opportunities,
and (2) competitive team schedules which equally reflect their abilities. A
school will be found to provide nondiscriminatory participation opportunities if
it meets any part of a three-part test: (1 by providing athletic participation
opportunities in numbers that are substantially proportionate to enroliment by
gender: or (2) by establishing a history and continuing practice of program
expansion for members of the underrepresented sex; or (3) by fully and
etfectively accommodating the interests and abilities of the underrepresented
sex. Nuoone part of the three-part test 1s preferreéd by OCR or used exclusively
by OCR over another as a methad ot ensuring compliance with the law.

Rather. the three-part test furnishes dhree idividual avenues for compliance.

Several important points guide CCR's enforcement of Title IX in the area
ot athleties. First, Federal courts across the country have consistently
recognized that the standards by which OCR assesses compliance with Title [X
are taithful to the will of Congress. Indeed, courts have observed that OCR's
policy standards draw their essence from Title IX. Moreover, OCR's guidance
in this area of Tutle IX enforcement:

-does not mandate numerical quotas;

-does not mandate statistical balancing;

-does not require that all teams be coeducational;

-does not require parallel teams, or that the same number of
teams be provided for men and women;

-does not require that schools spend equal amourits of money on
members of cach sex; and

-does not mandate the sports that schools must otinr.




instead. OCR’> guidance.

-does avoid any absolute requirement of numerical
proportionality between the numbers of sports
opporiunitics oftfered to men and women and the numbers
of students, by sex;

-does recognize that ditferent expenditures on men's and
women's sports may be permissible; and

-does expressly recognize and tactor into its analysis the unique

nature ot particular sporis.

v Indeed, the flexibthty with which OCR carries out its enforcement ot
Title X in the arca of athleties s perhaps most evident when considering fwee
otten overlooked, points. First. when a «choel 1s foend to be operating in
violation of this anti-discriminauon statute, 1t 1s not required to achieve
compliance overnight. OCR. and the courts, have demonstrated flexibility and
reasonableness in the ttme allowed an institution to achieve comphance with
Title IX. Second, and perhaps most inpertant, OCR does not mandate that .
shool offer an athletics program. QCR generaily does not substitute its views
tor the decistons of an individual stitution as to which sports to offer to ity
male and female students and at what compeniuve jevei, GCR's roie 15 to
snsure that institutions cotuply with Title 1X, and institutions can achieve
compliance in many different ways.

Of course, | have heard the argument, as you may have, that because ot
budgetary constraints, compliance with Tutle IX means, in etfect, that men’s
sports must be cut. In the past several years, a number of colleges and
universities have experienced budgetary constraints. As a result, some have
eliminated or "capped” men's teams, such as wresthing, swimming, and
gymnastics.

OCR does not advocate elimnating or “capping” teams as a means for
achieving compliance with the law. Nor nas OCR required that men’s teams ne
cut in order for institutions to come nto comphance with Title IX. {See
Exhibit 4, Title IX Athletics; OCR Enforcement Activities (FY 1989-94)].
OCR's preference is that there be equuabie athletic epportunities for ali

- students. However, individual institutions must make their own decisions about
their athletics programs, including the distribution of athletic opportunities
within the men's program and within the women's program. Indeed, the wea
that "if women gain, men must lose" presents a false dichotomy. The federal
court in the recent decision of Cohen v, B-own quoted one of the expert
witnesses who stated:

Q
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Eoe aese ihat philosophicaity inans case where you have o
- proviousiy disadvantaged population that you're trying t bring up
L o snutt o the advantaged population, that 1t's a bad Wea to briay
the advaniaged population down to the leset of the disadvantaged

population. ’

in tact, looking at the “hig pricture™ inntercoliegiite sports participation,

the number ot male college athletes creased since 1971, one vear betore the
passage of Tule INCD Moreover, they stull account tor 64 percent of all college

) athletes at NCAA instuitutions.  [See Exhibit 2, Intercollegiate Athletics

N Participation by Men & Women in NCAA Member Institutions]. During
the past decade, as well, there has been inereased participation by men 1n spotts
other than toothall and baskethall, ¢ e v the "nonsrevenue producing
eils [See Exhibit 3, Participation in Meu's NCAA Sports Other than
Foothall and Basketbali].

Conglusivm

Iitte INX has helred giris and women realize more of the benefits and
cducational opportuntaes atforded by athlene participanon, Let us net fose
sight of the fact that a vedr betore Title IX became law, only 32,000 women
parieipated momtercetlegiate athlettes. Today, that number is around 105,000
‘ Wamen are participating in lacrosse. soccer, and ice hockey, 1n addition to ihe
’ traditional sports.  And, contrary to some popular thought. men’s athletic
participation has not decreased as institutions have moved to increase athletic
upportunities for women.

. While I applaud the progress that has been made, the task of providing
- cqual athletic opportunity remains unfinished. OCR continues to find serious
violations 1n many of its cases, as do the courts, which are ruling with
increasing trequency that women are not receiving equal athletic oppertunity.
. OCR will continue to respond to complaints, and 1t also will continue to work
- actively with many schools and assuciatiuns to address problems and issues

hefore they become the subject of complaints.

Rest assured, we will continue to enforce Title IX fairly and to help
L institutions comply with the law. Many colleges and universities are striving
to provide equal athletic opportunity, and we will work with them to find
creative and innovative practical approaches to ending sex discrimination in
intercollegiate athletics.

Mr. Chairman, there is no place for discrimination in sports.
Discrimination goes against the very grain of what competition is all about. In
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sports we encourage and reward performance. In our history, sports have been
the great equalizer. crossing all artificial social and class distinctions and
barriers. We should showcase sports as a model of equality in American
soctety.

The Department of Education considers these hearings a significant step
in clarifying the way in which, sincc us inception. Title IX in the area of
athletics has been enforced. just as it is a significant step toward highlighting
the need for equal athletic opportunity for all students. With your help we will
make greater strides in establishing a level playi~- tield for all who wish to
take advantage of athletic opportunity.

Thank You
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Title IX--Athletics Working Sessions
Attendees

Athletics Associations and
Interest Groups

American Volleyball Coaches
Association

Center for the Study of Sport in
Society

College Footbali Association

Couneil ot Collegiate Women
Athletic Admnistrators

FFund tor the Feminist Majority-
-Athletics Project

National Association of Girls
and Waomen in Sport

National Coalition fer Women
and Girls in Edvcation

National Collegiate Athletics
Association

National Education Association

National Association ot
fnterealegiate Athletics

National Federation of State
High School Associations

National Softhail Coaches
Association

Trial Lawyers for Public Justice

Women's Basketball Coaches
Association

Athletic Conferences

Big Ten
Gulf South
Southern

Colleges and Universities

Southern Illinois University
University of Arkansas
University of Towa

University of Wisconsin,
Madison

Congress

Staffer, House Subcommitice
on Commerce, Consumer
Protection and Competitiveness
Other

Private Law Iirm Attorneys (3)

U S, Department of Justice

Exhibit 1
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Congress enacts Title IX.

“Javits Amendment” enacted. Amendment to exempt

Lol

S

1974 revenue-producing sports from Title IX rejected.
1975 Bills to alter Title IX athletics coverage die in committee.
1975 HEW issues final Title {X regulation [Signed by
President Ford).
Congress reviews Title IX regulations and does not
1975 !
disapprove them.
1975 Senate refuses to act on bills to curtail Title IX
and enforcement.
1977
: | s |
i 1978 HEW issues proposed policy "Title 1X and Intercollegiate |
* Athletics" for nctice and comment.
1979 HEW issues final policy interpretation on "Title IX and

Intercollegiate Athletics."

Exhibit 3y
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U.S. Department of Education
Office for Civil Rights
Title IX Athletics Receipts/Starts

Y 1994 Summary

COMPIAINTS  COMPLIANCE REVIEWS
Elementary and Seconcary : 16
Postseconcdary 5 10
Others B8 s}

TOTALS 20
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What is the mix of complaint receipts in FY 19937
-, A. About two-thirds (66 percent) of complaunts were. filed against elementary and secondary

. schools; another 27 percent for postsecondary insututon; 2 percent for vocatonal
— . rehablitation; and § percent for other types of agencies. N
Fifty-two percent of all complaints were filed an the bans of disability; 22 percent on

R race and nanonal ongin; 9 percent on muluple bans; 8 percent on sex, | percent on age
- and 8 percent on other baus.

_.:, c I-IB . H.

Q. What were the bases of the complaints OCR received during FY 19947

Dunng the past § fiscal years, more complunts were filed on the baus of handicap
discnmunanon than on any other baus, thus aiso was tue for FY 1994 alone.

i The bases for all FY 1994 complant receipts were as follows:

TR | Nanber - | P
Handicap | 272 52%
RaceMNo | 1.162 2%
Sex “9 '
i Age 6 1%
. Other~ 0 1%
- Muluple “ 9%

*Including bases not under OCR's junidicoon. These figures include muluple Sasis
complaunts where more than one baus s ited.
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STATEMENT OF VARTAN GREGORIAN, Ph.D., PRESIDENT,
BROWN UNIVERSITY, PROVIDENCE, RHODE ISLAND

Chairman MCKEON. Dr. Gregorian.

Dr. GREGORIAN. Mr. Chairman, Congressman Williams, Con-
gressman Reed, Members of Congress, it is a great honor for me
to come before this subcommittee.

Let me say at the outset, since you have the text of my brief,
that Brown University has been, is, and will remain a firm sup-
porter of Congress’ goal in enacting Title IX. Prior te and since its
passage, Brown has worked with great urgency, consistency, and
steadiness to dput in place policies and programs that provide fair
treatment and equal opportunity for women in all facets of life at
Brown, including athletics.

At Brown, we take great pride in our century-old athletic pro-
gram. We also take pride in our burgeoning women’s athletic pro-
g;'am. In breadth, depth, and quality, it is second to none in the

ation.

First, the undisputed facts are, Brown offers 18 varsity sports for
women. including ice hockey, softball, and track. Eighteen sports is
more than double the national average.

Second, Brown University had in place in 1979, a mere seven
years after enactment of Title IX, a women’s program with more
than double the number of teams that most universities have today
or plan to have tomorrow.

hird, Brown women participate in intercollegiate athletics at
three times the national average. Nearly 43 percent of Brown’s ath-
letes are women. This puts the University in the top 1 percent of
all women’s intercollegiate programs in the Nation. In addition, we
also have intercollegiate club sports and intramural sports, both
providing opportunities for women athletes across a broad spec-
trum of physical activities.
-~ Fourth, fair treaiment for women athletes is not an issue at
Brown. I would like to repeat: Fair treatment of women athletes is
not an issue at Brown. There is no significant issue at Brown as
there may be elsewhere, and I am sure there are, regarding facili-
ties, resources, recruiting, scheduling, and budgeting.

In summary, even the plaintiffs in the current lawsuit against
Brown have acknowledged that Brown’s women's program is, in
their words, a model for the Nation.

So why are we here? We are here beczuse Brown has serious,
crucial disagreements with the Office of Civil Rights continuously
- evolving and shifting regulations governing Title IX, at least as
they have been interpreted by a District Court Judge in Provi-
dence, Rhode Island. Our so-called “Model for the Nation” program
was struck down by a Federal judge, with every one of OCR’s three
tests, in a decision that took advantage of all the ambiguities and
i(x)1(c:(§15istencies and imprecisions of the rules and guidelines of the

These rules and guidelines are so ambiguous, so inconsistent,
and so imprecise that they leave judges with total discretion and
rob institutions of any flexibility in meeting OCR's tests of propor-
tionality, history of continuous improvement, and meeting the in-
terest and abilities of men and women athletes. From my point of
view, and I am not a cynic, the message is simple:

..
GdJ
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One, proporticnality: Contrary to OCR, this is not just one
gf the three tests. It is the paramount test. It is not a safe har-

or.

Two, historical effort: If you move too fast and too far, the
message is, “T'oo bad. If you had paced yourself, gone slowly,
provif%ing only incremental changes, you would have been bet-
ter off.”

Three, interest and abilities: No amount of data can offset
the belief that all students are interested in intercollegiate ac-
tivities in neat, equal ratios, or at least they ought to be.

The last point is the following: Brown and institutions, I be-
lieve, with which we compete adhere to a common set of rules.
None apply to this morning’s discussions. We accept students
first and foremost on the basis of their academic promise. We
have no athletic scholarships. Our students receive aid only on
the basis of need.

Gate receipts and guarantees are insignificant; television reve-
nues, practically nonexistent. Athletic programs draw from the
same sources of funds as faculty, financial aid, the library, and the
myriad of services we offer our students. No athletic program, even
in the schools against which we compete, breaks even financially.

Therefore, we are here in a sense to allow us responsibility to
continue what we believe in. We believe in Title IX. We don't be-
lieve in its current interpretations by OCR, and we would like to
get a clear-cut definition. If it is affirmative action, let it be so.
That is fine. But I do not like this kind of Catch-22 before which
we are presented by courts and OCR.

If you have questions, I will answer.
Chairman MCKEON. Thank you, Doctor.
[The prepared statement of Dr. Gregorian follows:]
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Vartan Gregorian
President of Brown University
Mr. Chairman and Members of Congress:
It is a great honor to appear before vour Commnuttee this morning,.
I'am nundful of the powerful role that government has played in the

continuing and unfinished agenda of American democracy, especially in the
realm of civil rights and ensuring equality of opportunity for all of our

citizens. We, in turn, through our universities and colleges are participants

in the constant re-creation of the future of America. We continue to attempt
to harness the entire spectrum of our nation’s potential talent to educate an
enlightened citizenry, and to prepare what Thomas Jefferson once referred to
as the “aristocracy of talent” that transcends class, geography, and religion.

And | weuia add race, gender, and ethnicity to Jefferson’s formulation.
Qur universitics and colleges, particularly since World War 11, have made
major strides to democratize and nationalize access to higher education -- to
create opportunities for learning, for research, for growth, for leadership.

All of us have coine a long way in our efforts to ensure equality of
opportunity. All of us have some dist'nce to travel before all our citizens

have an opportunity to partake in the  genda and the lofty goals of the
American Democracy.

One of the most important pieces of legislation in eradicating
discrimination against women in higher education is Title IX of the
Education Amendments of 1972. It prohibits gender-based discrimination in
all collegiate activities, from admissions to the classroom. Athletics is not,
and should not be, excmpt from its non-discriminatory provisions.

Let me say at the outset that Brown University has been, is, and will
remain, a firm supporter of Congress’ goal in enacting Title IX. Prior to, and
since its passage, Brown has worked with great urgency, consistency and
steadiness to put in place policies and programs that provide fair treatment

and equal upportunity for women in all facets of life at Brown, including
athletics.
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At Brown we take great pride in our century-old athletic program. We
also take pride in our burgeoning women’s athletic program. In breadth,
depth, and quality, it is second to none in the country.

* First, the undisputed facts are: Brcwn offers 18 varsity sports for
womien, including among others, ice hockey, tennis, basketball, crew, field
hockey, squash, swimming, cross country, lacrosse, soccer, softball, and track.
Eighteen sports is more than double the national average.

*Second, Brown University had in place in 1979 -- a mere seven years
after the enactment of Title IX -- a women'’s program with more than double
the number of teams that most universities have today.

*Third, Brown women participate in the intercollegiate athletics at
three times the national average. Nearly 43 percent of Brown’s athletes are
women. This puts the University in the top one percent of all women's
intercollegiate programs in the nation. In addition, we also have
intercollegiate club sports and intramural sports, both providing
opportunities for women athletes across a broad spectrum of physical
activities.

sFourth, the treatment 0. women athletes is not an issue at Brown.
There are no significant issues at Brown, as there may be elsewhere, regarding
facilities, resources, recruiting, scheduling, or budgeting.

In summary, even t.e plaintiffs in the current lawsuit against Brown
have acknowledged that the Brown women'’s program is - in their words --
“a model for the nation.”

So why are we here?

We are here because Brown is in disagreement over crucial issues with
the Office of Civil Rights continuously evolving and shifting regulations
governing Title 1X, at ieast as they have been interpreted by a District Court
Judge in Providence. Our so-called “model for the nation” program was
struck down by a Federal Jucige on every one of OCR's three tests in a decision




that took advantage of all of the ambiguities, imconsistencies, and imprecision
of the rutes and guidelines. These rales and guidehnes are so ambiguous, so
meansistent, and so unprecise that they leave judges with total diseretion and
rob mstitutions of anv flexibility in mecting OCR’s tests: proportionality,
history of continuous improvement, and meeting the interests and abilities

of men and women athletes.

From mv pornt of view the message to us s veny simple:

One - Proportionality: Centrarny 1o OCR, proportionality 18 not just one

of thice tests It s the paramount test. it s not a “safe harbor.”

I'wo - Thistorical Ftfort: 1f y ou move too tast and too far, it's too bad. It
vou had paced yvoursell, gone slowhy, providing only incremental changes,

vou would hase been better otf.

Lhree Interest and Abihities: No amount of data can offset the behiet
that alt students are mterested i intercollegiate athleties i neat. equal ration,

or at teast they oug it ta be.

turthermore, proportionahty means that the number of temale
athtetes actually participating must marror the number of wonmen enrolled i
the undergraduaie student body . Brown has welcomed the growth of womnen
inats student body without regard to thewr interest in participating, in
mtercotlegrate athletwes, Brown, which tor the first tume s 517 femate, must
have m place anathletic progrm which matches exactiy that percentage, or

apparenthv at toses s night o deternune the size and content of ats program

Brown romandated by its board to hase balanced budgets, which it hae
hadt tor the past einteen years Four y cars apo, when faced with budgetan
constranmts, programs across the University were trimmed and resources were
directed to tnree mstitution-wade prionties: teaching, library acquisitions, and
tuition assistance for needy students. As a part of these effoerts, Brown's
adimmistration changed, among other things, the status of tour varsity sports
trom unnveraty to donor-funded. Fhese included two women’s teams and

two men's teams, althaupgh they coniinue to compete at the varaty lesel, T
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- addition, Brown led efforts in the lvy League to eliminate freshmen football,
= which it did, a change in policy that affected 35 male athletes at the

. University. The only other teams eliminated at Brown were men’s junior
varsity teams. . ',

While Brown, it seems, is free to eliminate freshmen football,
discontinue men's junior varsity teams, and change the status of two men’s
teams, it cannot alter in any way two women’s teams and remain in ]
compliance with Title 1X because the proportion of female athletes to their o
membership in the student body would be adversely impacted.

s We believe that such decisions, if left standing, will establish an
arbitrary numerical reference system that will force universities, pressed by
constrained budgets, to eliminate men’s sports in order to meet court-
imposed quotas, rather than offer an athletic program that meets the
respective levels of interest and abilities of both men and women to play

- varsity sports. As you know, this is already happening across the country.

[ invite you to imagine the administrative nightmare that the
proportionality test will cause. While the proportion of males and females
- changes from year to year, teams cannot be turned on and off like hot and
3 cold running water. And I invite you to also contemplate the lost
opportunities further cutting or capping men’s teams will represent for male
students, particularly those students who enjoy the camaraderie of being on a
- team, even if it means not getting into the game.

i Further, the second test requires institutions of higher learning to
demonstrate “continuous improvement” in creating opportunities for

. women. As | noted earlier, following the passage of Title 1X, Brown put in
. place a well-developed women's athletic program. By 1980, as I also
mentioned, we had a women’s athletic program larger than most universities
today. But because we chose to undertake early, rapid expansion, our rate of
incrcase slowed after 1980, and it was decided that we could not, therefore,
demonstrate “continuous improveinent.” In retrospect, Brown would have
been better off had it moved slowly and cynically, though, suffice it to say,
Brown women would have had fewer opportunities to participate in sports.

Q
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Finally, as currently interpreted, the third test requires universities to
meet any unmet interest if an institution does not meet the prevailing
standards of tests one and two. On the margin, economists at Brown tell me,
theoretically there will always be unmet interests, whether it be gymnastics,
volleyball, skiing, or aichery. But the facts are that on existing teams, Brown
women have up to an estimated 100 opportunities to play intercollegiate
sports which remain unfilled.

Brown and the institutions against which it competes adhere to a
common set of rules. We accept students first and foremost on the basis of
their academic promise. We have no athletic scholarships. Our students
recetve aid only on the basis of need. Gate receipts and guarantees are
insignificant and television revenues are virtually non-existent in our
league. Athletic programs draw from the same source of funds as faculty,
financiai aid, the library, and the myriad of services we offer our students. No

athletic program in the schools against which we compete breaks even
financially,

Under these conditions, [ suggest that what is happening here 1s an
assault against common sense. If Brown with its robust program of women's
sports 1s not tn compliance with Title 1X, 1t is hard ts imagine how anv
instrtution 1s today.

In conclusion, | would like to say again, Brown supports Title IX. But
the government, it seems to me, must find ways to make it work. 1 believe
that there is a rational solution to this dilenyma that will facilitate progress in
elininating discrimination for women in sports. Such a solution should also
permit institutions of higher learning to meet the respective interests of men
and women to participate in sports fairly and equally without resorting to
blunt and arbitrary measurements, such as those called for by a District Court
judge and seemingly also by OCR’s regulations. There are certainly more
sophisticated and reliable instruments that measure overall interests and

abilities, and they can and should be introduced into the equation before it is

decided that an institution discriminates agamnst women tn a collegrate

activity,
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Robert Hutchins, former president of the University of Chicago, once
. said that equality and justice are the two great distinguishing characteristics of
democracy. We at Brown are eager to work with this committee, with the
Oftice of Civil Rights, and with our friends and supportezs in higher
education to clarify Title IX in a way that promotes both.

I would be delighted to answer any questions you may have.

s D
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On Appeai: Colien v. Brown
o : ' Brown University Files Appeal in Title !X Athletics Discrimination Case

Brown Universny today appealed the controversial March 29 ruling by 17 S. District ¢
Court Semor Judge Paymond Pettine 1n a precedent-setting Title IX athleuc discrimina-
tion case Cring errors of fact, misinterpretations of law and omissions of evidence. attor-

neys for the Umversity asked th. Firat Cireunt Court of Appeals 1n Buston to set acde

Petune’s ruling or. altematively. to order a new trial

Among othee problems, Petine’s ruling created new comphance standards and defined
¢ p

proportronzlity requirements that are tantamount 1o quotds and contrans to the original in-

tent of Thtle IX legislauon. Univerat- administrators said.

:__ “Title IN was enacted to nd higher education of gender-biused discrinunation across the
baard. & goal Brown Umiversits enthusiastically supponts.” said Brown President Vartan
Gregonan “However, Judge Pettine’s ruling and two decades of regul #on revision have
lurned Tatle 1X completely around Where Congress once Sought to ensure equahity of
. opportumity, Judge Pettine 1s now requinng an unwarranted numencal conformity and 18

intruding upe n the legiimate administrative autonomy of colleges and universities

. “Colleges and umversities are facing sery hard choices today They cannot aliow their
e deasion-making powers to be needlessly compronused,” Gregorian continued “We are
deternuned to press our arguments at the Court of Appeals 1n Boston because we believe
Judge Pettine’s reading of Tatle IX pros isons and his appheation of regulations are wrong
m many respects. and that his ruling unfairly burdens the adnunistrative autonomy of

" Brown and other institutions of higher leaming ™

Equality of treatment 1s not 20 1ssue 10 the case Plaintitts and their lawyers have agreed
that Brow n’s program of womea's intercollegiate athletics 14 a national leader in size and

quahty and that the University treats its men’s and women*s teams fairly and without dis-

N OVER

c A‘s
-




PAFulToxt Provided by ERIC

BROWN UNIVERSITY
TITLE 1X APPEAL FILED
PAGE 2

cnmination. In fact, three days nto the trial, both sides signed a partial settlement that ea-
dorsed the University's current policies for locker rooms, publicity, recruitment, equip-
iment. assignment of coaches, travel arrangements and many other treatment tssucs. The
University agreed to continue those practices for three years, and all treatment issucs were
removed from consideration in the tnal. What remained was the issue of proportionality.

One of the University's pnmary objections to Petune's ruling is that it ignored Tutle IX's
requirement that universities accommodate the demonstrated athletic interest and ability of
all students, as Brown's current athletic program does. Instead. the ruling reduces Titie
1X's non-discrimination purposc to a simple matter of numbers. vequiring a “mirroring™
of gender ratios between athletes and the general student body. The ruling effectively re-
quires schools to provide additional teams for women without regard for the far greater
demand among male athletes for additional teams. Brown, which offers 18 varsity sports
for women, already supports intercollegiate teams in cvery spont played by at least | per-
cent of NCAA Division 1 schools.

“One of the ways institutions can demonstrate compliance is to show a history of expand-
ing opportunities for women, and Brown has done that.” said Beverly E. Ledbetier,
Brown's vice president and gencral counsel. “By the late 1970s. our women's program
was more than twice as large as the average NCAA Division 1 program is today, but
Judge Pettine dismissed that record because we accomplished our expansion too carly.

The percentage of Brown athletes who are women also has grown to 42 percent. but
Judge Pettine discounted that growth because part of it was achicved by reductions in
men's teams. With that kind of reasoning, Brown would be left with only one course of
action to meet this test: to establish additional teams for women. Even if Brown added the
few women's sports we do not already offer. achieving numerical parity would be
impossible. Furthermore, the president has clearly stated that any additional University
funds will be devoted exclusively to academic priorities. Given those academic priorities.
athletics can grow only through increased team revenues such as gate receipts or gifts.”

In addition to proportionality, the University's appeal includes the definition of
“participation oppostunity,” the inappropriateness of numbers used in calculating partici-
pation, the ruling's definition of “program expansion,” and the inappropriate weight the
court gave to the constantly exolving rules and regulations of the U.S Department of Ed-
ucation's Office of Civil Rights (OCR).
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Proportionality
The cour created .1 new and more restricuy e stndard for proportionabity

OCR. which enforces Title 1X provisions for the U'S Departmient of Education. uses a
three-prong test to determine an nstitution’s comphiance The first prong asks “whether
the intercollegiate les el opportunities for male and female students are provided in num-
bers substantially proportionate to their respectine enroliments.” The court subatituted the
phrase “substantially nurrors™ for “substanually proportionate.” a far different standard
that suggests an exact corespondence

OCR’s invesugator’s manual says there s no set measure for substantial proportionality
Expert testimony by plantiffs” own witnesses savd gender ratios that fall within two or
three standard des tation units are 1o be constdered substantially proportionate

The court ignored OCR’s own rulings on substantial proporiionatity and provided no
guidance on when proportionality s achieved

I inyesngations of other calleges. OCR agreed that differences of 7 percent between the
gender ratios of athletes and the general student body met the substanually proportionate
requirement The University ¢ited these letters of finding 1n its witten and oral arguments

Interest and Ability

The court ignored evidence of female imterest and ability to participate 1n intercoliegiate
athleties

During the trial, Brow n presented dozens of nationdl studies to determmne the relative ath-
letic interests of grade school, high school and college students The data included sam-
ples front national groups as well as actual Brown students and were gathered by a num-
ber of exiernal organizations, including UCLA. the College Board (sponsors of the SAT
test) and various educational organizations. The evidence demonstrated that in virtually
any group of young people, from grade school through college, males exhibit a higher
level of interest in competitive sports than females.

Recent admission statistcs suggest that college-bound young women consider Brown to
be a highly desirable school. Women have outnumbered men in Brown's recent classes,
accounting for as much as 54 percent of new students. This year, Brown’s undergraduate
student body 1s more than 51 percent female. Next year, the percentage of women will
certainiy rise above 52 percent. According to Judge Pettine’s concept of proportionality,
Brown will need to provide additional teams for those new female students whether or
not they are interested tn intercollegiate athletic compstition.

The court ignored OCR’s previous guidar =¢ on determuning interest and ability.

OCR’s 1980 Investigator's Manual instructs s ficld investigators that onc method by
which a college can determune the interest and abilitics of 1ts students 1s careful surveys of
actual students, reviews of applications information with regard to high scitool sports, and
studies of sports participation 1n high schools from which the school draws its students.

OVER
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Brown presented preciscly that kind of data in court, showing that women constitute be-
tween 35 and 45 percent of interested athletes Women currently comprise 42 percent of
athletes at Brown.

By 1gnonng the unmet interest of male athletes, the lower court would force the Univer-
sity to expand the women's program 10 a level that excecds women’s relative interest and
abihity.

OCR’s third prong asks “whether it can be demonstrated that the interests and abihities of
the members of {the underrepresented]) sex have been fully and effectively accommodated
by the present program. By ignoring the interests and abilities of the student body as a
whole, the ruling creates something tantamount to an affirmative action quota which dis-
cninunates against male athletes and grants preferential treatment to women.

Tutle 1X itself says that it ts not an affirmative actton or quota statute.

“Nothing contained in subsection (a) of this section shall be interpreted to require any ed-
ucational institution to grant preferential or disparate treatment to the members of one scx
on account of an imbalance which may exist with respect to the total number or percent-
age of persons of that sex participating {1 any program or activity}

"By assuming that all students are cqually interested in participating 1n intercollegiate
athletics, the ruling effecuvely prevents schools from equaliy accommodating the interests
and abilitics of the entire student body, as Title 1X requires.” Ledbetter said "We do not
believe this 1s 1n the best interests of higher education, and 1t certainly 1s not in the best
nterests of collegiate athletes ™

Participation Opportunities

The lower court failed to distinguish betw een “participation opportumities” and “actual
participants.™

Prior to this ruling, no court had defined “participation opportumity ™ 1n the context of Title
IX. Duning the tnal, Pettine frequently asked witnesses to define participation opportunity
and to say whether they thought participation opportunitics could exist if there were no
athletes 1o fill them. The University used sexcral methods to prove that women athletes da
not make use of all the opportunities currently available to them at Brown. The most
conservattve method ~ using Ivy League travel squad hmuts to determine team size -
dentifizd at least 30 unused opportunities, the actual number could be as high as 90

In his opinion, Pettine found the various methods too complex and ruled that participation
opportunities should be measured by counting the actual paruicipants on intercollegiate
teams. “The concept of any measure of unfilled but available athletic slots dees not
comport with reality,” Pctune said

“Judge Pettine 1s wrong to dismiss the University '« statisueal evidence so hghtly, and lie
1s being illogical when he suggests that participation opportumities and actual paricipants
are onc and the same,” said Jeffrey Michacelson, one of the Uninversity’s tnal attorneys
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“There are certamly at least nine participation opportunities asalable on a baseball team
evenifoniy sivathletes iy out

The lower court”s finding that Browen predeternimes participation through revnuiting and
linutmg team size was not supported by the esidence

Brown Univeraty otfers women 2Hintercollegiate teams 118 varsits teams and three club
teans that play at the intercoliegiate varsity lesel. one ot the broadest. most opportamty -
nich programs an the nanen Tois allagical 1o suggest that such .t program predetermines
paricipation opportunities by finaling teams

Issues of recruiting were sedled inan agreement early 0 the trial. Plainutis and their at

tormes saeepled the Unisersity s current recruitmg program as fair and equial with respect
W treatnieat of men s.and woimnen’s teams Most coaches also testified that they hase ad-
Cquate recruning resources o support therr teams Furthermore., tecrunment has more 1o
dowith the Juality ot a teams pertormance than sith the number ot participauon eppor -
wmties attorded studentatiteres

The Numbers

Fhe loseer coutased fgares that everstate men s paricipaiion even though more ieliable
fgures about teain size were available fram dinect testmons ot coaches

I adding up the number on particpats, the March 29 ruling used NCA A sguad hat fig
ares tog 199393 For purposes ot chechimg ehigibihiy, these Dists inctude namies of ath
letes whenmus net hase omed the eam and are npreatls much farger than actual eam
stzes According to the opimon 3N percent of Brown athlees are women

Better igares were s aiiable tronn the sworn testimony ot men's and women’s coaches
wiver i court Fos exvample, Mark Whipple, Biowirs football couach tesufied that his
sauad e tadvd approvinaeedy 80 plavers Pettne imcladed 1260 Bob Gaudet, the men’s
hodbey coacbo tnted Y Panne bsted 45 Using numbers from the tesimons of coi hes.,
the gure fos wl sarsiy aihletes is approvmately 42 percent women

Flic tower court's apmzon achnowiedged that certain dub teams vonpete at the inerenl
legrate varany desel e gowomen’s water polon, bat fatled o consider these teans when 1t
vempated ibe proforon ot athletes who are womien

OCR's first prong direct rmvestigators o constder “itercollegnate level opporuninies.”
ad steaticethy imcudes Club teams that regualarls compete at the sarsiy Tevel 1o s k-
iy Petine excluded imtercollegrae club seams trom consideration when he computed
Putticapation rates for the first prong The ditference. accordimg o University figures, s
neanty thiee per.entage pormis and would ratse the participation rate of women from 41 6
pescent le 44 S pereent - within OCR's own defimtiorn of “substantial proportionaling ™

Althoagh Pethee excluded these teams from consideration under the first prong. he used
them e demeadtzate an unnet need under the ted poong. saving Lt thes have o long
Bty o Compeeties e sohednkes
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The lower court made false or unnecessary distinctions among tvpes of intercollegiate
teams, then employed those distinctions inconsistently.

The ruling made an unwarranted distinction between University-funded and donor-funded
varsity teams, suggesting that donor-funded teams do not allow athletes to reach their full
potenti ". In doing so. the ruling 1gnored the fact that more than twice as many men play
on donor-funded teams. He also created a funding distinction that 15 irrelevant to OCR.

“The three-prong test looks only at whether athletes are competing at the intercollegrate
level - not whether their teams are denominated as vamsity or club and not at their level or
source of funding.” said Walter B. Connolly Jr.. Brown's lead trial attomey “Judge Pet-
une’s opinion creates new distincuons and tests which are inconsistent with the previous
guidance of the very agency whicl his anzlysis purports to follow. You can't have it both
wavs If you are going to follow OCR guidance, you have to follow 1t all the way.”

Program Expansion

OCR's second prong asks “whether the institution czn show & history and onunuing
practce oi program expansion which is demonstrably responsive 1o the developing inter -
cst and abilities of the members of [the underrepresented] sex.”

The lower court discounted Brown's carly, explosive growth in wormen's sporty, but 1t
did not provide any guidance as to what might constitute “"a history and continuing
pracuce of program expansion ™

“When women began attending Brown in increasing numbers in the 1970s, the Univer-
sty created a women's varsity program that far exceeded demand By 1980, Brown had a
women's program of a size and quahty that most schools sull haven’t matched,” said
Robert A Reichley, exccutive vice president “That good-farth effort to build women’s
varsity sports appears 10 have been a grave mistake. According 10 Judge Petine's ruling,
Brown apparently would have been found i compliance 1f 1t had spread its development
across two decades rather than accomplishing most of 1t 1n six years If 1t was the intent of
C'ongress to discourage carly and rapid expansion of women's athletic opportunities, we
have amved ata truly absurd state of affairs ™

During the trial, Brown showed that the proportion of women in the athletic student body
has been rising steadily and has increased by 25 percent since 1986. The lower court ruled
that a decrease in the proportion of men (and the consequent increase in the proportion of
women) is not evidence of program expansion. Under Pettine™- ruling, an institution's
progress toward “substantial proportionality™ 1y disregarded under prong two, leaving
institutions no alternative but 1o establish additional women's teams. Such an affirntative
action requirement was never intended by Title IX and compronuses the admuinistrative
autonomy of educational institutions

“Brown University demonstrated its good-fatth commutment to equahity of opportunity
by building a women's program carly and building 1t big,” Reichley said “The kind of
affirmative action quotas which Judge Pettine’s ruling appears 1o require are contrary to
the sprait and intent of Tule IX ™
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Deference .

Much of this case has umed on rules, regutatiors 14 policies developed around Titte IX
by the former Department of Health, Education and Welfare, its successor, the Depart-
ment of Education, and OCR, rather than on the statute itself. The University has argued
that OCR’s statements are not entitled to the degree of deference given them by the lower
court.

Congress limited the rulc -making authority it delegated 10 HEW and OCR

Ints pre-trial brief, the University included extensive arguments about the nature of ruies
and the degree of deference to which they are entitled 1n court. OCR statements fail the
tests for “legislative ™ statemenis, must be considered only as “interpretatine” rules, and
are not entitled to judical deference.

lished over the sears are olien not i agreement with cach other

OCR’s statenients and guidelines are not mternally consistent. and dstierent versians pub-

An HEW tact sheet published in 1975 sind. “Netther quutas nor fised pereentages of any
wpe are required under the regulation.” In 1980, OCR's Imvestigator’s Manual said.
“Title EN does nat requuee institutions to offer— a preportional number of ntercollegate
pariicpation apportuniies (with respect 1o the division by sex ol the total student enroll -
ment - Rathen, it reguires institutions to meet the interests and atilities of women to the
vame degree as thes meet the attere sis and abiline s of men” lemphasis added)

Ten years Liter. OCR dropped the specilic Lnguage about mecting nterests and abifities to
the same degree and adoptedd the current “equally and eftectivels accommadates student
nterest and abilities ™

OCK ~ Policy Interpretation and Inv estigator’s Manual 1gnere or are inconsistent with the
Jasis Amendiment o Tetle IX.

The Javits Amendment was a clear expression of the intent of Congress that the natire of
certain sports muay be a legitimate reason shy one teant may be karger than another. It -
structed the seeretary of HEW to prepare and dey elop regulations that would make
“reasomable provisions considering the nature of particutar sports” - usually tahen as g
reterehee to tootball. which requires a very Yuge squad size and has no corresponding
sportavailable tor women In establishing 11s “substantial proportionahity * rule. OCR 1g-
nored the fact that any school with a foothall team would have an avtomate imbalance of
nearly 100 males

“Many observers have said 1s out of Character for Brov.n to argue publicly with s stu-

dents, and they wonder why the University continues Lo pursue the case,” said Robert A

Rerchley. exevutive vice president “In fact, the Univeraty s defending 1t principles Tt

stands for geniine equality of apportunt,, net preferential treatment 1t resists challenges
Wt astonumy wuth regand o setimg insunitiona) prionities: And where it sees important
higher education fegislas nosubserted by contradic tory and histenically divergent regula
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tions and interpretations, 1t works to set the matter nght. Many Tute [X issues in this case
are being ruled on for the first ime. We believe the current ruling i< seriously flawed and
must not be allowed to stand unchallenged ™

RRAHER
94147

Reluted dosuments s abable_trom the Brawn Nows Brucag

Q134T Favtsheeton men’s and woanen s varin sports at Brown Unnetany
AT Sumany of natiered data aboat athlens mteress

i Brown Plastitts annouece partial settfenient

Y3 Statetent of the Uapicnssin s e an the starf ot the agt

Teat of Partad Settlement Ay reemerns
Ceavenits v 3
'

EIETRAIINEN,




The Brown University News Bureau

WBrown Street Bow R
Frovidence Rio2g12
4 Revagte

FAY 401 SE-gRgs

fact sheet

DISTRIBUTED APRIL 1995 CONTACT: MARK NICKEL
FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE MARK_NICKEL@BROW N EDU

The Title IX Case
Background for Men’s and Women’s Varsity Sports at Brown University

Brown Offers One of the Nation’s Largest Varsity Programs

NCAA Drvision 1 schools must offer at least six men's and six women's championship
sports. Each year, the NCAA provides revenue-sharing funds based upon the number of
teams in excess of 12 According 10 NCAA records for 1991-92. Brown was tied for
second place 1n the number of sports offered Of the 292 schools which participated in
Divivion I sports, only Harvard offered more NCAA chamipionship sports than Brown !

Top 10 Selected National Comparisons

Hanard 30 Alabama 18 Svracuse 16
Brown 28 LUCLA 23 Texas A&M 20
Bosten College % Georgetown 19 Tulane 15
Corneli 2% Kentucky 14 UNLV 12
Penn State 2K Miami (F1) 16 Vanderbilt 15
Princeton 2% Nebraska 21 Villanova 24
Yale 28 Notre Dame 25 Washington 19
Dartmouth 27 Providence College 20
Michigan State 27 Purdue 18
Ohio State 27 Southern Cal. 17
Rutgers 27 Stanford 25

+ Brown offers 18 varsity women's sports (15 funded, 2 unfunded. | unfunded coed
team), more than double the national average for NCAA Division ! schools 8.3

* The average number of women vho participaic in varsity sports at NCAA Division 1
sehoals was approximately 112 in 1993-94 This vear, Brown will field 338 women.?
about three times the NCAA Division 1 average

* This year. nearly 12 percent of Brawn undergraduate women will participate in varsity
sports, nearly tmple the national average

T The NCAA docs nat offer nahonal championships for all varsiy sports: Altkough Brown

friekded 31 intercollegiate varaty teams at the ime the NCAA oftered natronal
champranships for only 28 Data were reported m a memorandum from NCAA Executive
rector Richard D Schultz to CEOx of Selected Diviston T Institutions August 14 1992

According to the testirony of coaches as representad in Brown's post-trial menwrandum
Tal* A
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Participation Opportunities®
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Chronology of Intercollegiate Varsity Tearss at Brown

Brow n was an carly leader in women's sports, establishing the nation's first women’s ice
hockey team and undertaking a period of intense expansion when Brown and Pembroke,
the undergraduate college for women. merged 1n 1971, By 1978, Brown's program of
vabsity athleucs for women offered twice a« many teams as most NCAA Division 1
schools do now

Women's Year  Men's

1869  Baschall
1878  Football
1879 Outdoor Track
1897  Ice Hockey
1900 Basketball
1905 Swimmuing
1912 Indoor Track
1921 Cross Country
1922 Wresthag
1925 Golf®
1926 Lactosse
1926 Sovce
1927 Tennnn
1961 Crew
lee Hockey® 1967
1971 Erswe aad Pembrake Coliege Merge
Tenms 1972
Basketball 1973
Crew 1971
Freld Hockey 1973
Gymnastics 1974
Squash 1974
Swimming 1974
Volieyvbaii 1974 Water Pale
Cross Country 1975
Lacrowe 197§
Soccer 1975
Softhall 1975
Outdoor Track 1978
Fencing 1980 Fencing
Indoor Track 1982
1980 Squash
Golf* 1993
Shung 1994

Brown's gl tedm i now a single coed squad

Krown established the nation s firsst women s sce hockes teame The Bears were orgamized in
Tand anmd bevanie a varaty sportin 1967, betore the merger of Brownand 'embroke

OVIK
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A Chronology of the Title iX Case

W the spring of 1991, Brown was tuaing a double edped budget didemma Unless 1t took
some dramat steps, the Unnversaty would timsh the vear with ¢ $1 6 nuthon deficit
Worse, a structural problens n the Umiversity s budget virtadly puarasteed that defions
would be a recurmeg problem Brown needed to downsize

President Gregonan announced an immedaate moratorium on nes b aod directed thar
- all deparunents throughout wie Uinveraits wonld cut therr budeeis to sty oft the defo
tThere would be only o excephions The schelardip mnd budget and the hibrary

wcquisiions budgetl were exempt trom cuin g

April 29, 1991

To help produce its share of savings, e athlens depertment witkdaes Tunding flom four
varsy teams nen’ s water poleand goltwemen’s gavinosties wad volleyball The e
continued 1o compete at the intercodlegiale varsity Tevel and reruaned el gihle tor post sea
st tenmatnent play . but had (e rase their own funds

The cats aftected approxiniatels 60 athitetes in toughly the sarie mgle to femdle o as
ton all Bieswp varsty athletes atthe tive 60 300 The Unes erans contiiued to honor exist
my contraeis for coaches of the eans

April 9, 1992
Approvmately d vear faier, members of the twe woren’s teams filed suit alleging sexval
drecnmuination and violation of Triiie INC s tederal faw that prohibits diswnimnnation based
on gender at any educationdi imstitutions that receve tederal tonds The women were
represented by Trigl Lassers tor Public Justice. an advecacy group in Washington. D C,

July 15, 1992

Attarner s for the plamafis asked for a prohnunany imuection that would regquite Brown e
reinstate funding for the two women’s teams and refaes fiom any turther cuts in wom:
en's sports unti} the case could he heord on its memis Arguments were presented before
Judge Pettine between (kt 20 and Nov 16

Dec. 22, 1992
Pettune granted the , chmunany injuchion. reguining Bre wn o reinstate full varsity funiding
and support The Univeraity immediatels sought a stay of that injunction and requested an
expedited appeal

Dec. 30, 1992

The U.S Court of Appeals for the First Circuit granted a temmporary stay: Brown did not
have to reinstate funding unul the appeal could be heard

Feb. 4, 1993

Attorneys for both sides argued the appeal in Boston

MORI
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April 15, 1993

The Appeals Court upheld the lower court, the stay was lifted. and Brown restored fund-
ing for the teams in the 1993-94 scason

Sept. 26, 1994

After numerous delays at the request of plaintiffs’ attorneys, the tnal began in LS.
Distnet Court in Providence befure Senior Judge Raymond Pettine.

Sept. 28, 1994

Attomeys for both sides agreed to a partial seutlement that recognizes Brown's ureatment
of nxn's and wotnen's teams as nondiscriminatory with regard to locker rooms, facilities
for practice and competition, schedules for games and practices. access t0 the weight
room and trainers. équipment ard supplics. travel arrangements, assignment of coaches.
budgeting procedures and many other factors. Brown agreed to continue those current
pelicies and practices for three years. Treatment issues were thereby removed from con-
sicerapon in the tal, which then focused on the issue of proportionahity

Oct. 11, 1994

Planuffs requested and received a three-week recess o depose witnesses for the defense.
Dec. 9, 1994

Tesumony concluded atzzi 9 davs in court

Dac. 16, 1994

Final orul arguments were made by attorney s for each side

feb. 10, 1995

Post-wial memoranda were presented to Pettine, followed two weeks later by reply briefs
from both sides

March 29, 1993

Petune entered his final opinion and order, finding for the plainuffs. Rrown was given
120 days to file a plan for compliance, but Petune stayed his own order pending appeal.
Brown announces its intention to appeal the case 1o the First Circuit Coun of Appeals.

LALLLE]
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Unequal Treatment Claims Dropped
Brown, Plaintiffs Announce Partial Settlement Agreement in Title IX Case

Brown University and a group of women athietes who charged the University with viola-
von of Tide IX have announced a partiad setdement in a current Title IX tnal. The settle-
pient, announced Wednesday, Sept. 28, removes all issues of equal treatment for men’s

and women's tunded varsiy ens from consideration in the tnal

Lhider terms of the Jo-pape document, w huch must be formally appraved by Semor U.S
Dustrict Judpe Raymoad Pettiie, the women athietes agree to diop any claims of unequal
treatment of tunded varsity teams, and the Umvemsity agrees to cantiue 1ts curent pro-
prams and poiteies of tair and equal ueatinent with respect to those teams. The agreement

will termmate automatically after three veans, no fates than Oct, 20, 190

“W hen Irown Ginersety™s corient teatiment of pien’s and wonen’s s 1s ey aluated
on a pioptanande bass as Titie INequnes, there 1s absolutely no suggestien of disenm
mation agamst women's teams,” sand Robert A Reichicy, exceutive vice president
Galmmar, publie agtais and external ielations). “In this settlement, the Unnersity is only
apreciap, to continue s cuncnt pelicies and practices, mammimg iis histor cal role as a

national medel for wornen’s mtercollepiate vansty athleties.”

To date, the case has raised nolated, unconnected aneedotes of percened mequalities be-
tween teams. Reichiey smd None ot the anecdotes demonstrated discrinunation; rather,
they pomted to legitimate difterences between teams of (0 the preferences of individual
coaches 1 managng there athletes the aneedotes included the sutt of complaints that

Canid be Dieard from men’s and women's teams alike

By clintuiting these tssues of cquahty of treaiment trom the caurt’s consideration, the
settlement 1s eapected to shorten the length of the trial dramatically. Prior to the agrec-

tnent, estinates of the tnal’s duration ran as high as tice months On the day after the
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agreement was announced, Judge P:ttine asked attorneys in open court how long they

would require to present their cases. Based on their responses, Pettine determined that the
trial would last approximately three more weeks.

The agrecment, titled Settlement Agreement and Stipulation of Dismissal in Regard to
Equality of Treatment, covers all “funded varsity teams at Brown as to which there is cur-
rently no dispute conceming their funded varsity status.” It assures that Brown will con-
unue 1ts fair and cqual treatment of men and women’s teams in such categories as locker
rooms, facilitics for practice and comgpetition, schedules for games and practices, access to
the weight room and trainers, cquipment and supglies, coaching, travel arrangements,
publicity, and recruiting, among others. At the end of each academic year covered by the
agreement, the Unsversity will prepare an annual report regarding subject arcas covered in

the document
The agreement did not address attormey’s fees

“I'tus aprecinent ends an unnecessary conflict,” sard Brown President Vartan Gregonan,
who has been w daily welephone contact with attorneys and adimnistrators at the Uniser.
sity whule he 1s tavehag abroad It will allow the comt o fowns on the magor fssees

wihich Ee al the heart of the case ™

The i wilb now focus on the magor ogai ssares, meiucmy whether itk IX 1equires 4
Sidns propoitionahity between men and women athleres and whether any difterence of
propottionality requies turther accommodation of the ahilete interests and ahilities of

Andenis By adding mnore women’s teanis,

“Admoeyh Brown hasiesolved these teeatinent patters waiih the plantits, the University
was fully prepared to answer and dispoove any an § 2l alicestions mconrt,” smid Walier
B Connedly I+ 0 who has arpned the Umverssty ™ case betore Judee Pettine “The curtent

it st practices which the University s cotmates o0 9t o aipport aie sub s

ablhv e e thev weons e sear s
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STATEMENT OF DAVID L. JORNS, Ph.D., PRESIDENT, EASTERN
ILLINOIS UNIVERSITY, CHARLESTON, ILLINOIS

Chairman MCKEON. Dr. Jorns.

Dr. JOrNS. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I believe I can do this in
five minutes.

I appreciate the opportunity to address you today. I am David
Jorns, the President of the Eastern Illinois University, located in
Charleston, Illinois. I have held the position since November 1992.

I can speak to OCR’s enforcement of Title IX anly from my per-
spective as the president of a medium-sized, public, regional uni-
versity which has undergone a recent compliance review. I hasten
to add that I support OCR’s efforts in this regard and gender eq-
uity in all respects. Moreo er, I appreciate the efforts of Congress-
man Hastert and Ms. Cantu in helping us resolve the concerns we
had with the Chicago office of OCR.

Our difficulties with OCR and its enforcement of Title IX on our
campus are primarily centered on process. When the OCR team
visited Eastern initially, we were led to understand that any pro-
posed settlement would be shared with us verbally so that we
might correct errors in fact and negotiate the details which would
lead to our eventual compliance. In fact, no such thing happened.
OCR’s proposed settlement agreement was based on factual find-
ings by OCR, but the agency would not share its letter of findings
with Eastern, even in draft form. To maintain security for the doc-
ument, EIU offered to review it in Chicago, instead of requesting
a hard copy; this was rejected without adequate explanation.

Due to lack of information, EIU was effectively prevented from
identifying facts, if any. supporting OCR’s conclusions and deter-
mining whether OCR’s proposed agreement was tailored to any
specific alleged violation. Instead, we were sent a settlement agree-
ment ve had never discussed, which indicated, among other things,
that we were to add four women's sports in the very near future:
women'’s soccer, which we were already adding of our own accord,
women’s golf, women’s field hockey, snd women's gymnastics. We
were given a very short period in which to comply.

Two of the proposed sports would have been prohibitively expen-
sive for us, considering that athletics on our campus does not make
money. Moreover, the same two sports had no relevance whatso-
ever to our school. We explained that no unmet interest had been
displayed for these two sports. Women's gymnastics, T have been
told, is a sport which is very expensive and is beginning to fade be-
cause the most competitive female gymnasts tend to be below col-
lege age. Women's field hockey is not even played in Illinois to any
extent, and we would have been required to import players in the
northeastern part of the country. We would also have had great dif-
ficulty finding competition since neither sport is prevalent in our
athletic conference. In any case, we didn't have the necessary fund-
ing.

OCR will tell vou that they never recommended that men’s
sports be cut in pursuit of gender equity. However, that seems to
he the case in many instances, if the university or college can't af-
ford to add more sports. Qur attorney managed to mitigate some
of the conditions in the settleme:it agreement sent us by OCR, bul
we had ne choiee but to cut two men's sports, swimming and wres-
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tling, in order to reach the immediate goal set by OCR. I might add
that, when the inevitable student protests began, women athletes—
particularly women swimmers—were among those who opposed
cutting the men’s sports most aggressively.

Again, I believe we should comply with Title IX; it is the right
thing to do. But, it took many years to get into this position, and
if your institution plays footbaﬁ, as has been noted, coming into
compliance is expensive and time consuming. Schools without foot-
ball do not seem to have nearly the problem we have.

By testing for interests and abilities and looking at emerging
women'’s sports as well as through a gradual migration of resources
over a reasonable number of years, even football schools can come
into compliance. However, aggressive settlements which do not
take the institution’s circumstances into consideration, settlements
such as we were given, inevitably lead to cuts in men’s sports.

OCR really doesn’t need to dictate terms or micromanage compli-
ance. Unuversities and colleges are under constant accreditation re-
view from various agencies, including the NCAA.

The agencies point out areas of concerns and expect the institu-
tions to correct the concern within a specified period. In our gen-
der-equity compliance review, however, OCR informed us, among
other things, that we were not pulling out bleachers far enough for
women'’s eveunts, since they are pulled out two rows less than men's
in the same gymnasium. I am not sure why that was important,
but we probably could have figured it out on our own.

Thank you.

Chairman McKEON. Thank you.
[The prepared statement of Dr. Jorns follows:]

STATEMENT OF DR. DAvVID L. JORNS, PH.D., PRESIDENT, EASTERN [LLINOIS
UNIVERSITY, CHARLESTON, ILLINOIS

Thank gou for the opportunity to address you today on this important matter. My
name is David Jorns and I am the president of Eastern Illinois University located
in Charleston, Illinois. I have held this position since November, 1992.

I can speak to OCR's enforcement of Title IX only from my perspective as the
president of a medium sized, public, regional university which has undergone a re-
cent compliance review. [ hasten to add, that I support OCR's efforts in this regard.
and gender equity in all respects. Moreover, I appreciate the efforts of Congressman
Hastert and Ms. Canti in helping us resolve the concerns we had with the Chicago
office of OCR.

Qur difficulties with OCR and its enforcement of Title IX on our campus primarily
centered on process.

When the OCR team visited Eastern initially, we were led to understand that any
proposed settlement would be shared with us verbally so that we might correct er-
rors in fact and negotiate the details which would lead to our eventual compliance.
In fact, no such thing happened.

OCR's proposed settlement agreement was based on factual findings by OCR, but
the agency would not share its mr of findings with EIU, even in draft form.

To maintain security for the document, EIU offered to review it in Chicago, in-
stead of requesting a hard copy; this was rejected without adequate explanation.

Due to lack of information, EIU was effectively prevented trom identifying facts,
if any, supporting OCR's conclusions and determining whether OCR's proposed
agrecement was taﬁored to any specific alleged violation. Instead we were sent a set-
tlement agreement we had never discussed which indicated, among other things,
that we were to add four women's sports in the very near future: Soccer {which we
were already adding of our own accord], women's golf, women's field hockey. and
women's gymnastics. We were given a very short period in which to comply.

Two of the pruposed sports would have been prohibitively expensive for us consid-
cring that athletics on our campus does not maY(e money. Moreover, these same two
sports had no relevance whatsoever to our school. We explained that no unmet in-
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terest had been displayed for these two sports. Women's gymnastics, I have been
told, is a sport which is very expensive and is beginning to fade because the most
competitive women gymnasts are below college age. Women's field hockey is not
even played in Illinois to any extent and we would have been required to import
players from the northeastern part of the country. We would also have had great
difficulty finding competition since neither =port is prevalent in our athletic con-
ference. In any case. we didn't have the necessary funding.

OCTR will tell you that they never recommend that men's sports be cut in pur<uit
of gender equity. However. that seems to be the case in many instances f the uni-
versity or college can't afford to add more sports. Qur attorney managed to mitigate
~ome of the conditions 1n the settlement agreement =cnt to us by OCR, but we had
nn choice but to cut two men's sports, swimming ar-) wrestling, 1in order to reach
the ummediate goals set by OCR. I might add that w.en the inevitable student pro-
texts began. women athletes—part. -ularly women swimmers. -were among those
whio opposged cutting the men’s sport~ most aggressively.

Agair. I beueve we should comply with fude IX, 1t's the nght thing to do. But,
1t took many years to get into ths position and, if your nstitutien play= foothali,
coming inte cnmpln')ce 1 expensive and time consuming Scheolz without football
do not seem to have nearly the problem we have

By testing for interests and abitht. s and looking at emergitig women's sports, as
weii through g gradual migration of resaurces over a reasonable number of vears,
even football schools can come into compliance Fiowever, agares<ive settlements
which do not take the institution’s circumsiances into con~ideration. settlements
such as we were rven, inevitably lead to cuts 1n men's sports.

OCR really doesnt need to dictate terms or micramnanage comphance. Universities
and coleges are under censtant accreditation review from various agencies, includ-
ing the NCAA The agencies point out area< of coneern and expect the institntuons
to correct the concern within a specified period In our gender equity compliance re
view, however. OCR wformed us that we were not puliing out bicachers far enough
for women's events, <since they are pulled out two rows fes< than wmen’s in the <ame
gymnasum

We probably ceuld have figurea that eut

Thank vou.

Chairman McRroxN. You knpow, it is interesting to me, we have
now heard testimony from five people, and some sounding like dif-
ferent sides on the issue, hut we haven't heard anyvone say that
thev don't think women should have opportunity or should have
equal opportunity.

But listening to some of this last testimony reminds me of some
of the other things we have heard about government in the past,
at least while T have been here in Congress, especially these last
fow weeks—-that sometimes there are “unintended conseguences”
that people v ha write the laws, and people who write the regula-
tions, have ¢ 4t intentions, but by the time it gets to some person
who administers that regulation, sometimes people get caught up
in their own authority. We have seen that happen with OSHA; we
have seen it happen in the Post Office, anvwhere. And it ise't just
government, it is in private industry, ton People—-sometimes a lit-
tle withority goes to their head and they want to mse that author-
jiv.

In vour testimony, Doctor, vou said that vou hud asked for some
indication first. It seems to me that if people really are all tryving
to work together for the same thing, they sit down together. define

the problems, then work towards a solution. You don't hit someone
over the head with o maollei

I see everybody nodding, but how do we make that happen?
What would you do to resolve this without going to court or using
a mallet on somebody? How can we =it down like reasonable people
to all achieve what we are trving to achieve?
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Ms. CANTU. Mr. Chairman, in the two years [ have learned that
there are ways that we can become better law enforcement officers.
We have tried to reinvent ourselves through our complaint process-
‘ng to help the process improve.

One change that was needed, because I heard it from more peo-
»le than President Jorns, was that universities wanted to see in
draft what OCR was likely to make a finding on. We now do that.
We now have our regional offices share, and that is a new practice.
We listened to the folks that we worked with who wanted us to
share information on what we were likely to make a determination
on.

Seco.dly, I have appointed a national issue coordinator, a single
person whose sole responsibility is to see to it that we are using
the best-trained, the best-skilled investigators in the area of Title
IX college athletics.

So I have made training a priority, and coordination and sharing
of information a priority. We do agree that government should be
improved and are working on that. We know we are not perfect,
and we are trying to improve ourselves.

Cheirman MCKEON. A lot of it is attitude, if you go in with the
idea that we are trying to work together, not that we are trying
to catch you doing something wrong——

Dr. . JorNs. T would like to compliment Ms. Canti. Working with
her has been excellent. Unfortunately, it took the intervention of
a Federal Congressman—Ms. Canti is a very highly placed official
in United States Government—and it took an enormous amount of
grief and effort. To this date, our attorney expenses just in this
simple matter have exceeded $30,000, which we really didn’t have
to spend. So, it is unfortunate that we have had to go through this.
Of course, most institutions don’t have the access we have, because
Congressman Hastert took our part.

Ms. CANTU. Tt doesn’t take a Congressman to get my attention.
I pick up my own phone. I have, in fact, had both universities and
complainants call my office to ask for assistance. That is one of the
purposes of the issue coordinator, to help facilitate.

I agree; it is all in an attitude. We believe that universities are
trying to do the right thing, and 1 compliment Brown University
for what it has done. We do give universities credit for what they
have done. But it doesn’t take a Congressman to get my attention.
Anyone can write or call or see me in person. We do try to be open
to the public.

Dr. GREGORIAN. May I comment about how we can improve?

First, the judge in question ruled against us because he said we
have to mirror proportionality between the athletes we have and
the student body we have on the basis of gender, not substantial
proportionality, which is what OCR says; it said to mirror propor-
tionality. That is one thing OCR could have cleared by filing an
amicus brief with us, that we disagree with the judge’s ruling; that
i~ not what OCR intended.

Second, OCR says we can go and study mixed surveys, but it
dnesn’t say which surveys are acceptable to the courts and which
surveys are acceptable to OCR. We have gone to SAT, college
boards and the others, NCAA. The judge would not admit the
NCAA guidehook, yearbook, as evidence. We have spent a lot of

oy
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money. There are no accepted text methods that satisfy either OCR
or the judges. Why doesn't OCR say what is acceptable and then
we can correct accordingly.

Third, OCR, to their great credit, and Title IX. to its great credit,
encourages that people should include intercollegiate club sports
for more women. The judge in question discounted club sports alto:
gether. Only varsity clubs. OCR should file a brief with us saying
intercollegiate athletics, club sports do count for women. Those are
the kinds of things that need clarification.

My quarrel is not with Ms. Cantu, whom I respect ery much,
because these rules are not her recollections: she is administering
them. My quarrel is that the intent has been left <o unclear that
everybody can interpret it any way they want.

Chairman McKroN. Thank you very much.

Mr. Williams.

Mr. WiLLiaMs, Thank you.

Secretary Canti. when enforcing Title IX. does—und if so how
does--the Office of Civil Rights take into consideration the inher-
ent differences sport to sport?

Als. CANTU. As 1 recounted. there were s number of congressional
discussions about what Title IX meant to cover. and Congress de-
cided, and 1 believe correctly. that Title 1X was intended to cover
all sports, so we don't exempt any sports from the Title IX review.

We are required by Congress. and I believe it was the right deci-
sion by Congress, to consider the unique aspects of each sport. That
means that we give credit for sports that require additional medi-
cal attention or additional medical services hecause of safety rea-
sons.

We are respectful of sports that require more staff because there
are more crowds and there is a need for crowd management. We
respect that. We don't ding a campus that has additional services
or resources for that. We look at this time at the unique aspects
of each sport as required, and that has been our practice and con-
tinues to be our practice.

Mr. WILLIAMS. President Gregorian, it is good to see you here
again. When 1 chaired this subcommittee you and I visited a lot
when you were across the street at the Library, and it is nice to
have you with us again.

The Federal court did not order Brown to cut men’s sports ef-
forts, did it?

Dr. GREGORIAN. I am sorry?

Mr. WILLIaMS. Did the court order Brown to reduce men’s spo:ts
spending or generally reduce your efforts with regard to members’
sports?

Dr. GREGORIAN. No. Let me answer. [ am glad you brought this
up.

We have not eliminated any women’s teams, contrary to the
widespread propaganda today nationally. We have not. We have
changed the status of four teams, two men’s and two women'’s, from
university- to donor-funded, and we also helped them to raise
funds. One of those two women'’s teams has been reinstated, thanks
to a gift from men’s volleyball. The only thing we have eliminated
is freshman football, because we wanted to, not because we were
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ordered to, for financial reasons, rather than doing it for Title IX
reasons. I should also say that. '

We have eliminated four men’s junior varsity teams. We have not
eliminated a single women’s team. The court, however, in‘its judg-
ment, has given us four choices: number one, eliminate all your
athletic programs the way Brooklyn College has done; number two,
cap your men’s team, cap the teams; third, eliminate teams; and
fourth, increase women’s teams.

We have 34 sports. If one of them is football, we will still be fac-
ing the issue of proportionality, so the judge has not ordered us to
do it, but does it in such a way that we cannot do anything but
either increase the budget for athletics, which I don’t intend to do
because it is the same source that covers library, instruction, and
so forth.

Any increase in the athletic budget has to come from donors, not
by university funds. I have lost faculty salaries, and my library
struggles. I decided six years ago, we will not put any money into
athletics. The only thing I will do is cut, and how we cut is up to
us.

Mr. WiLLiaMS. Thank you.

Dr. Jorns, should Title IX count football player walk-ons dif-
ferently than it treats participants in the other sports?

Dr. JorNS. It would help. We have 63 scholarships, and we play
1AA football, and we have had squad sizes of about 100. We have
voluntarily capped at 80. So if that difference could be taken into
consideration, it could help.

Mr. WiLLIAMS. Given that football is primarily almost exclusively
a man'’s sport, would you be willing then to not count at least walk-
ons in sports that are primarily women's sports, field hockey or
volleyball or synchronized swimming? Would you treat them the
same way you treat football?

We are all after equity, including you. If we are going to exclude
part of football, can we exclude part of sports that are primarily
women'’s sports?

Dr. JORNS. I suppose we can. I don’t know what that would ac-
comnlish, but we could.

Dr. GREGORIAN. We could, too.

Chairman MCKEON. Thank you.

Mr. Gunderson.

Mr. GUNDERSON. Thank you. I am tempted to fcllow up the line
of questioning Mr. Williams has asked, Eut I think I want to go
back to a different set.

Secretary Cantu, what is your position orn Cohen v. Brown Uni-
versity? .

Ms. CANTU. I have no position. It was not a complaint brought
to my office. My staff have not investigated that campus. We have
not participated in any of the court proceedings, and I have not had
an opportunity to review the record in that case, su I have no posi-
tion to report today.

Mr. GUNDERSON. Well, but it seems to me that if I were in your
position, I would certainly review that court case because, if I un-
derstand that case, it says that Brown didn’t meet any one of the
three tests.

Is that correct, Dr. Gregorian?
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Dr. GREGORIAN. Yes.

Ms. CANTC. My understanding, Mr. Gunderson, is that the status
of the case is that the court has asked the university to respond
as to whether remedy is possible. I am not even sure the court case
is over. I don’t know what your sense is of the timing, but my sense
is that the judge turned it to the university and asked the univer-
sity what they thought they might do.

Mr. GUNDERSON. I want to hear from Dr. Gregorian about that,
but in your testimony, you say the three-part test furnishes three
individual avenues for compliance. Now, I read that to mean you
can meet any one of those three and comply, which leads me to
wonder what the problem is here today because if every university
is increasing Farticipation in women's athletics, why would they
then not comply.

Now, if I were in your position and the court had decided that
this university hadn’t met “all three,” it would be sending me two
signals: first, this university hadn’t met any one of the three; but,
second, it raises the question of whether or not “all three” have to
be met. I think there is a real concern. It isn't by accident we have
all these people in this room today.

Dr. Gregorian, would you comment on this?

Dr. GREGORIAN. Yes. Ms. Cantu is right in this sense, that the
judge ordered us March, I guess, 29, in a final order. The
plaintiffs’s lawyer then sued the judge, or whatever it is, inter-
vened saying the judge’s opinion was defective or incomplete be-
cause he had not provided remedy. And I think yesterday or the
day before, or two days ago, the judge has issued yet another order,
this time giving us 60 days instead of 120, removing the stay whicn
he had given us before, to come up with some kind of remedy which
will include any of the four above things that 1 mentioned.

Mr. GUNDERSON. I am confused because, in your testimony, yvou
say that shortly after the enactment of Title IX, you began a proc-
ess to significantly increase participation by women in program ex-
pansion tests you should have met.

Dr. GREGORIAN. Yes.

Mr. GUNDERSON. The court said you didn’t meet it, directing——

Dr. GREGORIAN. The court says, What have you done lately? The
court has praised—really, it is almost that cynical, I tell you. If we

-had moved slower initially like other universities, every two years
adding one women'’s team, we would be here now with all the othe -
individuals on the other side saying how wonderful Brown is; in-
stead, we did all of it massively because we believe in it. We didn't
do it because, “it was required of us,” we did it because we believe
in it. Now they say, show us what you have done in the last six
years, show us progress. Only one thing was requested: Men’s and
women'’s fencing. It went to the University Priorities Center be-
cause we have a committee made up of faculty, students, and ad-
ministrators, and the University Priorities Committee rejected it in
1990. That is the only request in six years we have had.

Mr. GUNDERSON. Let me go back to Secretary Cantu on this.
When you determine compliance, how far back do you go?

Ms. CANTU. We look at all three prongs. We remind ourselves
and the university that we are working with there are three sepa-
rate, independent avenues. The university indicates to us which av-
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enue th%y believe that they can show that they comply, so they
choose. They let us know. Perhaps they tell us they are going to
comply under prong two because they are going to describe a story
of how they had continuous expansion.

It is not a continuous expansion to start and stop the work.
There has to be continuous expansion of opportunities. When the

olicy guidance was prepared the word “continuous” was inserted
ecause we wanted to take into account that there needed to be
equal opportunity. So “continuous” was not just a random word
that was just dropped into the standard. It was put in there and
then approved by four different circuit courts because it meant that
it was a way to provide an avenue that could be met and is being
met.

I can cite examples in my office where campuses show, under
prong two, that they have the continuous expansion so there is no
violation of that part of Title IX.

Mr. GUNDERSON. Okay. Define for us “continuous.” I mean, what
would be an expansion of women'’s sports in the last five years, 10
years, that wou{)d meet your test of continuous?

Ms. CANTU. We generally look at five years, the past most recent
five years, but that is not a fixed rule because we try to aveid hav-
ing a cookie cutter fixed numerical answer. That is not what we
want. When the university chooses to prove that it has addressed
opportunity under prong two, “history and continuous expansion,”
it tells us how many years back it wants to go, and we look at that.
If it doesn't show a clear pattern of continuous expansion of oppor-
tunities, then it doesn’t show that. I mean, it is a question of fact.

Mr. GUNDERSON. My time is up.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman MCKEON. Thank you.

Ms. Woolsey.

Ms. WooLsey. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Ms. Cantu, | hear a great deal of frustration from Dr. Jorns and
Dr. Gregorian. Do you feel that the administrative regulators now
under vour leadership are able to put more emphasis on good faith
efforts than on statistical measurements, not forcing—I mean, like
when we were talking about field hockey at a school that doesn't
play field hockey. How do you respond to that?

Ms. CANTU. [ have to be very honest and very frank and say that
the numbers show up because they inform us, and the numbers let
us know how well someone is doing. So, yes, our investigators look
at numbers. But we do not let the numbers make decisions for us.

Ms. WOOLSEY. You round that out with——

Ms. CANTU. We do not let the numbers become fixed or inflexible
or rigid and tell us whether someone is following the law or not fol-
lowing the law. The numbers inform us the way they inform the
courts. They tell us where we are. They are a benchmark, a per-
formance measure.

But the numbers don't tell us that the law is being complied with
or not complied with. That decision is made in looking at the over-
all opportunities offered to men as compared to women. And that
overall includes testimony we collect. [t includes the evidence,
staternents made by the university. We look at all of that to come
to a decision whether the law is being violated.
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Ms. WOOLSEY. The decision to mandate a sport like field hockey
at a campus that doesn’t want field hockey, where does that come
in and where do you step it?

Ms. CANTU. There is tension. There are people who have asked
me in the two years I have been there to be more specific and more
detailed in our guidance and spell out exactly what we want done
at each campus. I resist that because the potential is, we could be-
come very intrusive in decisions that should be made at campuses.

So what happens in practice is our staff in the regional offices
have conversations, negotiations with the chief executive officers at
the campus about what works at that campus. And so when some-
one asks for information about what does OCR want, we say our
bottom line is we want equal opportunity for men and women. How
we get there is going to be the result of our discussions.

We always start by asking to add programs. I have verified this.
t have called all of our regional offices and have had conversations
with each office and they always at the outset ask to add programs.
When the universities respond by saying, I cant afford it or for
whatever reason don't want to add programs, then we ask the uni-
versity, well, what are you going to do?

Our bottom line is you are going to offer equal opportunity. We
turn to the university and we ask them: How are you going to do
that? In Eastern lllinois, I had had conversation with President
Jorns; he told me that he felt he couldn’t do anything except to cut,
that was his decision, so we incorporated that decision when we
wrote the agreement. We didn’t like it either, that that was going
to be the decision, but our bottom line is equal opportunity. We did
try. and we would welcome ideas on how to add because we believe
that is the best choice.

Ms. WooLsey. Well, speaking of adding. can I ask, Dr. Gregorian
and Dr. Jorns, isn’t the root problem that we aren’t investing in
our kids in this country, that we don't invest in their education,
thut we aren’t getting them ready for the workforce of the future?
If we did invest more on the Federal level and on State levels,
would you use some of that money for athletics? .

Mr. GREGORIAN. We in the Ivy League are completely different.
That is why we are anomalous. We have no athletic scholarships.
We admit students on the basis of their promised academic talent,
If a student comes to Brown for football, tomorrow morning decides
he does not want to play football, we don’t say out. Women, the
same thing,

The problem that we face is not resource alone. It is proportion-
ality the way the judge has said to us that participation must mir-
ror enrollment. So this year, for the first time, we are admitting
51 or 52 percent women to our university. Wonderful. We have pro-
grams for women in science. Wonderful. I encourage this.

Now, I cannot tell these women you had better perform in athlet-
ics, otherwise you cause financial problems and I have to go get
money. We cannot. It is a completely different thing. We cannot,
year in and year out, switch our things. That is the iSsue we face.
Others face the money issue. My money that 1 put in athletics,
with the exception of donors who give, comes from universities on
restricted funds.
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That is why a university committee consisting of faculty students
and administrators decides our priorities. It is not money alone. It
is also opportunity. We have only three teams left that we don't
have. The judge is asking, cut those three teams and you will be
all right. It doesn’t matter how many participate in it. It is not the
numbers at first. The moment you have the teams, not enough par-
= ticipants.

) We have 100 vacancies in participating opportunities in various

teams. The judge says opportunity does not count. Actual participa-

. tion counts. That is why I called it a Catch-22. You create the

team, but you don’t have the participation, so you are held account-

N able on participation. You don’t have the team, so you are held ac-

’ countable on the team. What I like is clarity—how many sports, op-

timum, should universities have. I would like a figure from OCR.
Thirty, forty-five, fifty?

Ms. WOOLSEY. ] am going to assume that Ms. Cantu is going to
work on you. Could Dr. Jorns answer my question or should I be
through?

Chairman MCKEON. You should be through.

Ms. WOOLSEY. Well, you arer’t doing such a good job after all,
Mr. Chairman.

{Laughter.]

Chairman MCKEON. Now that we see how I am being judged and
. on what standard, let me just have a short follow up on that.

S Dr. Jorns, you commented that you were told by the OCR that
you weren’t pulling your bleachers out far enough. That sounds to

me like micromanagement. I heard Secretary Cantu say she didn’t

believe in micromanagement. How long ago did that take place?

_ Dr. JORNS. The visit that we had was last year or a year-and-

- a-half sgo.

Chairman McKEON. So within the last two years, you were told

S on the bleachers.
o Dr. JORNS. Yes.
T Chairman MCKEON. Are you aware of that, Secretary.

E Ms. CANTU. Yes.

- Chairman MCKEON. Does that fall within the micromanagement
that you are talking about?
Ms. CANTG. We are still negotiating with that campus, and they
have—
Chairman MCKEON. As to how far they should pull out their
bleachers?

L Ms. CANTG. No. No. Today was the first time I heard of the
- . bleachers issue. Again, 1 really appreciate people bringing such

‘ things to our attention. That helps us so much.

; Chairman MCKEON. Now that you know, does that sound to you
- like micromanagement?
S Ms. CANTU. It does indeed, and we will go back and take a look
T at that.
N Chairman MCKEON. Great.

Dr. GREGORIAN. Mr. Chairman, may I just answer one thing? We
were requested by plaintiffs’ lawyers to produce tens of thousands
of bills, from socks to jockstraps, everything going back for a few
years. Every receipt had to be produced, you know, to show that
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we had done well. Taat is the kind of harassment, also. that this
cottage industry does in these institutions.

Chairman MCKEON. Mr. Roemer.

Mr. ROEMER. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

I asked a series of questions to the first panel, to our colleagues,
and I want to follow up with the same question to Ms. Cantu. Sim-
ple question. Does the OCR * requlre > settlement agreements which
include cutting or capping men’s programs?

Ms. CaNTU. No. We have a chart that shows we have had 456
cases. In zero cases, not a single one, have we “required” it. Let me
be clear, if a campus “chooses” that as a .ocal decision, we write
it up as an agreement, but we do not “require” it. We don’t want
to do that, but we respect that campuses have to make their own
local decisions about their resources.

Mr. ROEMER. Now, secondly, we seem to have twc individuals
here who are very supportive of Title IX yet very frustrated with
the implementation and administration of Title IX. Without putting
too many words into Dr. Jorns’ testimeny and into his mouth, I
think he said that OCR dictates the terms of compliance. Whether
that is capping or cutting men’s programs, which you say you do
not do, or mandating what women’s programs should be added, do
you think it is prudent or fair to dictate what women’s programs
should be added in tue different instances?

Ms. CANTU: We would not require or dictate which program, you
are right. We have a bottom line which is what Congress requires
us to do and that is to afford equal opportunity. When a campus
comes forward and says, I want to keep the status quo, we tell
them that is not one of their a choices. We do take that choice
away from them.

Mr. ROEMER. I would just say, Ms. Cantu, you were not even
aware of the bleacher situation before the hearing t.oday, so I think
we have accomplished something there, anyway. But it should not
take each one of our universities having a hearing to work out bet-
1l:er cooperative arrangements before tgese cases go to a court of
aw.

Ms. CANTU. Sir, usually it does not. Usually we are able to work
them out. This is the first time I have had a Congressman call me
about an athletics case.

Mr. ROEMER. Let me ask you another question. Does OCR work
with schools to avoid compliance problems with athletic programs?

Ms. CANTU. Absolutely. We have a strong technical assistance
grogram and we have a very strong outreach program. I personally

ave gone to talk to balanced audiences, sports association audi-
ences, women’s coaches, all types of groups to ask them to work out
problems before they become an OCR complaint.

Mr. ROEMER. Anc{ your outreach efforts are equally funded and
equally encouraged from an administrative perspective? It is not
the sc%ool always coming to you. It is you going out to the schools
to help them with com Fance and to anticipate problems with the
administration of Title YX

Ms. CANTU. Yes, sir.

Mr. ROEMER. Secondly, r. Joms and Dr. Gregorian, do you feel
that OCR applied each prong of the three-part test in finding viola-
tion in Title IX f)
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Dr. JorNs. 1 do not. I agree with Dr. Gregorian on that. And if
[ may make an additional commen:.. Congressman, I think—and 1
don't want to put words in Ms., Canti's mouth—that probably the
difficulty that OCR may have is siaff. We were to have had a
verbal discussion about how to move forward, which we never had,
after they visited our campus. And [ have here the settlement they
sent us which in fact tells us explicitly what sports we are to add
and that was brand new to us when | received it, and so I feel that
the problem is they simply don't have enough people to cover all
the bazes.

Dr. GrEGORIAN. My answer, Congressman, is that OCR equates
equal opportunity with proportionality.

Mr. ROEMER. You are seeing one of the three is applied.

Dr. GREGORIAN. Tt undergirds all three of them. Without propor-
tionality, there would not be this probiem. In my opinion, if you de-
fine proportionality, then that will be fine.

Mr RobMEeR. Finally, Ms, Cantu. do yvou feel that you have a
funding problem or a resources problem?

Ms. CanTU. Yes. This year that we are in right now, I have a
33 million shortfall. Congress approved $3 miillion less than what
the President requested for my office. Resources are a problem, and
I will not dispute that.

Mr. RoEMER. And $3 million is what percent of your budget?

Ms. CaNTU. Three million of the $58 million, so my math is not
great. About 15 percent?

Mr. ROEMER. Can you give me any kind of preliminary indication
of how you are going to apply that cut, what vou might cut? Will
outreacn efforts, proactive efforts be cut? What is going to suffer as
a result of that? That is not an insignificant amount of money.

Ms. CANTU. This is the budget that we are working with. We
have looked for efficiencies in trying to resolve complaints as early
as possible so that we do not have to invest large amounts of re-
sources in investigating one where a campus is quite willing to dis-
cuss with us an early resolution.

But really what has happened is that we have less resources for
the outreach that we would like to do and less resources for face-
to-face discussions that we would like to have happen. I do want
to say, though, that we have top quality staff. We have made it a
priority to invest in training. In the past two years, we have put
our money in our people first.

Mr. ROEMER. Thank you.

Chairman MCKEON. Thank you.

Mr. Souder.

Mr. SOUDER. Thank you.

Dr. Jorns, I had a question in the evolving of the case that you
got involved in. You say you had a number of sports already. Why
didn’t you have more sports? Was there a demand at the university
for more sports? Was there a request? Were you adding sports that
were being requested or to recruit students or?

Dr. JORNS. You are asking me, Congressman, if women had re-
quested the sports?

Mr. SOUDER. Yes. In other words, you said you had a number of
sports that you had already developed. Was that because of a mar-
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ket demand that more—in order to recruit more women in or did
you feel the court pressure coming already? Did you feel—

Dr. JOrRNS. We added of our own volition one other sport, which
was women's soccer. But I will be candid with you, Congressman.
We knew that we were under a compliance review, and we felt we
were not in compliance. We had a methodology worked out to come
into compliance and one of the first was to add women's soccer.

Before that, I can't remember the exact number. I think we had
16, perhaps, women’s sports and 18 men. Something like that. We
were two or three short on the women’s side. I don’'t know of a
group on campus that requested that we add a sport. I have some
memory. We have a closed sport, women’s rugby, and I think there
was some interest in that but that is the only one I can remember.

Mr. SoUuDER. I wanted to ask Ms. Cantu, also, do you believe that
the Cohen v. Brown decision overstepped even your guidelines?

Ms. CANTU. No, sir. Every court decision that I have ever read
has all three prongs of the test, and the court has examined the
record and the facts under each of the three prongs. So, no, sir, I
do not believe that there are any differences or disputes that there
is consistency in how the Federal courts have treated Title IX.

Mr. SOUDER. Do you agree with that, Doctor?

Dr. GREGORIAN. No, I don’t. As I have mentioned, substantial
proportionality is what OCR says. The judge says it has to mirror
proportionality between enrollment and participation, which gives
up to 7 percent in some cases that OCR has settled deviation and
variation. The judge leaves no variation, no deviation. Participation
has to be exactly proportionate to enrollment. That is a substantial
departure.

Mr. GUNDERSON. Would the gentleman yield?

Mr. SOUDER. Yes.

Mr. GUNDERSON. | really appreciate this. Secretary Cantu, you
just told me you hadn’t read the case and you couldn’t state an
opinion on it and you just——

Ms. CANTU. I have not read the record. I can talk about the law.
I cannot apply it the way the court did because—-

Mr. GUNDERSON. I asked if you agreed or disagreed with the de-
cisiun of the court in Cohen v. Brown, and you told me you couldn't
state an opinion.

Ms. CANTU. You asked me for my position regarding the court
case, which would require me to know the record. And I do not
want to speculate on any facts that I don’t know about.

Mr. GUNDERSON. Well, how can you answer his question?

Ms. CANTU. His question was about the law in Cohen as 1 under-
stood. Did I misunderstand your question?

Mr. SOUDER. Did it overstep even your guidelines.

Ms. CANTU. And the legal application—the legal standard is
identical to the standard we apply and all the courts apply. It is
the same legal standard. Did I not understand that? I am sorry.

Mr. SOUDER. I think by saying that the decision didn't overstep
your guidelines, you in effect mage a judgment on the case.

Mr. GUNDERSON. And clearly the court case articulates all three,
and you were trying to emphasize to us that only one of the three
tests must be met. And the clear implication of court test is, you
look at all three of them. As Dr. Gregorian said, it doesn’t matter
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if you have met an expansion if you don’'t meet the proportionality
test and you haven’t expanded lately. Either you agree with the
ruling of the court or you don’t. We have to know.

Ms. CaNTU. What [ want to say is that the court in Brown under-
stood the standard and articulated the same standard that OCR
uses and all of the other court cases used. What I cannot offer an
opinion on is how the court understood the facts.

The testimony you are hearing from President Gregorian is about
the facts in the case. How the assessment was interpreted by the
judge. What were the right teams? Those are factual questions that
I would not want to offer an opinion about, but as far as the legal
standard. the judge was absolutely correct, he used the three-part
test which we use, which all the other courts including Cohen used.

Mr. SoUDER. I thank you. I don’t have any further questions.

Chairman McKEON. And you are aware of that, of the standard
he used without looking into that court decision?

Ms, Cante. I have not looked at the record. The record means
that [ did not examine the transcript: did not read the exhibits, did
not examine whatever was introduced as evidence. [ should have
heen more clear when [ said I did not look at the record. I meant
| did not examine the facts. However, ] am familiar with the law
in this area.

I have heen the law enforcement ofticer for two years. I have
very talented, capable staff and in looking at the law only, it is the
same legal standard we all use. the same legal standard that every
administration has been using since 1979,

Mr. GUNDERSON. Would the Chairman vield?

Chairman McKioN. Yes.

Mr GUNDERSON, So then you are agreeinyg with Dr. Gregorian
that if they had expanded women's progrums in the last five years,
the judge would have ruled differently and you would have agreed
differently, but because they didn't expand women's programs in
the lust five years. they are guilty of violating Title IX?

Ms. Can1v. Could T tell you about cases that we have had in
front of us hecause I haven't investigated this one?

My, GUNDERSON. Tell me ahout Brown because we are talking
about Brown. You said vou agreed with the judge’s ruling in
Brown

Ms. CanTU | agree that he used the correct law. But [ am not
aware of the record as to how he applied it.

Mr. Ginprrsos. He said that they did not show a recent history
of progrram expansion for the underrepresented sex. Now vou have
told me you define recent exnansion as five years. So, in essence,
then. you can only conclude t at Dr Gregorian is right. If they had
expanded in the last five vears rather than at the beginning of
Title IX. they would have been in the compliance: however, hecause
they made the mistake of doing too much too soon. you are now
holding them guiltv?

Mso CanTt If the record shows— if the facts are true- thi
Brown had been continunusly expanding opportunities in the past
five vears, and if we were looking at it |because 1 can't speak for
the judge], we would give them credit for that. We would give them
credit for the efforts that prong two called for.
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Mr. GUNDERSON. So the message coming out of this hearing
today clearly is, you have to expand programs within the most re-
cent five years. Everything you have done previously to 1990 is ir-
relevant and will not be counted by the Secretary.

Ms. CANTU. It is relevant. Continuous expansion means the en-
tire history and continuous expansion. There is an “and,” history
“and” continuous expansion. The standard we apply is not history
“or” expansion in recent years, it is history “and” continuous expan-
sion. So it is relevant to look at history and it is relevant to look
at continuous expansion of opportunities. We look at both.

Mr. GUNDERSON. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman McKEON. This little exchange shows me how hard it
is just to communicate, and then trying to see that Title IX is cor-
rectly administered throughout the country, I can see why we are
having these problems. Very difficult.

Mr. Reed.

Mr. REED. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

I would like to ask a question of Dr. Gregorian and I think it will
reiterate his testimony. Dr. Gregorian, you are here in no way to
F)Elft):lermine or weaken the scope, the thrust, the purpose of Title

Dr. GREGORIAN. No.

Mr. REED. And—

Dr. GREGORIAN. I am here as a frustrated university adminis-
trator who does not like bureaucracies, who does not like to be in-
timidated by lawyers, and who would like clarity in order to be
able to comply with national policy.

Mr. REED. Thank you. And Dr. Jorns, I would presume you
would have the same or similar response?

Dr. Jorns. I would.

Mr. REED. Thank you.

Ms. Cantu, let me ask a question. You seem to have a disagree-
ment with Dr. Gregorian and Dr. Jorns and other witnesses about
the issue of whether proportionality is the only test. And you quite
enthusiastically and sincerely maintain there are three tests, im-
plying no one prong is more superior than another.

Ms. CANTU. That is correct.

Mr. REED. But there seems to be, obviously here, a disagreement
perceptually if not substantively, perhaps not disagreement with
Jjust the presidents of these universities but with the judges who
are interpreting these statutes and your regulations. What specific
steps can you take to resolve these perceptual differences and to
clarify the situation so, as Dr. Gregorian and Dr. Jorns said, that
there are clear-cut, workable rules which can be used by univer-
sities to achieve the goals of Title IX?

Ms. CANTU. What we are working on is to continue to have a dia-
logue. We are considering everyone'’s ideas, and we are being open
about what we can do to be more clear. It is exactly as the Chair-
man said, we need more clarity. The tension, I don't want to be-
come so clear that I am prescriptive, that I am intruding on local
decisions that campuses must make for themselves. So [ am trying
to become as clear as I can without crossing that line and becoming
intrusive.
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What the two college presidents have in common is a problem in
meeting prong one, proportionality, and a problem in meeting
prong two. Dr. Jorns couldn’t show a history of expansion and Dr.
Gregorian is saying he has & history of expansion, but cannot show
continuous expansion. I don't want to put words in your mouth, but
there is a problem with both of them in meeting prong two, so the
request then is for clarity as to what prong three means, address-
ing the interest and abilities, because we have to have qualified
athletes, interests and abilities of students.

We don’t want to be so prescriptive in clarifying prong three that
we shut the door on ways that campuses can meet that prong. If
a campus chooses prong three, then we want to be open at OCR
to hear how they are going to prove that prong three has been met.
And if I tell the campus the only way you can show it is by how
many club sports there are on your campus that are female that
are not full varsity sports, so if I tell a campus the only way you
can meet is what the pool looks like of the high school students,
or I tell the campus the only way you can meet is by comparing
yourselves to other colleges in your conference or league, then I am
foreclosing choices.

What I am telling my investigators is listen. Hear what the cam-
pus is trying to tell you about prong three and then have a discus-
sion with that campus. Eastern Illinois is working towards coming
into compliance with Title IX. They have a long way to go. They
start at only 25 percent women athletes. Twenty-five percent
women athletes. But they are going to get there under prong three.
I am optimistic that is going to happen. '

Mr. REED. I believe Dr. Jorns, Dr. Gregorian. you might want to
comment.

Dr. GREGORIAN. Yes. | ask this simple question, namely, is there
a difference between substantial proportionality and mirror propor-
tionality. English is my last language, so my English may be poor,
but I would like to understand, is there a difference? If there is dif-
ference, then Ms. Cantu is wrong. She does agree with the judge's
interpretation of prong one as being mirrvoring rather than merely
being substantial proportionality. The judge did not say it is a de-
fective mirror. You can have 7 percent deviation, or Madam
Tussaud’s kind of mirror. It says mirror. Mirror means mirror and
it is simple, reflecting exactly realities of day. How can we fudge
this issue? I don’t know.

Mr. R2ED. Let me follow up with a final question because the
time is all but going. One of the problems or one of the technical
points with the continuous improvement is, what i< the terminus
point? What is the end point of continuous improvement?

So do you have an idea in your regulations or your policy what
would be the end point? How—I know institutions have to make
continuous improvement but to what?

Ms. CanTU. Toward equal oppertunity, which is the goal that
Congress has set us towards,

Mr. REED. How do you detine equal opportunity?

Ms. CaNTU. What Congress has defined for us is that women or
men may nnt be subject to discrimination, not be excluded or de-
nied participation. the regulations that were signed and approved
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by Congress are wha* we follow. And the policy guidance which we
have been using since 1979 is what we have been following.

We do feel this tension, Congressman, between how detailed and
how prescriptive we can be, and I do want to resist being drawn
into a position where I am telling a campus, this is the sport you
must add or telling a campus you have no choices as to whether
you want to drop a sport or not. I really resist offering more detail
without more discussions, and we are continuing to have groups
that are continuing to inform us.

Mr. REED. I appreciate your very, very diligent and sincere ef-
forts to resolve this. My time is up, Mr. Chairman, but I believe
that Dr. Jorns wants to say something.

Dr. JORNS. I just wanted to make one observation and that is
that—and I don’t think anyone wants the government to be pre-
scriptive—the lack of clarity is causing, as Dr. Gregorian said, a
cottage industry to rise up. For example, we have now engaged a
consultant who I think used to work for OCR to help us determine
how to write a correct interest and abilities test. And yet we have
been told here today that they don’t want to impose a standard on
us, just let us work it out. Well, clearly, there is a standard, and
we have engaged a consultant, so there are a great many people
now availab%e who make a great deal of money that we really can’t
afford to spend trying to fill that gap.

Mr. REED. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman MCKEON. Mr. Becerra.

Mr. BECERRA. Mr. Chairman, thank you for indulging me there
for a moment. Let me welcome the panelists and thank them for
being here. It is a pleasure, Dr. Gregorian, to see you again, and
Ms. Cantu, it is always a pleasure to have you come before the sub-
committee.

Let me ask a couple of questions. I have missed most of the oral
testimony. 1 was able to lnok over some of the written testimony.
and I have had a chance tn listen to some of the dialogue over the
last 15, 20 minutes.

Dr. Gregorian. let me ask you for -~ome specific, some concrete
ideas on how Ms. Cantu and her office could try to help univer-
<itie~ that wish to comply do so in a way that removes as much
f the bureaucratic burden as possible from your efforts.

Dr. GREGORIAN. Thank you, Congressman.

Let me mention, [ have followed this court case very closely. 1
may be the only living soul, other than the stenographer, who has
read everything, so if I jump from one subject to another, forgive
me. This is the frustration—interest and ability—just as the prong
three or part three. It says you have to evaluate what the interest
is. Where does a college president go to evaluate? College board,
right? We have admitted SATs. So we ask on the SAT application
form to include all the interests that athletes have listed. Students
who are interested in athletics list number one, two, thiree priority.
The judge says that is not acceptable. Right. Why? OCR does not
say which of these surveys is acceptable.

Where is there an acceptable survey? Is it Gallup Poll? We will
go to Gallup Poll. Harris Poll? Harris Poll. Newsweek? Newsweek.
U.S. News? Whoever. We want a name. What is the most accepted
standard of interest and abilities? And we will check. We have gone
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over 14,000 transcripts, one by one, 14,000 transcripts, to see
which women who have applied to Brown are interested in which
sports. You know which one they are interested in most? Eques-
trian. Eight hundred interested. We don’t have stables. I am look-
ing to see what Newport and so on can provide. No, I am serious.
If that 1s the interest, if we find a donor, we will do it.

However, we brought this to the iudge, and he says this is not
an acceptable method. The NCAA guidebook was also rejected by
the judge as unacceptable. OCR does not say the NCAA guidebook
is a valid legal document. So what do I do?

Mr. BECERRA. Let me see if I can get you, then, to focus on some
specifics if you haven't already mentioned them in the hearing. Are
you e~ying, then, OCR should give you the specifics of those types
of things that would fall within the criteria for a university to try
to achieve?

Dr. GREGORIAN. Yes. OCR says surveys are one way you can as-
sess ability. But it doesn't say who, what, and so forth. So it allows
any lawyer, any judge to question that our surveys are unscientific.

Mr. BECERRA. Okay. So you w. ald like to have more detailed pa-
rameters than what you have now.

Dr. GREGORIAN. Clearer, because if you give lawyers 100 pages
to detail, then we will not be able to do anything.

Mr. BECERRA. Clearer. Dr. Jorns, any particular comments on
that?

Dr. JorNns. No. I think that is correct. I believe that the interests
and abilities prong is the correct one to use and that it needs to
be clarified, discussed early, and probably vou need to cut it to the
region you are in. But if that were applied, I think it would be fair
and we would be able to add sports that would be appropriate for
the students who are coming to us and the students who are with
us.

Mr. BECERRA. Okay. I have two more questions. I am going to
try to get through these two quickly.

Ms. Cantu, short of speaking to a university’s administration at
the point where you are prepared to take action against them,
what can your office do or what does it do to try to collaborate with
the universities, the schools as much as possible, to give them the
carrot to do the work better?

Ms. CanTU. The main way we reach out is through technical as-
sistance. Campuses call us before a complaint is filed and ask us,
what do your standards mean? Can we have a discussion? We also
reach out through these kinds of discussion groups that we have
been hosting, where we invite university people to talk to us and
then our staff go out and meet with university counsel.

We talk about our standards with them. We meet with a variety
of collegiate associations. A couple of weeks ago, I was at an NCAA
meeting to meet with NCAA members about what our standards
mean. They cooperated by publishing the entire text of my expla-
nation in the NCAA News So we are trying the best we can to be
visible, to share information with both the universities and the stu-
dent body.

Mr BECERRA. Is the outreach proactive, you go out and talk to
universities before they ever contact you?
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Ms. CANTU. Yes. It iz both ways. Universities call us, but we also
take the initiative to pull together a meeting. We will host a con-
ference. We have done that.

Mr. BECERRA. Mr. Chairman, if I may be permitted one last
question. And this one strikes closer to my heart.

I now have two daughters, and I will be interested to make sure
that they have every opportunity to participate in sports, if and
when they wish to, when they get to be college age, if I can afford
to get them to college. I had a bill when I was in the State assem-
bly in California a few years back to try to help bring closer parity
when it came to sports in high school because, especially in Califor-
nia where there is such a large population, there were dramatic
difterences in certain schools when it came to the opportunities for
young women to participate in sports.

But I must tell you, I found the worst resistance I had ever seen
from my own peers, men, when it came to trying to make the facili-
ties and resources available for young women to participate in
sports. Obviously, of course, I can understand their concern. They
saw a dollar going to female sports as a dollar leaving male sports.

And I must tell you that it was so disturbing to see the lack of
comity on the part of all the players, mostly from the men’s sports
side. I found it almost impossible to get anywhere. I had a difficult
time getting my bill heard in committee because there was such a
lobbying effort to stop it from even getting heard. I heard every ex-
cuse for it not being passed out of committze, and in fact every ex-
cuse offered in testimony was provided by a woman defending the
status quo. It was very interesting, all the people who were lobby-
ing me privately were men. All the people who testified against the
b:ll were women. '

How do you break the cycle? It is a vicious cycle where we know
there is a lack of money by most schools to provide auequate sports
for all of its student body. How do you break the cycle when there
is such competition, such an attempt to hold on to whatever dollars
you have, understandably, and yet try to fulfill the requirements
of providing everyone witﬁ an equal opportunity?

Dr. GREGORIAN. Congressman, first of all, you should send your
daughter to Brown, number one.

Mr. BECERRA. I will talk to you about that.

Dr. GREGORIAN. We are an educational institution rather than a
physical education institution.

Mr. BECERRA. Please remember that statement.

Dr. GREGORIAN. Absolutely. I said that in public. It is very im-
portant. You were not here this morning when I testified. One
thing must be very clear. Ivy League, unfortunately or fortunately,
is not like other leagues because we do not have scholarships, ath-
letic scholarships. We have need-based admission. As a result, we
are facing, therefore, problems.

We admit students first as scholars, then we try to see what
their athletic, musical, and other needs are. As the numbers in-
crease, we face the issue of proportionality. We don’t have an ath-
letic budget coming from television revenues or so forth. Unfortu-
nately, I said, we also don’t have a football team like Notre Dame
and others. We are amateur hour in athletics. We are proud of it.
Amateur athletes, that is what NCAA was supposed to be.
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Mr. BECERRA. Doctor, can I ask you to address the specific point
of how do you break the cycle? Those men's sports will not let go
of the grip of their money to schools.

Dr. GREGORIAN. Men do not access it. Administration have to be
accountable. We have accommodated since 1972. Before, even when
Pembroke joined Brown, we started accommodating women's needs.
We did not wait for Congress to tell us. More sports are offered at
Brown, 18 versus 16 men's sports. If people want to give money,
we can add more. [ am not going to put more money from the in-
struction budget into the athletic budget because we are interested
in people’s brains as well as their body.

Mr. BECERRA. Thank you.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman McKroN. Thank you.

The comment that you made about people that were opposed,
here we have people who are al} working together yvet still haven't
been able to work it cut.

Mr. BECERRA. But they still support the bottom line. That is im-
portant. 1 didn’t find that type of cooperation or even support for
the efforts at the State level when it got down to the nitty-gritty

Chairman McKEON. In the California assembly, what do you——

Mr. BECERRA. Good thing we are here, Mr. Chairman, right.

Chairman MCKrON. I was fortunate never to have served there.
| think this has been enlightening. I think there have been some
real good points made, and I think that probably there are some
things that we are going to have to go back and iook at. You know,
Secretary, you said you didn’t want to be intrusive or obtrusive, but
it spunds like some of vour people have been or are being and we
do need to probably work on those guidelines and on communica-
tion. We appreciate you being here today. And we will excuse you
now and move to our final panel. Thank you very much.

Okay. We will move on. We appreciate your patience and the
time you spent with us today.

We will have on this third and final panel Dr. Christine Grant,
Director of Women’s Athletics from the University of lowa; Mr. T.J.
Kerr, wrestling coach from California State University, Bakersfield,
just north of me; Ms. Wendy Hilliard, President, Women's Sports
Foundation, East Meadow, New York; Mr. Charles Neinas, Execu-
tive Director of the College Football Association, from Colorado;
and Mr. Rick Dickson, Director of Athletics from Washington State
University in Pullman.

We have already been through the instructions. You learned
about the trap door and we will start with Dr. Grant.

(Laughter.]

STATEMENT OF CHRISTINE H.B. GRANT, DIRECTOR OF
WOMEN'S ATHLETICS, UNIVERSITY OF IOWA, IOWA CITY, IOWA

Dr. GRANT. Thank you. Thank you very much for providing me
with the opportunity to comment today. And as 1 listened this
morning to the several people who reiterated their great support
for Title IX, I am left with a question. Why is it today, in 1995,
that men enjoy twice as many participation opportunities at the
intercollegiate level as women. Wgy?
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From the late 18005 until 1972, men at the intercoliegiate level
enjoyed all of the varsity participation slots in the entire country,
opportunities often financially supported by both institutional
funds as well as student fees from both male and female students.
Thus, at many institutions, not only were women denied the oppor-
tunity to participate in varsity sports, they were required to finan-
cially support the athletic opportunities for men. Most men also re-
ceived a totally free education, which today is valued up to
$100,000 per person. Talented female students, however, not only
subsidizecfmale athletes, but they also paid for their entire edu-
cation and additionally the cost of participating in club sports.

Although Title IX passed 23 years ago, men today still command
the lion’s share of aﬁ sporting opportunities. Lest you think Title
IX has gone too far, the 1992 NCAA gender equity study showed
that women in Division I-A received only 29 percent of participa-
tion slots and 28 percent of athletic scholarships. In most in-
stances, student fees from women undergraduates are still used to
support twice as many participation slots for men as for women.

Would such biased practices be accepted in any other area of our
universities? I think not. Such practices violate both the letter and
the spirit of Federal law. Rather than having hearings to deter-
mine how to protect football or men’s sports, our Congress should
be having hearings on what must be done immediately to end dis-
criminatory practices at all levels of our educational institutions
that are supposedly equally committed to both young women and
young men.

We are not talking about professional sports here. What we are
talking about is giving youngsters an equal opportunity to experi-
ence the joys, the challenges, and the educational lessons of sports
that directly contribute to their growth and their development as
individuals.

I primarily fault the CEOs at our educational institutions for our
current situation. For more than two decades they have known the
requirements of Federal law and could have moved gradually into
compliance. Most did not. In recent years, with the resurgence of
a demand by female student athletes for equal opportunities, this
coincided with a time in which most universities found themselves
in financial difficulties. Many of us hope that the CEOs would
mandate nationally cost containment measures, especially in Divi-
sion I, which has numerous excesses in football and men’s basket-
ball. Together, these two sports comma :d 73 percent of the entire
men’s budget. You have these charts, I believe, before you.

Significant cuts were not made and the budgets have escalated.
One of the charts that I have supplied shows that for every new
dollar put into women'’s sports, three new dollars have gone into
men’s programs.

Through a proactive stance, the CEOs have averted the current
situation which now pits men's minor sports against women's
sports—the have-nots against the have-nots—leaving intact enor-
mous football and basketball expenditures and deficits.

Blaming gender equity for the demise of men’s minor sports is
a red herring. They are being dropped because CEOs will not ad-
dress the problems of habitual excessive spending at the institu-
tional leveY or the national level. Yet despite the fact that some
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men's sports have been dropped, men's participation opportunities
overall have increased by 12,000 over the past four years.

Chairman MCKEON. Dr. Grant.

Dr. GRANT. Yes.

Chairman McKEON. Could you just conclude, please.

Dr. GRANT. Yes, I will. I have shared with you an impressive list
of institutions that have made the commitment to equal oppor-
tunity, and I believe that if we can have cost containment at the
national level we can [a] balance athletic budgets, {b] retain men’s
minor sports, and {c], expand women's opportunities.

Over 2 million girls participate in high school, but only 105,000
are participants in the NCAA. Equitable sporting opportunities for
women can and must be realized. or none of us will be able to look
our daughters or granddaughters in the eyve to explain why not.

Thank you.

Chairman McKEoN. Thank you. 1 hope we haven't given you or
anyone else the wrong impression—yvou alluded to a hearing to pro-
tect football and men's sports. I think we bent over backwards to
make this an open and impartial nearing. and I hope no one has
the wrong impression because that certainly iz not what we are
doing

[The prepared statement of Dr. Grant follows:|




123

May 9, 1995

TESTIMONY BEFORE THE U.S. HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES
SUBCOMMITTEE ON POST-SECONDARY EDUCATION, TRAINING
AND LIFE~LONG LEARNING

Christine H.B. Grant
University of Iowa

Representative for the
National Association of Collegiate Women Athletics Administrators

Thank you for providing me with the opportunity to comment
on the status of intercollegiate athletic programs across the
nation and the need for continued strong support of the current
ritle IX

1% legislation and intergretat-ocn what !'ollows are:

1. A Briet Analysis of the Problem
2. Title IX Informaticnal Points

Fallacies & Facts

BEST COPY AVAILABLE 128




124

A BRIEF ANALYSIS OF THE PROBLEM
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levels of our educational institutions, that are, supposedly,
equally committed to both young women and young men. We are not
talking about professional sport here; we are talking about
giving youngsters an equal opportunity to experience the joys,
the challenges and the educational lessons of sport that directly
contribute to their growth and development as people.

I primarily fault the Chief Executive Officers at our
educational institut:ions for the current situation. For more
than two decades, they have kncwn the reqyirements cf the Federal
law and could have moved gradually into compliance. Far too many
chose to take as i2ng as they could to do as little as possiktle.
In recent years, there has Lkeen a resurgence of a demand by

temale student-athletes tcr equal cpportunities, coinciding with

a time 1n which most universities tound themselves in financial

difficulties. Many hoped that the CECs, thrcugh the NCAA

Presidents Commission, would wmandate cost-containment measures in
intercol legiate athletics, especially in Division I. They could

have climinated tne excesses 1n tcotball and cen’s Lasketball and

demanded reform ot cur recruiting system. 2n a naticnal
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have-nots), leaving intact enormous football and basketball

expenditures and deficits. Blaming gender equity for the demise

of men’s minor sports is a red herring; they are being dropped
because CEOs will not address the problem of habitual excessive

spending, either on the institutional or the national level.

Although few schools have achieved compliance with Federal

law, it can be done. 1 am happy to share with you an impressive

list of institutions that have made the commitment to equal

opportunity and are progressing toward that goal without dropping

men’s sports. The list reveals that lack of opportunity, not

iack of interest has kept women from participating in
intercollegiate athletics. 1If, at a national level, we can
cooperate to achieve real cost containment in the areas I have

mentioned, I am convinced that we will be able to accomplish

three important goals:

a. expanding women'’s participation opportunities

b. retaining men’s minor sports
c. balancing athletic budgets

Given the facts I have presented today coupled with the

additional data in my written testimony, it is preposterous for

us to be considering anything other than expanding the
opportunities for women to participate in sport. Equitable

sporting opportunities for wemen can and must be realized, or

none of us will be able to look our daughters or granddaughters

1n the eye to explain "why not".




127

TITLE IX INFORMATIONAL POINTS

Passed in 1972, Title X was intended to eliminate discriminatory practices in educational Institutions.
Discrimination continues in 1995.

A lack of finances CANNOT be a reason for discrimination; additional financial resources must be
directed to women and/or a redistribution of financial resources must be made on each campus. To do
otherwise is to force tne group that has historically been discriminated against to continue to bear the
burden of discrimination.

There can NEVER be an acceptable justification for discriminatory practices in educational institutions.
In Cook v. Colgate Universily, the court stated:

Equal treatment is not a luxury. It is not a luxury to grant equivalent benefits and opportunities to
women. Itis not a luxury to comply with the law. Equality and justice are not luxunes. They are
essential elements which are woven into the very fiber of this country. They are essential elements
now codlfied under Title IX. Many institutions of higher education apparently hold the opinion that
providing equality to women in athietics is both a luxury and a burden. The feeling seems to be that
to afford such equality to women is a gift and not a right.’

Each institution has the right to create its own gender equity compliance plan which may employ one or
more of the following procedures in order to reach a male/female participation ratio in athletics similar to
that in the undergraduate population:

add new Intercollegiate teams for women

- cap the number of participation slots on men's teams

- eliminate some men's teamns (this is not recommended by women and shouid be considered only as
a iast resort)

It an institution decides It will not allocate new monles to its women's program to conie Into compliance
with Federal law, then that institution must adopt one or more of the following procedures in order to
free up money for women:

- reduce expenditures in men's sports (this could be done at the national level if enough CEQs would
support it}

- reduce expenditures at the national ievel for both men's and women’s sports, e.g. reform the
recruiting.and/or scholarship systems
consider moving the athletics program to a less costly divisional affillation

- eliminate some men’s sports (this is not recommended by women and should be considered only as
a last resort)

*An athletics program can be considered gender equitable when the participants in both the men's and
women's sports programs would accept as falr and equitable the overall program of the other gender.
No individual should be discriminated against on the basis of gender, Institutionalty or nationally, In
intercolieglate athletics.

We hope that you, like us, will continue to give your full support for true equity so that your daughters
and granddaughters In the future will enjoy the same opportunities and benefits as your sons and
grandsons.
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FALLACIES & FACTS

FALLACY: Funding women's sport will bankrupt men's sports

FACT.:

Totzl Expenses of Men's & Women's Athletics Programs
Division I-A

1985
Daruel L Fuiks 1994

B Men Women T Adnunistiative
Nongender specifi items were reported as Adounistrative [ xpenses (no further defition -« pos *

NOTE: Since the enactment of Tille IX, for every new dollar spent on women, two new

dollars were spent on men.’

FALLACY: Women are just not interested in sport

FACT: Inthe 1970's when Title IX was beginning to be enforced, girs' participation in
interscholastic sports exploded from 8% to 35%; at the intercollegiate level, it jumped to
30%. IT 1S NOT A LACK OF INTEREST, iT IS THE LACK OF OPPORTUNITY!®

High School! Athletic Participation

4.000.000 - :
3,666,917
3.500.000 -

3 000.000

2 500.000 -

2.000 000 -

1.500 000 -

1.000.000 -

s00.000 -

1871
1994 The Hatona) Federalion of iate HQh Schoo! ASsociations
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FALLACY: Football funds all other sports for men and women.

FACT: According to 1993 financial data (Fulks), 62% of Division I-A and I-AA football
programs on average have gnnual deficits of $1 million in Division I-A and $664,000 in
Division 1-AA. (61% of all Division ! men's basketball programs also show annual

N
deficits.) 1993 Averags tor Institutions Showing Deficits

Div 1A Div LAA Div LAAA

-300.010

-664,000

-1,020,000
130000 - @284 of Football Programs & 61% of Basketball Programs

II Footba I Basketbalt |

——_—— -
F====m==.=

FALLACY: Women's sports are destroying men's minor sports.

FACT: some men's sports are being dropped because there is not a collective resolve
among CEOs to eliminate the excesses in football and men's basketball programs.
Expenditures in Division i-A show the following breakdown for men's sports:

Footbali: §7%
Basketball: 16%D73%
Other Men's Sports:  20%
Unrelated Expenses: _7%

100%

NOTE: You will note on the next page that 80% of the operating budget goes to men's
sports, only 20% to women's sports.”®
1993 Average NCAA Division 1-A Men's
Programs Expenses
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FALLACY: Colleges are currently meeting the needs and interests of women in
intercollegiate sport

FACT: a) Most universities have women's club sports that would love to be
elevated to jntercollegiate status:

b) Atthe high school level, over 2 million girs participate in interscholastic
spors; in the 1993-94 year, there were only 105,532 participation opportunities for women

in the NCAA” NCAA and High School Female
Participation Levels

2,500,000 -

2,124,755

| /%

;// % 4
7

1,500,000
1,000.000

500,000 !

105,532
High School NCAA

The Nabonal Federanon of State Hgh School Atsocations & The NCAA News

FALLACY: Most universities are close to being in compliance with Title IX.

FACT: These are the facts documented by the NCAA in 1992:

Division I-A Results Female Male
Particlpation 29% 71%

Athletics Schoiarships 28% 72%
Operating Budget 20% 80%
Recruiting Budget 16% 84%

NOTE: On an annual basis, male athletes receive approximately $179 million more than
femaie athletes in athietics scholarship monies. (Women's Sports Foundation)

PAFullToxt Provided by ERIC
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FALLACY: Interpretations on how to comply with Title IX are too rigid.

FACT: The current Office for Civil Rights interpretation provides schools with many
legitimate and reasonable ways to comply with Title IX. Itis noted in the recent NCAA
publication "Achieving Gender Equity, a Basic Guide to Title IX for Colleges and
Universitles® that the "policy interpretation allows institutions great flexibility i, providing
benefits and services to female and male athietes” (page 6)."° The current phenomenon
of cutting men’s sports is the result of institutions’ past inaction, rather than unyielding Title
IX interpretations. For 23 years, most institutions have chosen to address Title X through
rhetoric rather than action. Now, deteriorating economic conditions, along with belated
pressure from Federal courts and a committed Office for Civil Rights, are forcing
institutions into long-overdue decisions. Due to the lack of long-range planning and
national and/or institutional cost-containment measures, some institutions are
choosing to achieve equity by shifting funds from men's Sports to new or upgraded
women's sports while still fuily protecting football and men’s basketball. Rigidity of
compliance is not the culprit; institutional inaction over the past two decades and current
institutional choices are the causes of the problems.

e R EEE————.—......

FALLACY: The attainment of equal opportunities for women in sport will result in less
competitive and less successful football teams.

FACT: Over the past three years, athletics scholarships in football have been reduced
from 95 to 85, yet in 1994, the first season after the reduction, national football attendance
records were set in all three divisions." The total increase in attendance from 1993 was
1.6 million. This may well have resulted from less stacking of players at traditional powers
and the start of a trend toward parity between teams. Since the lure of sport is its
unpredictability, this trend toward increased parity should be continued.

NCAA Football Total Attendance

Al Four Divisions: 568 Teams
40.000.000 - BT P

34,868,544

30.000 000 -

20.000 000 -

10.000.000 -

Tho NCAA News . 11495
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FALLACY: To be in compliance with Title 1X, there must be exacily the same ratio of
male/temale student-athletes at an institution as exists in the undergraduate population.

FACT. The American Football Coaches Association’s (AFCA) doomsday predictions of
joss of federal funds and elimination of football programs resuiting trom OCR's alleged
increased emphasis on the Proportlonality Test are unfounded. In fact, there remain three
ways in which an institution can comply:

1. demonstrate that participation opportunities for each sex are porportional to
enroliment
OR 2. show a history of expansion in its women's athletics program
OR 3. demonstrate that the interests and abilities ot members of the underrepresented
sex have been fully accommodated by the present program. "

1t will Be difficult, however, for an institution to comply with #3 if there are women's club
sports on campus that would wish to be elevated to intercollegiate status.

This three-pronged test was part of the 1979 Policy Interpretation; it is not a new concept.

icipation opportunities because of

FALLACY: Men are losing a massive number of part
women's athletics.

FACT: According to the NCAA, the number of patticipants in women's sports
ncreased between 1989 and 1994 by 16,320 BUT THE NUMBER OF PARTICIPANTS IN
MEN'S SPORTS ALSO INCREASED BY 12,48R GIVING THEM 64% OF ALL

OPPORTUNITIES."”

RIC

" Participation Growth for Men's & Women's NCAA Sports

H 270 000 -

. 177,156

EERY T bt B _

L 1A 0

T 43900 ¢

o 105,532
ARG R 7 ;
..

aiy 90, 2

' D] . /

12 47920 P //
20060 s /

Women

{ . W 1989-90 1993-94.‘

l NCAA News 21595 o
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FALLACY: The Javits Amendment exciudes football from Title 1X requirements.

FACT: ON 4 DIFFERENT CCCASIONS, CONGRESS HAS REFUSED TO EXCLUDE
FOOTBALL OR OTHER REVENUE-PRODUCING SPORTS FROM TITLE IX. The Javits
Amendment stated that legitimate non-gender related differences In sports could be taken
into account, e.g. the differing costs of equipment or ever.t management expenditures.

The amendment does not protect football simply because it has a higher number of
participants or there is not a similar sport for women.

FALLACY: There is very litle support for real equity.

FACT:

Big Ten Handbook
Statement of Guiding Principles

Equity

All member universities shall assure
the fair distribution of resources,
access to facilities and treatment of
student-athletes and personnel.

The Big Ten Conference
acknowledges a responsibility to
assert the value of achieving equal
participation by men and women in
intercollegiate sports.

138
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FALLACY: Achieving equity Is an unreasonable goal.

FACT:

[ University of lowa Path to Equity for Athletic Scholarships

Men Women

. Number of Sports 10 10

2. Current NCAA max scholarships 63% 37%

. After 1994 10% reduction of men’s (18.6) 60% 40%

. NCAA GE Task Force proposed increases 57% 43%

._Add soccer (16) over 4 yrs 1995-96 51% 49%

3
4
5. Add crew (20) over 4 yrs 1994-95 53% 47%
6
7

Equity will be achieved in scholarship pool, provided Women's Athletics
offer a higher % of out-of-state scholarships than men.

M-RiC
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FALLACY: Men’s minor sports will have to be reduced if women's panticipation slots are

increased.

FACT:

Institutions Adding Women's Teams Without Dropping Men's Teams

Nate:  These data were collected from the “ETC” section in
through Apn} 1998

The NCAA News from the Summer of 1992

In this section. nstitutions announce the ehmmation and/or the addion of

SPOts. In the 1oiiowing instances. tnere wits 1o ment:on of the elmnauon of men s Sports.

Alabama
Altred

Allegheny
Allentown
Anderson

Auburn

Augsburg

Baylor

Barry
Bethune-Cookman

Bosion College

Bngham Young University
California

Cahfurnia State-Fullerton

Califorma State-Los Angeles

Carthage

Case Reserve

Catawba

Central Connecticut State
Central Missoun
Chapman

Cincimnati
Colgate
Creighion
Danmouth

Davidson
Delaware State
Duquesne

East Carolina
East Stroudsburg
Eastern Kentucky
Evansville
Fitchburg State
Florida Atlantic
Flonda Southern
Fordham
Francis Marion

Furman

Gannon

George Mason
Georgia Southern
Georgia State
Greensboro

Soccer - 93
Sotthall 93/94,
Lacrosse 94/95
Cross Country -
94195

Lacrusse - 94/95
Track & Fieid 93
Soccer 93
Soccer

Golf

Suftball

Crew

Golf.

Track & Field
Ise Hockey
Saccer 95/96
Golr
Volleyball,
Soccer

Soccer

Golf

Softball
Swimming 93
Soccer 95/96
Soccer 95/96
Cross Country,
Track & Field
Rifle

Softball

C

rew
Volleyball,
Sotthall 94/95
Lacrosse
Soccer 94/95
Soccer 94/95
Soccer 94/95
Swimmung 95/96
Golf

Soccer 94/95
Soccer 93/94
Softball 94/95
Golf 94195
Soccer 93

Cross Country 92,
Soccer 95/96
Soccer 94/95
Cross Country 93
Lacrosse 93
Soccer 93

Soccer 93

Cross Country

Harvard
Jacksonville

Jersey Cuty State
Jumata

Kentueky Weslevan
Lehman

Long Island-SW Post
Loyola Marymount
Marist

Marquette

Marshall

Memmack
Millersville
Misericordia
Missoun-Kansas City
Monmouth (NJ)
Moravian

Murmray State
Nebraska - Keamney
Nebraska Wesleyan
Norfolk State

North Carolina-Charlote
Northem Colorado
Northem {llinois
Northwood
Qakland

Ohio State

Olvet

Pembroke State
Penn State
Pepperdine

Purdue

Regis (CO)

Regis (MA)

Rhode Island College
Rider

Rochester (NY)

Roger William
Sacred Heart
St Anselm

St. Catherines
St. Cloud State
St. Francis (PA)
St. Jobn's

St. Joseph (PA)
St. Rose
Salisbury State

Gol?

Track & Field 92
Soccer 93

Soccer 94/95
Golf & Soccer 93
Water Polo 94/95
Soccer 94/95
Soccer

Soccer

Succer, 93
Softball 93

Field Hockey 93
Soccer 94/95
Swimming 94/95
Track & Field 93
Lacrosse

Soccer 94/95
Golt 93

Goif 93

Soccer - 93
Teams 92
Soccer 94/95
Cmss Countty 93
Succer 92

Soccer 94/95
Soccer 94/95
Soccer 93/94
Golf 93

Track & Field 94/95
Soccer 94/95
Soccer 93
Softball 93

Golf 93

Field Hocke
Soccer 95

Cross Country,
Track & Field - 93
Up,snde lacrosse
94/95

Cross Country 92
Tennis 93
Volleyball 93
Baskethall 95/96
Soccer 94795
Swimming 94/95
Upgrade volleyball to
varsity 94/95
Lacrosse 92
Track & Field 93
Soccer 94795
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FACT CONTINUED:

Institutions Adding Women's Teams Witihout Dropping Men's Teams con't

San Juse State

Savanmah A & D
Seton Hail
Shppery Rock
South Alabama
Southern Colorado
Stanford

Temple

Texas Tech

Trinity (Texas)

U. of Arizona

. of Calif - Irvine
of Deaver

of Florida

of Indiana

of lowa

of Massachusetts

coce ac

of Minnesota

of Missoun

of New Mexico
of Oklahoma

of South Carolina

coona

U. of Southera Califormia
U of Texas - Austin

U of Utah

U. of Wisconsin

Wagner

Wake Forest

Washington (MO)

Washington & Lee
West Chester
Wingate

Winthrop
Wisconsin-Superior

Diving 93194

Cruss Country 94/95
Basketball 93
Soccer 94/95
Soccer 93

Soccer 94/95
Softball 93

Synch. Swimming
94

Lacrosse 94
Water Polo 95
Softball 97
Swimmin,
Upgrade Crew
Soccer
Soccer 94/95
Softball

Golf 94/95
Soccer 94195

Crew

Upgrade Lacrosse
94/95
Soccer 93
Soccer 93
Crew 94195
Reinstated:
Teunnis.
Lacrosse,
Volleybal
Pruposed
and Crew
Soccer 93
Soccer 96/97
Soccer

Reinstate Basketball
Reinstate Softball &
add Track & Field
Soccer 93

Soccer 94,

Softball 97

Soccer 95/96
Softbail 94,
Lacrosse 96

Soccer 93

Soccer 94/95.

Field Hockey
Reinstated Cross
Country 93
Basketbail 93
Soccer 92

Cruss Country 93
Track & Field 93
Soccer 93,

ater Polo

Worchester Polytechnie

Reinvge Track &
Field 93
Soccer 95/96

10
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NCAA and High School Female
Participation Levels
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Chairman McKEON. Mr. Kerr.

STATEMENT OF T.J. KERR, WRESTLING COACH, CALIFORNIA
STATE UNIVERSITY, BAKERSFIELD, CALIFORNIA

Mr. Kerr. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Members of the subcommittee, besides being the wrestling coach
at California State University at Bakersfield, I am also President
of the National Wrestling Coaches Association. I will try to get
right to the point.

We started in the fall to put together a coalition that would pre-
vent elimination or reduction of male sports and also increase
women’s sports. That is what our stance has been and that is
where it has always been. In fact, OCR regulations discriminate
against women in contact sports. It took 13 months of fighting in
order to allow women on my team. In fact, our national champion
is from Montana. She is 18 years old. She placed in the world
championships.

But rather than talking about women’s opportunities in wres-
tling, is there a crisis for men’s sports? Yes. They are being
dropped. Male gymnastics is almost extinct. We have lost over 200
programs since 1972. This year we are going to lose between 15
and 20 wrestling grograms, maybe more. In the last seven days,
eight male sports have been dropped in the State of Pennsylvania
and two women'’s sports have been added.

Right in front of me is the February 15 NCAA News. Now, we
were just cited that male participation has increased the last four
years. _

I was a math major for a little while, but T am a dumb wrestling
coach. If you look at statistics, in 1984, there was over 200,000
male participants. We hit an all-time low in 1989 and we are back
to 1993 which I will give you the statistics. We had a tremendous
decline. The reason that we have increased the last four years is
because the NCAA has had 97 colleges and unijversities enter from
the NEI and the National Christians and Nzticnal College Associa-
tion. The NCAA has actually grown by 12,000 athletes over the last
four years, but men’s sports has continued to decline if you look at
that statistic.

Be very careful how you view standards and I hope that you will
ask me some questions about that. Let’s get to the crisis. Let’s not
fool around anymore. Let’s talk about the proportionality rule. In
1993-1994, there was a record number of women, 105,532, while
men’s programs were 189,642. As I say, down from 10 years ago
of over 200,000.

Currently our national enrollment is 53 percent female. We were
supposed to go to 55 female and some people think even farther.
If we applied the proportionality rule right this minute, with these
statistics, we are tafking about eliminating 100,000 males. One
hundred thousand males. And we are going to eliminate them by
dropping their program or capping their programs.

We want to increase women'’s participation. I didn't like the 13
~anths of grief that my president and athletic director gave me on

S rsemiiing new. 'Ye ore not supposed to discriminate against

wwder sen 1 Sl with this cender quota we are discriminating.

e Tl sl sorte.paninn,
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We do not use Proportionality in any other department. We don't
use it in the Nursing Department because it would destroy the
Nursing Department. We dont use it in engineering. We don’t use
it in a couple of different places.
The other thing that concerns me is that athletes for intercolle-
athletics do not come from the student Sody. Intermurals re-
cruits from the student body, but not athletics. Athletics comes
from the high schools. We all recruit from the high schools. I see
the yellow light is on.

t me use an analogy and please bear with me. My passion—
my recreational passion—is bacipacking. I have taken my son and
daughter backpackin throughout the years. Now that they are in
high school, my daughter doesn’t wish to backpack anymore but my
son does. I have introduced five women to backpacking over the
last 12 years. M current hiking partner, to use a wrestling expres-
sion, is a “stud.” She can navigate where there are no trails. She

The last thing I would like.to say is I have a world-class athlete

ank you very much.
Chairman McKeoN. Thank you.
[The prepared statement of r. Kerr follows:]
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The Coalition’s Position Regarding the Office for Civil Rights’
Interpretation and Enforcement
of Title IX

SUMMARY

We support Title IX and the Congressional intent to prohibit
discrimination based on gender.

We oppose and object to the OCR's interpretation and manner of
enforcing Title IX, particularly that portion which stresses the
proportionality rule. The proportionality rule 1s a gender quota which
tes athletic participation ratios to enrollment ratios

As a direct consequence of OCR interpretation and enforcement
poiicies, school administrators feel compelied to drop male sports
programs rather than add female sports programs.

For example, the number of male gymnastics programs has now
slipped to fewer than 40, the minimum number required to hold an
NCAA tournament. When a sport loses its NCAA tournament
extinction at the coliege level is inevitable. The imminent extinction
of male gymnastics has to be the result of the gender quota in that
female gymnastics at the college level is thriving.

All male sports programs are vulnerable in that approximately half
of the nearly 200.000 of the male college athletes mus: be
elminated to reach the gender quota.

The OCR maintains that it places no more emphasis on the
proportionality rule (prong 1) than the other two prongs. The other
prongs. as interpreted and enforced by the OCR, however, are but
facades to avoid the prohibition against quotas anfiounced in the
Bakke decision.

The unfair and discriminatory OCR rules are creating anger and
resentment among males and those rules will soon have an
extraordinarily deleterious effect on our Olympic efforts and the
character of our high school, junior high and grade school boys.

1
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INTRODUCTION

Mr. Chairman and members of the Subcommittee, | am T.J. Kerr,
wrestling coach at California State University at Bakersfield and
President of the National Wrestling Coaches Association (NWCA). | am
honored and privileged that you selected me to address you today about a
crisis within our athletic community.

The NWCA is the voice of all wrestling coaches in the country. |
shail also attempt to speak on behalf of alt the young male athletes in this
nation and their parents. We are particularly concerned about the tens of
thousands of young men whose athletic careers have already been cut
short by the OCR rules.

While we firmly agree with the letter and spirit of Title IX, we are
firmly committed to the proposition that it is unconscionable to eliminate
male programs or male athletes to satisfy a gender quota. Both the OCR
and the courts have expressed the opinion that a school is justified in

dropping male athletes in order to comply with Title IX. We believe that
this opinion misconstrues Congressional intent.

We are today therefore petitioning Congress seeking relief from the
draconian but unintended consequences of Title IX as interpreted and
enforced by the OCR and the courts.
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1S THERE A CRISIS?

As a threshold issue, you might ask -- is there a crisis? Yes there
is. Male gymnastics is almost extinct at the college level. Wrestiing has
relatively recently lost over 100 programs and may lose as many as 20
programs this year.

Programs in every sport have been dropped or reduced in number --
soccer, baseball, tennis. swimming, etc. -- even football and basketball.

WHY IS THERE A CRISIS?

All male sports programs are at risk because of the proportionality
rule/ gender quota which the OCR has drafted. There are about 190.000
male college athletes in Divisions L I, and ll. There are about 105.000
female athletes. How can proportionality be achieved when the present
male to female ratio 1s 47-537 If the trend continues. administrators will

have to eliminate about 100,000 male athletes to reach proportionality.

iIn 1972 when Congress enacted Title IX the coliege enrollment ratio
nationally was 55%+ male. By the 21st Century 55% of the college
population may well be female. The 55-45 female-to-male ratio sets up a
gender quota which is impossible to achieve in no small part because
females do not tend to compete In sports -- particularly those like

football and wrestling. Nor do they participate In 3 non-scholarship/

walk-on capacity in any where near the number which males do. "*
Cahfornia Bakersfield. for example, we are 62% female by enrollrient.
Statistically. 1t 1s almost impossible with that enroliment ratio to have a
viabably diverse athletics program for male students.

3
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HOW DOES PROPORTIONALITY CAUSE ELIMINATION?
Elimination of male athietes occurs in two ways -- administrators

eliminate programs and/or they eliminate non-scholarship / walk-ons
athletes from those programs. Both are anathema. We have one goal - We

seek to end the elimination or reduction of male sports programs to
achieve a quota.

School administrators believe that they must achieve

proportionality. Many are unable, because of budget constraints, to add
female sports programs, so these administrators drop male programs or

"cap” sports by dropping the non-scholarship or walk-on athlete.

Both of these approaches to achieving “gender equity” are wrong.
Programs should not be eliminated because athletes matriculate at a
school In the good faith belief that the administration will honor its
commitment to provide a program for their four years of college. It 1s a
devastating betrayal for these young men when they learn that their faith
has been musplaced. It 1s worse when they are informed that the reason
for the ehmination of their program s Title IX or gender equity.

The capping of male sports 1s equally discriminatory and
destructive In this circumstance a young man pays tuition. walks on to a
team. works as hard as the first-teamer. but simply does not have the
shill, to compete at the highest levels. These athletes normally are the
hest students and the best contributors to therr alma maters when they
graduate More importantly, they are comparatively free to the school. The
school dumps them because they are the most expendable.

4
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WHY IS THE PROPORTIONALITY RULE THE ONLY (REAL) RULE?

The OCR'’s Director, Norma Cantu, has claimed on many occasions

that administrators need not eliminate male programs to satisfy Title IX.
She says that administrators can satisfy any of the prongs to comply with
Title IX. All administrators--even her supporters--disagree (see below).

Initially, almost everyone “knows” that prongs 2 and 3 simply avoid
the sanctions of the Bakke decision which prohibits gender quotas. As
interpreted and applied by the OCR the prongs are nothing but a facade.
Prong 2 dictates that administrators gravitate toward the gender quota, a
standard that most can not meet by adding women's sports programs.

Prong 3 is the interest and abilities prong. By any measure of
interest thus far tested, males show a far greater interest in sports
participation than females at all levels. The OCR, however, ignores these
measures. Probably no school has ever met this test to OCR's satisfaction.

Ironically, even Norma Cantu’'s supporters unwittingly contradict her
about the primacy of the proportionality rule. in a letter to Senator Breaux
dated January 25, 1995 the 600+ members of the National Association of
Collegiate Women Athletic Administrators (NACWAA) wrote:

“HOW CAN IT BE? that certain members of the
United States Senate who profess to support gender
equity could suggest that Secretary Riley reject the
proportionality test as a primary measure of
compliance with Titie 1X, when_judges in_more
than ten major Title IX court cases to date

_ have_determined that proportionality_is the
single most important prong of the three
pronged test of compliance.”

At the very least, NACWAA's letter contradicts Ms. Cantu’s position
and corroborates our position -- the proportionality rule is dispositive of
compliance with Title IX, and that is what all administrators think too.

S
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WHAT IS THE IMPACT OF THE GENDER QUOTA ON OUR NEXT
GENERATION OF MALE ATHLETES?

| have sought in my program to work with the many young men who
otherwise would not be able to attend college, and | know | speak for the
coaches of all male programs when | say that the elimination of male
opportunities will greatly affect the future generation of young men.

All statistics reflect that the opportunities existing for females is
much greater than for males. For example, wrestling is the sixth most
popular high schoo! sport in the nation. There is, however, only one college
program for every 33 high school wrestling programs (33-1). Of the top
ten female sports, the worst ratio is about 22-1 and the best ratio is
about 11-1. High school females have greater opportunities to compete at
the collegiate level in every counterpart sport except golf and gymnastics.

As these disparities continue to grow as male programs are
eliminated, high school and junior high school male programs will atrophy
and die. Many kids, without the option of participating in athletics, will
choose antisocial activities.

Unfortunately, at present, there is hardly a male high school athlete

who s unaware of Title IX and the OCR’s approach to gender equity.
Expectedly, these males are angry and their morale is sinking. '
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WHAT IS THE IMPACT OF THE GENDER QUOTA ON OUR OLYMPIC
TEAMS?

The wvast majority of our Olympic athletes have trained in the
university. If, for instance, gymnastics is allowed to die at the college
level, the quality of our Olympic team will be greatly reduced. Does
Congress want this to be another unintended consequence of Title IX
interpretation and enforcement?

WHAT OTHER PROBLEMS HAS THE OCR'S GENDER QUOTA CREATED?

Ironically, as a direct consequence of the OCR's and NOW's pressure,
the California State University system signed a consent decree requiring
proportionality by 1998. At Cal State Bakersfield, male Olympic sports
are all but doomed. Recently San Francisco State dropped its football
team. NOW has signed a similar contract with the Chicago school system
and Florida has created a statute revolving around the proportionality rule.

Another irony is that while my wrestling program creates a great
deal of its own revenue, we are required to give 50% of what we earn to
the female programs. Obviously, donors want to give their money to a
particular program and when they learn that half of their money is going
to another program (whether male or female), they refuse to donate
anything. Furthermore, our athietes have come to resent the fact that we
have to work both for our own program and help to fund the programs
which do not work to fund themselves.
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WHAT IS OCR’S DEFINITION OF “PARTICIPANT” -- AND WHY IS
THAT DEFINITION DESTROYING MALE SPORTS OPPORTUNITIES?

A very important issue in the analysis of OCR’s gender quota is how
the term “participant” is to be defined. Presently the OCR defines
participant as either a scholarship or non-scholarship athlete.

Since male sports programs encourage walk-ons to try out for the
teams, there are probably more non-scholarship male athletes than
scholarship athletes.

. On the other hand, there are far fewer females who participate in a
= non-scholarship capacity. At the Division Il! level, for example -- where
: all athletes are non-scholarship -- male athletes outnumber female

athletes by 25,000 participants.

The irony is that in the OCR’s “final solution” it is permissible to
achieve “gender equity” by simply eliminating these male non-scholarship
athletes. It is true that by eliminating all male walk-ons we could achieve
proportionality. But we could also achieve proportionality by requiring
females to fill their “unused participatory opportunities.” Which 15 the

. better solution? To eliminate or create participatory slots?
R The obvious reason why non-scholarship female athletic slots are
not presently created is that coaches of female programs know that they
— do not have to encourage walk-ons or even permit them to try out in that
their schools must provide additional slots. The females therefore have

the leverage to require the schools to create only scholarship
participatory slots.

Again, administrators, in order to retain discretionary control over
their schools simply eliminate male athletes by capping sports.

Q

ERIC

PAFullToxt Provided by ERIC




Q

ERIC

PAFullToxt Provided by ERIC

154

WHAT CAN BE DONE TO SOLVE THE PROBLEM?

First. things have changed since 1972 when Title IX was enacted.
Female athletic participation has skyrocketed from about 10% to about
40% of the total collegiate athletic community. These enormous changes

occurred in the face of the fact that football, a non-counterpart sport,
absorbs over 1/4 of all of the male participation slots.

“Gender equity” 1s a reality in almost every school in the country. As
proof, one need only reflect on the fact that females now have nearly the
same number of college athletic programs as males (6520 - 7211
respectively) and receive more scholarship aid in aimost every

counterpart sport.

Gender equity, however, should not be synonymous with gender
quotas. The OCR’s gender quota, which masquerades as the proportionality
rule, is now an anachronism which should be abolished.

in its place, reason should prevail. Schools offering the same number
of athletic programs to males and females should be deemed to be in
compliance with Title IX. Since there are nearly the same number of
athletic programs presently for males and females, schools should be
encouraged to build up the present programs rather than creating new
ones.

Also, in that males participate in a non-scholarship/ walk-on
capacity in much greater numbers than females, it is time to require
females to fill these “unused participatory opportunities” which if
developed, would solve this problem alone.
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CONCLUSION

In conclusion, Mr. Chairman, thank you for holding this hearing to
consider our petition. | know that when you created Title IX you did not
intend the elimination of male sports as we know them -- that, however,

will be the unintended consequence if Congress does not intervene. We

need your help to change the rules so that we can exist and make gender
equity work for both males and females.

Finally, thank you for the opportunity to appear here today. | will be
happy to answer to the best of my ability any questions you may have of
me.
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T R TROYING MALE SPORT PORTUNITIE
THE PROBLEM

Title IX, enacted in 1972, prohibits gender discrimination in educational
settings.

in 1979 the Education Department’s Office for Civil Rights (OCR) created a
three-part test to measure compliance with Title IX. The Director of the
OCR, Norma Cantu, has on several occasions, stated that a school can
comply with any of the prongs to pe in compliance with Title IX. The
problem is that, as interpreted and enforced by the OCR, prongs 2 and 3 are
merely facades to avoid the prohibition against gender quotas which the
Supreme Court announced in the Bakke decision. The prongs are:

1. Are the participation opportunities for women and
men substantially proportionate to their respective
rates of enroliment?

Presently, female enroliment nationally is 53%. Female
athletic participation nationally is about 37% (105,000). To
create proportionality educational administrators must raise
female participation to 53% (200,000), lower male
participation to 47% (from the current 190.00 to 100,000) or
create some combination therof.

Impact _on_Male Sports

This “proportionality rule” is a quota that can not be met
without destroying male sports programs prnimarily
because females do not tend to:

compete in certain sports -'like football and
....wrestling - which have historically attracted
jarge numbers of student- athletes

compete at the college level in a non-scholarship
or “walk-on" capacity

161
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The facts that football teams are large and that females
do not tend to compete in a non-scholarship capacity in
any where near the numbers of males tend to skew the
participation ratios greatly towards men and make
compliance with the proportionality rule nearly
impossible.

2. Has there been a continuing practice of program
expansion for the under-represented sex?

Since almost no schoo!l with a football team can satisfy the

. gender quota required by the OCR under part 1 all schools must
— . satisfy part 2. The OCR and the courts require that schools

: show the addition of “recent” new female programs. Also,
since it is nearly impossible to add enough female programs to
reach proportionality (primarily because of the football
numbers and the females tendency to rot walk-on). this
approach puts educational administrators on the OCR treadmill
virtually forever.

Impact on Male Sports

, Educational administrators -- realizing that the gender
o quota can never be reached (under part#1) by adding

K female athletic tcams -- have decided to just drop their
male teams and/or athletes. Dropping male athletes has
the additional benefits of avoiding endless regulation by
the OCR which occurs when a school takes the program
expansion approach. (Also, elimination of programs puts
extra msney in to the administrative budgets.)

92-374 95-6
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Has the school fully and effectively accommodated
the interests and abilities of the under-represented
sex?

When schools are out of proportion they normally can not meet
this prong no matter how many surveys they do or how
powerfully they show that the disparity is not based on
discrimination. Probably no school has ever passed this test to
the satisfaction of the OCR.

Conversely, if a female team steps forward and demands
NCAA status, the school realistically must instate the team.
The reason is that the since the school is out of proportion the
administrators must get in proportion. The females are

obviou sly interested and there is no way to test ability.

impact on Male Sports

This standard is the most unfair and the most likely to
result in administrators’ eliminating male sports. This
standard never benefits males or administrators.

For example, now that bowling is an NCAA sport, a
group of female bowlers can demand that their college
administrators instate them as a team and give them all
of the resources of any other NCAA athletic team.
Admunistrators are vulnerable and must acquiesce
regardless of the bowling averages of the female
students because there is no standard to test abilities.

Other classic examples are the sports of female crew
and lacrosse which usually have no high schoo! base in
the states where the universities instate the teams.

in order to avoid even the possibility that a few female
student-athletes can dictate university policy, most
administrators will inevitab'y decide to simply drop
male sports programs.

12
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THE ELIMINATION OF MALE ATHLETIC OPPORTUNITIES

. Males are being deprived of an opportuniy to participate in college sports
’ and being discriminated against because of the gender quota set by the

Office for Civil Rights in two separate and distinct ways:

(1} male athletic programs are being elimnated:  and

(2) “"walk-ons"/ non schofarship _athletes are being
. eliminated.

The Elimination of Maie Athletic Programs

Numerous male sports programs have been dropped recently as a result of
the gender quota created by the Office for Civil Rights.

. The most dramatic example of this phenomenon i1s male gymnastics.
B within the last few years male college gymnastics programs have been
reduced to fewer than 40 teams, the least number required to maintamn an
NCAA tournament. Meanwhile, female gymnastics at the college fevel
flourishes. Almost all of male Olympic gymnasts are sclected from the
coltege ranks so this attrition will inevitably affect our Olympic efforts.

All of the other male Sports programs are also inexorably being drawn
toward this black hole of extinction created by the OCR. Wrestiing. for
o Instance. has lost about 140 programs.

Nationally there are about 190.000 male college athletes and about
105,000 female athletes. Since female students outnumber male studenis
nationally (53%-47%). OCR's gender quota requires that there be more
female athletes than male athletes. So educational administrators must
either add 100.000 temale athletes. eliminate 100,000 male athletes or
some combination thereof. If administrators continue to choose
"elimination” -- even n combination with adding female sports programs

-- all male Olympic athletic programs will be destroyed before the gendet
quota can be satisfied
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The Elimination of Male “'si~lk-ons”  -- Capping Sports Programs

A more nsidious approach to elimiating sports opportunities for males
1$ 1o "cap” sports programs. This term means that walk-ons / non-
scholarship athletes are dumped for the sole purpose of moving toward a
gender quota. Non-scholarship/walk-on athletes cost the university
virtually nothing, generally maintain the highest grade point average
among athletes and are the most generous contributors upon graduation.

Tne real problem here is the manner in which OCR defines and counts
“participants.” All athletes, whether scholarship or not, are “bean-
counted” the same. The real effect is that coaches of female programs
coaches know that universities must increase female participation. These
coaches must be given the option and must decide whether to increase
they teams with scholarship or non-scholarship athletes. The obvious
esult 1s that female programs usually refuse to encourage. and in many
cases wili not take on, walk-ons. Schools are then required to fill all
temale teams with scholarship athietes -- of eliminate male non-

scholarship athletes.

Presently there are tens of thousands more male than .2male non-
scholarship/walk-on athletes. Since females now have almost as many
teams as maies do nationally (6520 female programs to 7211 male
programs), they should be required to fill their “unused participatory
siots” before seeking more scholarship slots '
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CONCLUSION -- SOLUTION

Some where along the way the OCR's interpretation and enforcement of
Title IX has lost a basic sense of reality and common sénse. The purpose of
Title X 1s to fight discrimination. How does the elimination of male
sports programs and athletes help to end discrimination?

Young male athletes arrive on campus every fall in the good-faith behef
that they have an agreement with the university that they will be able to
compete In their sports and their parents hope they will mature Into ‘men.
The trauma visited upon these athletes when they are informed that they
(or their sports programs) have been dropped 1s impossible to explain. The
administrators’ rationale that it is the government's gender quota which
has destroyed their opportunity to participate creates extraordinary
disillusionment. anger and frustration. Is It any wonder why our kids and
our citizenry distrust and dishke our government bureaucractes?

we are petitioning Congress because Congress created a well-intentioned
statute which worked reasonably well in the 80's to hel; increase female
athletic opportunities. However, the unintended consequences of the 90's
s that the OCR's rules, regulations and enforcement policies will destroy
male athletics, do little to help females and will inevitably create
extraordinary polarization primarily between the genders. '

The problem. in greatest part, has been precipitated by the fact that the
OCR. headed by Norma Cantu, has been, is, and will always be apparently
unconcerned by the fate of male athletics.

It 1s therefore crucial that Congress clarify its tntent regarding
discrimination -- that is:

Title IX was created to prohibit _discrimination against
females --_not to destroy opportunities for males.

Specifically, we ask that Congress consider the following
proposals:




PROPQSALS

Abolish OCR’s gender quota. There is no logical reason for
the continuing existence of the proportionality ruie. Most
importantly, there is no relationship between enroliment
gender ratios and athletic participation ratios. Initially, the
quota had the beneficent effect of quickly raising female
participation rates to nearly 40%. It has now reached a point of
greatly diminishing returns.

“Gender equity” is now an integral part of almost every
school in wi= country. The necessity to perpetuate a quota
which is creating reverse discrimination, extraordinary
discord and resentment has long since passed.

Until OCR's gender quota is abolished -

a Colleges should be deemed in compliance with
Title IX by offering the same number of programs
to females as males. Again, schools now
nationally offer nearly as many athletic programs
nationally to females (6520) as males (7211).

Football (and other) teams which do create the
revenue for the other sports to exist should be
exempted. It is unfair to the other male sports
programs to count football as part of the gender
quota but not count the fact that if football is
financially successful it is going to use more
participatory slots and spend more morney.

“Participants” shouid be defined as
scholarship athletes only. Alternatively,
females should be required to fill their “unused
participatory slots” before creating new teams.

The proportionality test should be onc of many
criteria to assess whether new female athletic
programs should be established.
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FACTS AND FALLACIES

The only Title IX issue is discrimination. All facts and statistics should
be measured against the yardstick of discrimination.

Many of the facts and statistics proffered by the other side are irrefevant
to the question of discrimination and/or are misleading and/or are haif
truths with some important facts left out. Some are simply untrue. The
following are the primary ones which females have sent to Congressmen
and which are presently making the rounds:

ISSUE 1: Are males losing athletic participatory
opportunities?

Misleading Fact: “According to the NCAA, the number of
participants in women’s sports increased between
1989 and 1993 by 10,000 BUT THE NUMBER OF
PARTICIPANTS IN MEN’S SPORTS ALSO
INCREASED BY 10,000 GIVING THEM 65% OF
ALL OPPORTUNITIES.” (capitalization and bold
print provided by the author[s])

Explanation: These “increased” opportunities for males were
not “new” opportunities but merely already
existing athletes. 12,156 NAIA participants
transferred to the NCAA between 1989 and 1993.

Gymnastics is almost extinct at the college level
for males. But female gymnastics is flourishing.
College wrestling has lost about 140 wrestling
programs. These facts reflect that not only are
males losing opportunities but that the reason for
our imminent extinction is the OCR’'s gender guota.

Just as ifnportant, teams all over the country are
capping sports programs and dropping walk-ons and
non-scholarship athletes.
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ISSUE 2: Do football teams support the athletic department?

Misleading “According to 1993 financial data, 62% of Division
I-A and 1AA football programs on average have
annual deficits of $1 million in Division I-A and
$664,000 in Division I-AA (61% of all Division |
men’s programs also show deficits.)”

Explanation: These statistics fail to point out several important
facts:

(1) Almost all sports teams have annual
deficits and probably always will.

(2) It is ironic that if a female crew team
consists of more than 100 members (like at
Washington State) -- everyone cheers. When
football teams consist of in excess of 100+
athletes it's time to “trim the fat.” Also
ironically, although female athletic teams
are much smaller they are much more
expensive per athlete. Many female
basketball teams which consist of only 15
players, for example spend $500,000+ per
year.

The “deficit” figure does not account for the
enormous amounts of money contributed by
alums, and is therefore not counted against
the deficit. Also, the male budget absorbs
many of the mutual expenses, such as
facilities, perscnnel, etc.

Besides the fact the that the 62% figure is
misleading, it begs the issue in 38% of the
cases. At those schools where football pays
for itself, should it be exempted? Otherwise
the participatory slots football“takes” hurt
us, and the money it makes to justify the
slots doesn’t help us.
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ISSUE_3:

Misleading Fact:

Explanation:

165

Are all of the numbers skewed in favor of mates?
Are the statistics misleading?

Division I-A Results - 1952 Female Male

Participation Rates 29% 71%
Athletic Scholarships 28% 72%
Operating Budget 20% 80%
Recruiting Budget 16% 84%

Again, these statistics omit a number of important
points and are therefore misleading:

m

Note that these figures are drawn from 1992.
Present statistics are much closer. For
instance, there are now 7211 male sports
teams and 6520 female sports teams and
participation rates for females exceed 35%.
The remaining difference can be accounted
for by the non-discriminatory fact that males
“walk-on" in far greater numbers.

Scholarships have likewise increased
significantly. In almost every counterpart
sport females receive more scholarship
money per aided athlete than males.

The rales’ budget includes many of the
expenses which should be charged to the
women. For example, the expenses revolving
around the cost of the facilities, support
personnel, sports medical personnel, tutoring
etc. is charged to the male budget.

It is therefore unfair for females tc allege
that 80% of the budget is spent an males and
20% on females. If females paid their fair
share for facilities. personnel, etc.. budgets
would be relatively evenly distributed.
Certainly, any difference in budgeting could
not be attributed to discrimination.

o0
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| SSUE 4: Are colieges meeting the interests and abilities of
e their females athletes? How should interest be
tested?
Misieading Fact: Colleges are not currentiy meeting the needs

and interests of women in intercollegiate
_ athletics in that:

— “a) Most universities have women's club sports
: that would love to be elevated to -
: intercollegiate status:;

b) At the high schoo! level, over 2 million girls .
participate in interscholastic sports; in the
1992-93 year, there were only 99,900

participation opportunities for women in the
NCAA."

ULy

L

Explanation: There are also men who participate in club sports

at the university level who would “love to be

. elevated to intercollegiate status.” First, men

-5 participate in club (2/1), intramural {3/1) and high
T school (2/1) sports at a greater than margin over
females. Why should females be elevated to

simply satisfy a quota?

I‘[,\

Second, if there are so many females who want to
compete at the college levels, why do they not
waik-on to teams in any where near the numbers
- that males do?

L
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ISSUE 5:

Misleading Fact:

Explanation:

Doas the OCR place more emphasis on the
proportionality rule (the gender quota) than the
other two prongs of the test? Does the university
community believe that the proportionality rule Is
the main criteria for determining discrimination?

Norma Cantu, the director of the OCR recently
wrote a letter to “2nator Breaux addressing the
Senator's concerns with respect to the
proportionality rule. She said, “First let me
underscore that the proportionality test is_not and
1s_not_projected to be the primary measure of
compliance under Title IX." (1/10/95)

Ms. Cantu is disingenuous at best when she tries to
minimize the importance of the gender quota
portion of the three-part test. Those who have been
subjected to an OCR investigation knows better.
Better proof of the impact this approach has had

at the college level is that 600+ members of the
National Association of Collegiate Women Athletic
Administrators (NACWAA) also wrote Senator
Breaux about the proportionality rule as the
primary criteria for determining discrimination.

“HOW CAN IT BE? that certain members of
the United States Senate who profess to
support gender equity could suggest that
Secretary Riley reject the proportionality
test as a primary measure of compliance
with Title 1X, when the judges in more than
ten major Title IX court cases to date have
determined that proportionality_is the single
most important_prong of the three pronged.
test of compliance.” (1/25/95).*

[* This letter not only contradicts Cantu’s, but also reflects the
“(mis)understandings” of college administrators. It is thes:
“(mis)understandings” of the admimstrators created by the
OCR's “mis-communications” which 1s destroying male sports.]
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Creating Proportionality by Eliminating
Male Olympic Sports Programs
Male Programs Eemale Programs

7,200 All Programs §,520 All Programs
190,000 All Male Participante 105,000 All Fermnale Participants

:Cy'm’n’asﬁc"s. “

Cees 3

Wr ﬂngw'

Himinated

rrog!

Softbail

Baseball (23,000) Basketbail

Basketball (13,000) 3,723 Crew 6,520

Tennis (7,000) Programs Fencing Programs
100,000 105,000
Golf (7,000 Participants Field Hockey Participants

(52%})
Football (50,000) (48%) Golf

Gymnastics

Lacrosse

Skiing

Soccer

Swimming

Tennis

Track

Volleybail

Source 11595 MCAA News Participation Study 1Coltege enroliment rato 15 approumately $3 47 ‘emale male
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COLORADO

Colorado State University
University of Colorado

CONNECTICUT

Hartford University
University of Connecticut
Yale University

DELAWARE
University of Delaware
FLORIDA

Central Florida
Jacksonville University
University of Florida

GEORGIA

Georgia Tech
University of Georgia

HAWAIT
University of Hawaii

IDAHO

Idaho State University
Idaho University

ILLINOIS

Depaul University

Elmhurst College

Illinois Institute of Tech.
Lake Forest College
University of S§. Illinois
at Carbondale

Western Illinois University

INDIANA

Anderson University

Ball State University
Earlham College

Hanover College

Indiana State University
St. Joseph College
Taylor University
University of Evansville
University of Notre Dame
Valparaiso University
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IOWA

Drake University
Grinnell College
Lewis & Clark St. College

Vb W N

Morningside College
— KANSAS

1. Emporia State University
® 2. Kansas State University

. KENTUCKY

Eastern Kentucky University
University of Kentucky

N =

LOUISTIAN.
1. L.s.U.

MAINE

Bowdoin College
Maine Maritime Academy
University of Maine

w N

MARYLAND

Baltimore

Loyola

Towson State University
Washington College

— .

W N

MASSACHUSETTS

Amherst College

Brandeis University
College of Holy Cross

Tufts University
University of Massachusetts
wWwheaton College

LW N
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MICHIGAN

Adrian College

Albion Cellege

Alma College

Calvin College

Hope College

Kalamazoo College

Michigan Tech.

Northern Michigan University
Saginaw Valley State
Western Michigan University
Wayne State University
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MINNESOTA

Bemidji State University
Gustavus Adolphus College
Hamline University
Southwest State University
St. Mary’'s College
University of St. Thomas
Winona State University

MISSOURI

Lincoln University

Northwest Missouri State Univ.
Southeast Missouri State
Southwest Missouri State
University of Missouri-Rolla
Washington University

William Jewell College

MONTANA

Montana State University
Montana Universaity

NEBRASKA

Doane College
Nebraska Wesleyan University

NEVADA
University of Nevada - Las Vegas
NEW PSHIRE

Dartmouth College
University of New Hampshire
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NEW JERSEY

Fairleigh Dickinson

University - Madison

Fairleigh Dickinson Univ.-Teaneck
Glassboro State University
Mommouth College

Princeton University

NEW MEXICO
New Mexico Highlands
NEW YORK

Adelphi University

Albany State

Brooklyn Poly Technical
City College of New York
Clarkson University
Colgate University

C.W. Post

Elmira College

Fordham University

Geneseo State University
Hobart College

Long Island University
Manhattan College

Marist College

New York Maritime
Plattsburgh State University-N.Y.
Pottsdam - N.Y. State Unmiv.
Rensselaer Pclytechnic Institute
Sout hhampton

st. John Fisher College

st . Lawrence University
University at Albany
University of Rochester
Wagner College

NORTH CAROLINA

Catawba College

Davidson College

East Carolina University

Elizabeth City State University

Elon College

Pfeiffer College

University of North Carolina-Charlotte
University of North Carolina-Wilmington




— 174

i QHIQ
Akron University
Bluffton College
Bowling Green University
Central State University
College of Wooster
Defiance College
Denigon University
Hiram College
Kenyon College
- 10. Malone College
11. Marietta College
12. Oberlin College »
13. Ohio Wesleyan University
14. Otterbein College
15. University of Tcledo
16. University of Cincinnati + M
17. University of Dayton
i8. Wittenburg University
1 Youngstown State University
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WOJIA N WN -

OREGON

1. Linfield College
2. Willamette UniveirZity

[t

— PENNSYLVANIA

Allegheny College
California University of PA
Dickinson College

Grove City College

Indiana University of PA
Juniata College

Lafayette College

Lincoln Uriversity

st. Franc.s College
Susquehanna University
Temple Universaity

West Chester University of PA
Westminister College
Widener Universaity
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RHODE ISLAND
- ihode Island

O OLINA

[

Clemson University
2. Furman University -
3. South Carolina State Universaity
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SOUTH DAKOTA

Black Hills State University
Huron University
South Dakota State University
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TENNESSEE

Maryville College
University of Tennessee
University of Tennessee-Martin
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N, TEXAS

[

Texas Tech Univers:ity
UTAH

Southern Utah Un:iversity
University of Utah

Utah State University
Weber State University
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VIRGINIA

Hampton Sidney

Liberty University

University of Richmond

Virginia Commonwealth University
William and Mary College

[
W W

WASHINGTON

Eastern Washington University

Gonzaga University

University of Washington

University of Washington at Puget Sound
Washington State

|
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WASHINGTON D.C.

Catholic University

George Washington University
Howard University

Seattle Pacific University
Whitman College

[Cr Wi Vi o

ST INIA

1. Bethany College
. 2. Marshall University

4
- 1. Beloit College
— " 2. Ccarthage College
3 Univ. of Wisconsin - Milwaukee
4 Univ. of Wisconsin - Superior
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Source" Stephen Chapman.
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UNSPORTSMANLIKE CONDUCT
SETTING QUOTAS FOR WOMEN IN COLLEGIATE SPORTS ISN'T FAIR PLAY

Defenders of affirmative action complain that the debate always
focuses on race rather than on sex. While preferences that help blacks and
other racial minoritiles are controversial, they insist, preferences that
help white women are not-meaning that Americans really aren't offended
by the idea of affirmative action. The supporters should hope Americans
don’t get a good look at the way that idea was recently translated into
policy by a federal judge.

Brown University 1s not exactly redneck heaven. in fact, it has long been
a model of progressive thinking. It abolished D's and F's in response 0
student demands in 1969 and has gamned fame (or notoriety) for its
relaxed academic requirements Once all-male, it now has a student body
that 1s 51 percent female.

After the 1972 passage of Title IX, which outlawed sex discrimination
by colleges and universities getting federal aid. Brown leapt to show its
good will. Between 1972 and 1978, 1t addeu women's teams in tennis,
basketball, crew, field hockey. gymnastics, squash, swimming, volleyball,
cross country. lacrosse, soccer, softball and outdoor track.

Today. the university funds 13 varsity sports for women and 12 for men.
Brown women engage in varsity sports at nearly three times the average
rate for American colleges.

But that, a U.S. district court said fast month, is not enough to comply
with Title IX. When a shortage of money forced the schoo! to drop women's
volleyball and gymnastics from varsity to club sports-as it also did with
men's water polo and golf-it broke the ifaw by failing to provide encugh
opportunities for women to compete.

The judge was not impressed by Brown's exceptional record. Nor was
Arthur Bryant of Trial Lawyers for Public Justice, which filed the
lawsuit. The university takes the view, he said afterward, that "if Brown
is in violation, so is fverybody. We agree with that." You heard right: Every
institution of higber learning in America is guilty of sex discrimination.

What 1s Brown's chief crime? Simple: It fields athletic teams that do

4/30/95 America Online: DAnderl838 Page
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not precisely mirror the student body. Though women outnumber men on
campus, they make up about 40 percent of the varsity athletes. The
simplest way for the university to obey the iaw, advised Judge Raymond
Pettine. is to arrange things so that women make up 5i percent of the
participants.

That could be done not by adding teams for women but by dropping teams
for men-which would do absoluteiy nothing for worien. Adopt a quota and
you're home free.

The possibility dismissed by the judge anc Titie iX militants is that the
— numbers reflect differing tastes. No one thinks that discrimination
explains wny fewer men than women participate in ballet or drama. But
the assumption is that if fewer wcmen then men play varsity sports, only
unfairness can account for the gap.

In fact, for better or worse, young women are generally less interested
in sports than young men. Despite the expansion of girls' athletics in
recent decades, high school boys are 64 percent more likely to play
organized sports than girls. Fitness activities and pickup games are also
- less popular among teenage females than males.

_ Of girls who apply to Browa, cnly about 43 percent express an interest
- in athletics. tn the university's intramural sports, which take all comers,
="y <ight times as many males take part as ferrates. Several women's varsity
— teams at Brown have vacant slots, while the men's are oversubscribed.
Plenty of young femaies are devoted to athletics, and the expansion of
options for them over the past generation has been a thoroughly
= commendable changs. But the chief goal should be assuring a chance for
those who want to play-not enforcing quotas in participation rates.
— If men are more inciined to these pursuits than women, there is nothing
wrong with 2n imbalance in numbers-just as there is rothing wrong with
3 excess of women in the English department or a glut of men in ’
- engineering. What has taken place at Brown is plainly the result of women
and men making different choices of their own free will.
- The judge and the law take for granted that America's colleges are run
',~ by reactionary males who will address the needs of women only if they
S have a hammer hanging over their heads. in fact, there are powerful
. ideological pressures in academe to assure that females are treated at
least as well as men-not to mention business pressures to avoid
alienating a huge pool of appticants.
' The court's decisian is Yased on the fallacy that the surest proof of fair

Po
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treatment is statistical parity. This is the kind of thinking that has
doomed racial preferences with the American peopie. who know that equal
treatment doesn't necessarily produce equal results. Title IX has enjoyed
public acceptance because it is seen as 3 way to assure opportunity. Once

it becomes a machine for dictating outcomes, its days are numbered.
PHOTO: AP photo.
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COVERING THKZ COURTS by James J. Kilpatrick

WHEN LESS IS MORE

A few weeks ago the Supreme Court refuged to hear Bill
Kelley's case. In doing 30, the high court passed up an
opportunity to address a tough question of civil rights at
the collage level. Kelley was a member of the swimming teawr
at the University of 1llinois. For good or ill, hise olw team
has now been egualized ouf.,

There is a nice ircoy here. In its effort to increase
athletic opportunities for women, Congress hau succeeded in
reducing athletic opportunities for men. The incongruily may
never have been intended, but there it is:1 Less is more. We
move toward squality by subtraction, not additaon.

Jhe facts are not much in dispute. The Univeregity of

1llinoi. has sponsored men's swimming teams gince 19211.

Women's teams came along in 1982. Title IX of the Civil
Righte Act prohibits discrimination on the basis of sex in
any program of education receiving federal support.
specifically, the regulations ban rdifferent treatment® in
any "interscholastic, intercollegiate, club or intramural
athletics.” The goal is =zqual opportunity.

Everything weat swimmingly, so to speak, until the
spring of 1993. "he U.S. Department of Education had been
putting pressure on the university to eliminate or reduce an
evident imbalance under Title I1X. Women made up 44 percent
of the student body at Urbana-Champaign, but they accounted
for only 23 percent of the varsity athletes.

Things came to a head when enrollment for 1992-33
declined. The university facecd a 400,000 deficit in itse
budget for athletics. something had to give. The athletic
dircctoxy recommeuded that four teama be dropped -~ men's
pwimming, men's fencing, and men's and women's diving. The
women's Awimming team was left untouched.
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Kelley and seven other members of the men's team went
into U.8. District Court, charging that the university had
violated Title IX. Obviously the men's team had been treated
differently. But was this the consequence of discrimination
or a result of frugality?

Judge Joe Billy McDade did what he felt he had to do.
In a leading case involving Brown University in 1993, the
Court of Appeals for the lst Circuit hac ruled bluntly on
the matter of achieving "gender parity.* A university can
bring iteelf into compliance not only by enlarging
opportunities for women but also by contracting
opportunities for men.

This was enough for Judge McDade. Financial
constraints, he concluded, were the primary reason for
killing the men's swimming team, but the university also
wanted to stay on the sunny side of Title IX. He granted
summary judgment in favor of the university, but he had a
little more to say:

"The court is not unsympathetic to the plight of
members of the men's swimming team and recognizes that
Congress, in enacting Title IX, probably never anticipated
that it would yield such draconian results.

"Plaintiffs' cape has emotional appeal because it
graphically demonstrates the inherent unfairness of
decisions which classify and isolate one gendexr for buxdens
that the other gender is not required to bear. Certainly it
musl be acknowledged that the members of the men's swimming
team are innocent victims of Title IX's benevolent attempt
to rcmedy the effects of historical de-emphasis on athletic
oppor.unities for women

"Women have paid and ccatinue to pay for discriminatory
actions and attitudes which have historically excluded them
from the athletic opportunities given to men, as represented
by current statistical disparities amony athletes in
univereities and colleges acrous the countxry.*®
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Kelley and his collemagues appealed McDade's decigion to
the 7th Circuit, but last September they lost again. The
court found that ths university's decision to retain women's
swimming was *extremely prudent.® Otherwise lllino's would
have been vulnerable to suit by the women.

With the Suprews Court's order, refusing to hear
Xelley's further appeal, this particular litigation has
ended. Previous suits have been directed at Brown
University, Colorado State, Colgate, and the Indiana
University of Pennsylvania at Indiana, Pa. All have turned
ot the same way. Succeasive courts have de.erred to
bureaucratic regulations implementing Title IX, and that's
that. Tough luck, fellows.

The lust Yor gender equality in collegiate athletica
belies reality. It is not discrimination that holds down the
number of women in varsity sports. It is the different
nature of the species. Not all women want to be like wen.
And to that wholesome proposition I say, vive la differencel

COPYRIGHT 1995 UNIVERSAL PRESS BYNDICATE '
4900 Main St., Xansas City, Mo. 64112; (816) 933-6600
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UNIVERSITY OF WISCONSIN-WHITEWATER

800 West Man Street, Whitewater, Wisconsin 53190-790
Intercollegiate Athletics

May 5, 1998

Mr. Dale Anderson,

This is a difficutt summary to write because | have tried to remove from my
memory the negative experiences that | encountered while gaing through our
gender equity study. The reason that this is hard is because the experiences and
frustrations that | encountered were the most frustrating and stressful that 1 have
ever encountered i my professional career.

Our university had conducted our own gender investigation and found it
necessary to make adjustments in the program and redistribute resources to meet
our established goals. This resulted in the shifting of funds from one area to
another and adding an additionat sport for women (soccer).

We ware extremely surprised when two years later we were informed by
the Chicago branch of the Office of Civil Rights that they would be conducting an
investigation. When the two investigators conducted their inquiries on our
campus, | was surprised as to the lack of understanding that they exhibited of an
NCAA Division 11l athletic program. As a result of their Investigation and
unwillingness to accept our plan of action, it becarme necessary to formally cap
men's athletic programs on our ¢ampus.

Even though we felt on our campus that we could meet the inteiest and
ability of our under represented gender which is one of the agpecis of Title IX, it
appeared that the main goal as communicated to us by the OCR was to strive
toward proportionality. To do this, it was necessary for us to cap men's programs
and open the floors for women's sporls. This exercise has caused morale
problems and frustrations among both the coaches of male and female sports and
student sthietes as well.

In closing, | find it very difficult to even discuss this issue since as | have
stated before, was the worst stress producing activity | have ever been invotved
In.

Respecifully yours,
Willie M%
Athietic Director - Men

W1/Anderson.kr
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Chairman McKEeoN. is. Hilliard,

STATEMENT OF WENDY HILLIARD, PRESIDENT, WOMEN'S
SPORTS FOUNDATION, EAST MEADOW, NEW YORK

Ms. HILLIARD. Thank you. I am glad to have the opportunity to
speak ..ere.

My name is Wendy Hilliard. I am currently the President of the
Women's Sports Foundation, and I am also an athlete. I am not a
backpacker, but I competed in the sport of rhythmic gymnastics, an
Olympic sport. I was the first African American to represent the
United States in rhythmic gymnastics. I won international gold
medals, competed in three world championships, and was twice na-
tional tezm captain.

I went to college in the 1980s when Title IX was supposedly in
force. My sport wasn't offered at the varsity level. I did not receive
an athletic scholarship. I had to work my way through college and
pay for my athletic training, yet I graduated from New York U'ni-
versity with honors.

Now, the month before graduation, I missed the 1988 Olympic
trials by five cne-hundredths of a point.

Now, unlike Dan Gable or the other athletes you have here, why
wasn't I, one of the best in the entire country in my sport and also
at the top of the class, an athlete, able to receive an athletic schol-
arship? The